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2019 will be an unforgettable year for Hong Kong people. The
ongoing trade war between United States (US) and China
which is impeding the economic development of both China
and Hong Kong. More or not less, Hong Kong has been
witnessing continuous social unrest since June. The social
unrest has exposed a great deal of uncertainties and showed
little sign of resolution in near future. Investors turned
pessimistic and economic conditions of Hong Kong have

deteriorated significantly.

As the trade war intensifies during the first quarter of 2019,
the Hang Seng Index ("HSI") started to edge downwards in
May after soaring to over 30,000 points in April, and drop to
below 25,000 points in August. Luckily, market bottom out
and start rally to 29,000 points after US and China agreed to
sign Phase 1 trade deal in January 2020. However, good time
won't last as the novel Coronavirus broke out in the beginning
of 2020. Global markets fall as the novel Coronavirus spreads

around the world, as investors concern of a much larger
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economic impact than previously expected. The oil price
plunged as a result of OPEC and Russia failed to agree on a
joint production curbs through the end of 2020. Saudi Arabia
promptly slashed its crude prices, stoking price war concerns.
This inevitably added uncertainties to the market. Stock
markets across the globe are suffering their worst times in
March 2020 since the financial crisis of 2008.

Although the financial-oriented business makes the Group
particularly sensitive to fluctuating economic conditions and
investors’ sentiments, our fundamental strategy is firmly
anchored and our core focus remains on developing and
fortifying the Group's core businesses in (i) provision of
financing services including brokerage and financing services,
corporate finance and other advisory services, asset
management and insurance brokerage; and (ii) proprietary
trading. The Group's business strategies continue to include
enlarging the Group's revenue base through fostering its core
businesses, and tapping into new emerging markets with
expanded business initiatives. Indeed, the Group is committed
to achieving long-term and balanced growth on the basis of
solid financial capability and a pragmatic operating strategy,
which help capitalizing on any growth opportunities and

thereon enhance our shareholders’ value.

During the year 2019, the Group's still recorded a loss amid a
highly turbulent year, though the loss had been substantially
reduced. The Group's financial position as at the end of year

was still robust with minimal liabilities sustained.

Looking forward, the prospects of Hong Kong's economy and
business environment continue to look bleak, operating
environment of the Group remains complicated and
challenging facing economic, political and epidemic
uncertainties. In spite of the external and internal
uncertainties, the Group is confident that Hong Kong still has

competitive edge. We also believe that challenges always
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come with opportunities. Our strategies remain unchanged -
enlarge our revenue base by strengthening the existing core
businesses, tap into new emerging markets with expanded
business initiatives and explore business opportunities in the
PRC. The Group will devote increased resources to business
diversification and acquisition when opportunities arise, with
the view to strengthening our all-round business position in

Hong Kong and beyond.

In closing, on behalf of my fellow Directors, | wish to express
our sincere appreciation and wholehearted gratitude to the
management team and all staff of the Group for their
professional dedication, hard work, commitment and
contributions throughout the year. | would also like to extend
our sincere thanks to our shareholders and stakeholders for
their confidence and continuous support to the Group
throughout the year. We will continue to put efforts in creating

greater value for our shareholders and investors.

Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
26 March 2020

Annual Report 2019 £}

EEFEARRERF TS - ARRAAHDETS
MR AEEBRREZERAREEH
ARSREBZTICERREHWE - F#
ERESEREEREMMERZ 2T MMM

R AABRERZSESFAEEEEAKE
EREBE-—FZEMRA  BHRBAF
BURKR RO E o AN TR REEH & I R 82 H
MERALTBE —F - EXHARELERNA
EL— R -BHMEERES N REREER
RIREEEEEXREE-



VC Group is an established financial services group committed
to delivering premier financial services and products that fulfill
various investment and wealth management needs of clients
in the Greater China region. The Group's expertise includes (i)
provision of financial services comprising securities, futures
and options brokering and dealing, financing services,
corporate finance and other advisory services, asset
management and insurance brokerage; and (ii) proprietary

trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The HSI was moving up and down during 2019, gained more
than 9% or up 2,344 points to close at 28,189 points at the
end of 2019. Apart from the internal strife, external troubles
also persisted. The unending US-China trade war can be the
Achilles” heel of the global economy. Notwithstanding over a
year of negotiations, the two nations signed Phase 1 trade due
in January 2020, however, both nations continue to lock horns

over growing divisions, and comprehensive solution looks far
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off. Gross domestic product ("GDP") dropped at a year-on-
year rate of 1.2% in 2019, a decade low. GDP growth keep
on slips into the negative zone, Hong Kong technically enter
into recession. Therefore, prospects of the securities industry
for the coming year do not look particularly good. In fact, the
industry has started a natural selection process, in which a
number of small-scale securities trading firms have been
mercilessly eliminated during the year while only the fittest

and the most competitive bigger firms survived.

Although rumor has it that Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited ("HKEx") might be overtaken by Shenzhen or Macau,
Hong Kong remains a well-established international financial
hub with core strengths such as high international rankings in
terms of legal system, establishments, professional support,
human resources and offshore Renminbi ("RMB") trading over
the years. Hong Kong has an excellent track record and
topped the global chart of initial public offering (“IPO") fund
raising amount for 5 years in the past decade. The total
amount of IPO proceeds for the whole year reached
approximately HK$314.5 billion, making the city the top IPO
markets in the world. HKEx also continues to improve its
services and expand its global product portfolio during the
year. Such initiatives include the introduction of inline warrants
and weekly index options as well as the studies of simplifying
IPO processes, shortening settlement time for IPO and other

arrangements to further optimize the IPO system.

On the other hand, the Securities and Futures Commission
has strengthened its regulation on the financial industry, such
as tightening the guidelines for margin lending and introducing
the front-loaded regulation to eliminate the listing of shell and
fraudulent companies. These measures will foster the long-
term and healthy development of the financial market in Hong

Kong.
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As a financial services provider, the business performance of
the Group is inevitably impacted by both the macro
environment and local market conditions. Nevertheless, the
Group always thrived on its solid financial standing and its
various investment services and products offered to our
clients. All of these consolidated the Group as a competitive
player in the financial industry. While the financial-oriented
business makes the Group particularly sensitive to fluctuating
economic conditions and investors’ sentiments, our
fundamental strategy is firmly anchored and our core focus
remains on developing and fortifying the Group's core
businesses in provision of financial services including (i)
securities, futures and options brokering and dealing, and
financing services (including local and overseas securities
dealing, futures and options trading, derivatives and other
structured products trading, placement and underwriting,
margin financing and money lending, etc.); (ii) corporate
finance and other advisory services (including mergers and
acquisitions and company secretarial services to clients, etc.);
(iii) asset management; and (iv) insurance brokerage; and
proprietary trading. Indeed, the Group is committed to
achieving long-term and balanced growth on the basis of solid
financial capability and a pragmatic operating strategy, which
help capitalizing on any growth opportunities and thereon

enhance our shareholders’ value.
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Establishment of a joint venture securities company
in Guangx

In July 2016, the Company announced that VC Brokerage
Limited (“VC Brokerage”), an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement (the "Joint Venture Agreement”) with three
independent third parties to establish a joint venture securities
company in Guangxi, the PRC (the “PRC JV Company").
Subject to the approval by China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the “"CSRC"), the PRC JV Company is expected
to be a full-licensed securities company permitted to provide
securities brokerage, trading and investment advisory,
underwriting, sponsorship and asset management services in
the PRC. Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, VC
Brokerage will contribute RMB445 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$496 million), representing 44.5%
shareholding in the PRC JV Company.

The Company intended to finance the investment in the PRC
JV Company by placing of convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$850 million (the “Convertible
Bonds”) at an initial conversion price of HK$0.65 each
pursuant to a placing agreement entered into at the same
time. The aggregate net proceeds from placing of the
Convertible Bonds will be approximately HK$829 million,
which is intended to use for capital contribution to the PRC JV
Company and the remaining balance is intended to use for
expanding the Group's existing businesses and other possible

investments in the future, when opportunities arise.
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In June 2018, the Company was informed by Guangxi
Financial Investment Group Company Limited (B & @& &
E£@ARAR) (“"Guangxi Jintou"), who is responsible for
liaising with CSRC for the formation of the PRC JV Company,
partners of the PRC JV Company would be changed. Guangxi
Railway Investment Group Co., Ltd. (BFEKIEEEEER
‘~al) ("Guangxi Railway”) will replace Guangxi Hande Group
Company Limited (BEFA#fE&£ BB R 2 &) and Beijing
Heyuan Finance Equity Investment Centre (limited
partnership) (At R & REE S REHREF L(ERER)) as a
new partner of the PRC JV Company. The amount of capital
contribution and shareholding of VC Brokerage in the PRC JV
Company remains unchanged.

As further informed by Guangxi Jintou in September 2018,
Guangxi Communications Investment Group Co., Ltd. (EB#EX
MIEEEBARAT) will replace Guangxi Railway become
one of the joint venture partners of the PRC JV Company. The
amount of capital contribution and shareholding of VC
Brokerage in the PRC JV Company still remains unchanged.

On 21 May 2019, being the expiry date of the extended
placing period, the Company was unable to reach agreement
with the placing agent to further extend the placing period, the
placing agreement for the Convertible Bonds had lapsed on
that date.

As at the date hereof, the Company and VC Brokerage have
not yet obtained the approval and authorisation from the
CSRC for establishment of the PRC JV Company. Details of the
transaction please refer to the Company's announcements
dated 24 July 2016, 20 September 2016, 26 October 2016,
18 November 2016, 17 January 2017, 29 March 2017, 28
June 2017, 20 September 2017, 12 October 2017, 12
January 2018, 27 March 2018, 27 June 2018, 20 July 2018,
28 August 2018, 6 September 2018, 28 November 2018
and 21 February 2019; and the Company's circulars dated 26
September 2016, 27 February 2017, 22 September 2017, 23
February 2018, 3 August 2018 and 31 January 2019.
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Formation of joint venture company to act as a
sponsor to a limited partnership fund

On 22 September 2017, the Company entered into a legally
binding memorandum of understanding (the “2017 MOU")
with an independent third party (the “Party”) in relation to the
proposed formation of a joint venture company (the “JV
Company”) to act as a sponsor to a limited partnership fund
(the “Fund”) which will focus on infrastructure projects (the
“Proposed Joint Venture”). The 2017 MOU is subject to the
parties entering into formal agreements to set out the
definitive terms of the Proposed Joint Venture. The Company
shall have the right to acquire no less than 5% of the entire
issued share capital of the JV Company. The initial cost
required for the setting up of the JV Company and the Fund
(the “Organisation Expenses”) shall be borne equally between
the Company and the Party, provided that in any event, the
Company's provision of the initial cost shall be limited to
HK$7.5 million. As at 31 December 2019, the Company paid
an amount of HK$5.0 million for the Organisation Expenses.
As the Company was unable to reach agreement with the
Party to extend the 2017 MOU which was due on 30 June
2019, the 2017 MOU had lapsed on that date. Remaining
funds after expenses would be returned to the company upon
finalization of completion account. Details of the transaction
had been disclosed in the Company's announcements dated
22 September 2017, 5 January 2018, 27 June 2018, 28
December 2018 and 28 June 2019.
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Subscription of the increased registered capital in
Beijing Shuntong Taida Aviation Ground Service Co.,
Ltd.

On 27 February 2019, Massive Benefit (HK) Limited
("Massive Benefit”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Beijing Sky Jingshi Investment Co., Ltd., Beijing
Taihe Zhongcheng Management Technology Center and
Beijing Shuntong Taida Aviation Ground Service Co., Ltd. (the
“Target Company”) entered into an investment agreement
(the “Investment Agreement”) pursuant to which the Target
Company has agreed to conditionally increase its registered
capital by RMB2,117,600, and Massive Benefit has agreed to
conditionally make a capital investment of RMB15,000,000 in
cash to subscribe for the increased registered capital in the
Target Company with the premium to be accounted into
capital reserve of the Target Company. Upon completion,
Massive Benefit will directly hold 15% equity interest in the
Target Company and accordingly, the Company will thereby
indirectly hold 15% equity interest in the Target Company.

On 28 June 2019, due to business plan adjustment, the
parties to the Investment Agreement voluntarily entered into a
termination agreement (the “Termination Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the parties mutually agreed that the
Investment Agreement shall terminate and cease to have any
effect. Each party to the Termination Agreement has released
and discharged other parties from all their legal liabilities
under the Investment Agreement and shall have no claim
against each other. Details of the transaction had been
disclosed in the Company's announcements dated 27
February 2019 and 28 June 2019.
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Establishment of insurance brokerage business

On 27 March 2019, VC Financial Group Limited, a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
memorandum of understanding with Mr. Lo Ping Hung Eric, an
independent third party, to acquire the entire equity interest in
Experts Management Limited, an insurance broker company.
The formal sale and purchase agreement was made on 3 April
2019 and the acquisition was completed on the same date,

with the cash consideration of approximately HK$2.3 million.

Details of the Group’s business performance of each operating
segment for the year ended 31 December 2019, together
with the comparative figures of the corresponding period in
2018, are given in the section "FINANCIAL REVIEW" below.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2020, the development of the novel
Coronavirus epidemic will be critical. The globalised outbreak
already hit the global economy in a very tough way. With
respect to the ongoing US-China trade war, the fight between
the US and China is becoming a routine. Any agreement
between the two nations will probably be short-term. In
particular, Donald Trump, the president of the US, will turn
US-China relationship into his political leverage in the
upcoming presidential election in order to hold sway over the
public. As such, the trade war is going to intensify with more
and more battlegrounds, thereby impacting the global stock

market.

As to Hong Kong itself, uncertainties are expected to linger for
some while, and the city's society, economy and
competitiveness will suffer. Nevertheless, with the
perseverance and concerted efforts of the people of Hong

Kong, the city will tide over the difficulties.

RURBELER

R-ZE-NF=A-+tHB ARAEAZHEE
2EMBARERSREBEERARBRER

BEE(—BBILE=ZF)IL—HRBEE
TE LB AR B & 4L R AlExperts
Management LimitedZ & 8P A A4z o [E=
BEERHER T -NAFWNA=HIZ K
BEBEERRA-—BZK BE2RELA
2,300,000/ 7T °

ERAEESKEDHMNREBEEZE_FT—NLF
T_A=T - BULFEZEHRREFRN_F
—NFRPZHEBET BHEL2E T2 8
e B

'

SEoTE FLERAREABERS
SHR - ABDRERE LR - 2IE
EEAEEATSE - FEESHAHE
4R BB A - B R

REEMIEE L HE B EALLE
wARETEEREE BT ERES
FREREZIALA Bt EPRAY
BRI R TR - RS 2R -

WO
3 e
%

o

N

i

Rl

N
U]H: &

ERBEEFME  BRHPZEIEEREED
BEEHE —BREM BHERELERER
BEES SABRFNATRKRNEG HAR
BARLORE  ZHEMHFILTOEFBES
EREE BB BEER



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRAR AT

Annual Report 2019 £}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHE[EsT:/ &9 T

Our business strategies continue to include enlarging our
revenue base through fostering our core businesses, and
tapping into new emerging markets with expanded business
initiatives. While applying our excellent operational capabilities
to serve our clients, the Group will devote increased resources
to business diversification and acquisition when opportunities
arise, with the view to strengthening our all-round business
position in Hong Kong and beyond. The Group will continue
to explore the business opportunities in the PRC market. At
the same time, the Group also keeps a firm grasp on the
business opportunities with comparably positive growth and
return in the local financial market and more resources will
then be devoted.

LONG-TERM BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group's core businesses remain competitive with a focus

on provision of financial services and proprietary trading.

Throughout 2019, the Group did not make any significant
changes to its business strategy. Despite market volatility, the
Group safeguarded its competitive edge due to a number of
factors: clients established over the years, diverse premium
services that cater to clients’ needs, competitive fees and a
proactive and professional team that is dedicated to
innovation and exploration of new markets to drive greater

business returns for the investors and shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's

consolidated revenue was approximately HK$49.2 million,
which decreased by about 2.5% as compared with the same
period in 2018. The Group recorded a consolidated loss
attributable to shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$93.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
against a loss of approximately HK$486.3 million for the same
period in 2018, representing a significant decrease of about
80.8%.

The decrease in the Group's consolidated loss attributable to
shareholders in 2019 was mainly attributable to (i) absence
of loss on acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$47.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 versus a gain of approximately
HK$3.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019; (ii)
decrease in loss arising from fair value change on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$157.5 million; (iii) decrease in net realised and unrealised
loss on financial assets held-for-trading of approximately
HK$110.5 million; (iv) decrease in staff costs of approximately
HK$43.4 million; and (v) decrease in finance costs of

approximately HK$17.3 million.

To facilitate the review, the Group's revenue and segment
information shown in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements is reproduced below after some

rearrangements:
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Revenue Analysis Wz 2 A
2019 2018
—F-NF —T-)\F
Proportion Proportion
of total of total
revenue revenue
16 48 g 58 (=R Ea
ke i Lt 151
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THERT THET
Revenue from: KB TEIE
&
Brokerage and Financing R L mEXB 37,813 77% 36,721 73%
Brokerage commission KreEekE
and other related fees R E M 11,786 24% 18,185 36%
Underwriting, sub- B 08
underwriting, placing and i RE R
sub-placing commission SEERE 1,339 3% 360 1%
Interest income from RERLED
brokerage clients BFEZHE
LN 12,723 26% 9,234 18%
Interest income from KEWMEED
money lending clients B ZHE
LN 10,465 21% 7,942 16%
Other fees H A & H 1,500 3% 1,000 2%
Corporate Finance and Other 1> 2 g & & E fth
Advisory Services B ] AR 75 35 75 10,286 21% 13,753 27%
Asset Management BEBBER = = - -
Insurance Brokerage RS ET - = - -
Proprietary Trading BEEeBEEK 1,111 20 - _
Total revenue U s 49,210 100% 50,474 100%

Increase
(decrease)
N

Rt 2>)

%

3%

(35%)

272%

38%

32%
50%

(25%)

100%

(3%)
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Segment Analysis

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Segment results: DERE
Brokerage and Financing Ko M E ET 12,593 4,572
Corporate Finance and Other Advisory TERENEMEM RS ES
Services (2,784) (2,208)
Asset Management BETEER (1,601) (1,539)
Insurance Brokerage R SE S (484) -
Proprietary Trading BEEEER (28,434) (146,369)
Group segment loss SE o IEE (20,710) (145,544)
Gain (loss) on acquisition of financial WEER AT ENERERIERERE
assets at fair value through profit or loss — BRI2 7 Bf 7% & & 2 W (E518) 3,167 (47,436)
Fair value change on financial assets at ~ ZAFEYIR R EERERE
fair value through profit or loss CHBEEEZNFEE (20,161) (177,657)
Impairment loss on interest in an RES &R T2 B 2 REEE
associate (5,000) -
Unallocated administrative costs RO BATHRA (51,193) (115,327)
Share of loss of an associate DiE—RBE R R Z BE (63) an
Loss before tax B RS 1B (93,960) (485,975)
Income tax credit (expenses) FEBiER (FX) 591 (341)
Loss for the year attributable to RAGRIRREGFEER
shareholders of the Company (93,369) (486,316)
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Brokerage and Financing

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company,
through its indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, namely, VC
Brokerage and VC Futures Limited, provides securities, futures
and options brokering and dealing, margin financing, and
placing and underwriting services. It also through another
indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC Finance Limited ("VC
Finance"), provides money lending services. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the brokerage and financing
businesses recorded total revenue of approximately HK$37.8
million as compared with approximately HK$36.7 million for
the same period last year, representing an increase of about
3%, and accounted for about 77% of the Group's total

revenue.

The Group’s one of the major revenue streams, namely,
brokerage commission and other related fees from dealing in
securities, futures and options contracts for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$11.8 million,
which was about 35% lower than that of 2018 of
approximately HK$18.2 million, and accounted for about 24%
of the Group's total revenue. The Group's brokerage
transactions registered reduction throughout 2019 with
average daily trading turnover decreasing by about 37% as
compared to that of 2018. Other fees, mainly the handling
and consultancy fees of increased from approximately HK$1.0
million in 2018 to approximately HK$1.5 million in 2019. As a
result, the brokerage commission and other related fees and
other fees combined amounted to approximately HK$13.3
million in 2019 as compared to approximately HK$19.2

million, representing a decrease of about 31%.
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Meanwhile, the Group's total interest income from financing
for the year ended 31 December 2019 increased by about
35% to approximately HK$23.2 million from approximately
HK$17.2 million for the same period last year, and accounted
for about 47% of the Group's total revenue. The revenue
included the interest income derived from both the brokerage
business and the money lending business. Among these, the
Group's interest income from our brokerage clients recorded
approximately HK$12.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing an increase of about 38% as
compared to approximately HK$9.2 million for the same
period last year. The raise was mainly attributable to the
increase of average loan portfolio of our brokerage clients by
about 40% for the year ended 31 December 2019 as

compared with the same period last year.

As mentioned above, the Group also provides money lending
services to our clients. This aims at broadening our revenue
base and also offering our clients with more financial flexibility
to meet their personal and business needs. The Group's
interest income generated from the money lending services
was approximately HK$10.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing an increase of about 32% as
compared to approximately HK$7.9 million for the same
period last year. The increase was mainly contributed by a
slight increase of average loan portfolio of the money lending
business by 1.2 times in 2019 as compared with the same

period last year.
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The Group has put efforts on implementing our credit control
policies and procedures to review our clients’ creditworthiness
and credit limits from time to time so as to minimize our
credit risk exposure. The Group's credit control policies and
procedures are principally based on the doubtful unsecured
exposure having assessed the fair value of the clients’
collaterals held, the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of the client accounts. As the local economy had little
sign of recovery, the Group will take a more cautious approach
in provision of financing services. For the year ended 31
December 2019, there was an additional impairment loss of
approximately HK$7.0 million on client receivables from the
brokerage and financing businesses (2018: HK$12.8 million)
in accordance with the Group's credit control policies and
procedures. The Group will take all necessary legal actions
against the relevant clients to follow up the settlement of the
outstanding loans. Details of the impairment loss on the client
receivables had been disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Meanwhile, the Group offers placing and underwriting services
to our clients, and acts as placing agent and underwriter for
Hong Kong listed companies’ fund raising activities. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's placing and
underwriting commission was approximately HK$1.3 million as
compared with approximately HK$0.4 million for the same
period last year. The Group will continue to put efforts to
capture the opportunities towards the local IPO and other fund

raising exercises.

Overall, the brokerage and financing businesses recorded an
operating profit after tax of approximately HK$12.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared with a profit
of approximately HK$4.6 million for the same period last year.
The improvement of the operating performance in 2019 was
mainly due to reversal of impairment on a major client of
approximately HK$10.0 million following its settlement of loan,

and increased in loan portfolio as mentioned.

AEBBNEREEEZBRRLER  UT
RN EFPNEEEEREER  #EUKE
B EERRBRREREK AEBEZEEET
BEREFDFERBEERRERZER -
HUDNTREREEPERR 2 ATE AT
ERPIRIE Z AT E AR B A R BRER DT © B
RABLEEHRTREN AU ARNEBER
HEE RS A RKERE REENEE - 8
ET-AF+-A=Z+—ALLEFE " &R
AEBCZEREEARREEER AL
7,000,000 TRERK KL EBEEXBEP R
I8 2 FESNREEE (ZZ — \f : 12,800,000
BI) AEERAEBEFPER—VE
ERTH AREREBER KWK - FH
EWE P RIBREEE FBEREE MR
R EE249 5 o

SN AEBAEFPRHEE R BHRY -
WAEAERESLMARLTIEE TS 2RE
RERBHEE REBEZE-_ZTZ—-—AF+=A
=+—RALEFE AEEHG2REE R
& %9 /31,300,000 7T - i & F [A HA B 49
73400,00078 7T o 7N 5 B i 42 B 4% B E R A
ERABERAHAZERAEMEEETHME
2B o

BREME  SLKBEEBREZE_Z—1
FT+ZA=+—RIFE#E% 12,600,000
Bz BRBiEEE RN mEAFRAEEG
i M 494,600,000 7T c —F — NFZKE
RARSXEHNBEEH -—EBEEEMX
BEREEZEPMIEH ZREX10,000,000
BT AR EXCFTitE SR A AT B -



22

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER AT

Annual Report 2019 £}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EH[EsTs/ & o T

Corporate Finance and Other Advisory Services

The Company through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC
Capital Limited (“VC Capital”), provides corporate finance
advisory services to its clients. In 2019, VC Capital was
appointed as the financial adviser of several Hong Kong listed

companies for a number of corporate transactions.

The Company through its another indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, VC Corporate Services Limited, provides corporate
services, including company secretarial services, registered
office and business services, etc., to listed and private

companies.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company's
corporate finance and other advisory services recorded
revenue and operating loss after tax of approximately HK$10.3
million and HK$2.8 million as compared with approximately
HK$13.8 million and HK$2.2 million for the same period last

year, respectively.

Asset Management

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company's asset
management business, through its indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, VC Asset Management Limited, recorded an
operating loss after tax of approximately HK$1.6 million as
compared with a loss of approximately HK$1.5 million for the
same period last year, which mainly included the general

operating expenses such as staff costs and professional costs.
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The Group continues to pursue new business opportunities
and resources to develop its asset management business so
as to enhance our products and services offerings to cater for
the diverse and growing needs of our clients. In the past few
years, the local capital market was volatile and full of
uncertainties, which made the development of our asset
management business still difficult. Nevertheless, the Group
has continued to put efforts in approaching the potential
clients so as to gain understanding of their needs, establish
long-term business relationship with them and finally provide
the personalized investment and wealth management services

which can create greater value to them.

Insurance Brokerage

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
acquired the entire issued share capital of Experts Management
Limited which is principally engaged in the provision for
insurance brokerage services. This newly acquired subsidiary
owns insurance broker company licence and is entitled to
conduct long term insurance business. During the year, Experts
Management Limited recorded an operating loss of
approximately HK$484,000.

With the gradual establishment of sales team and penetration
through different sales channels, the Group is optimistic in the

future performance of this business segment.
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Proprietary Trading

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held equity securities
listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$162.1 million (31
December 2018: HK$240.3 million) as financial assets held-
for-trading, which was stated at market value. The fair value of
these listed equity securities represents about 19% of the
Group's total assets as at 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018: 21%). This segment did not provide positive result to
the Group due to the downturn of the Hong Kong capital
market during the year mainly caused by the various

uncertainties around the globe.

The Group invests mainly through purchases in the secondary
market. The management follows strictly the internal securities
investment policy and seeks the approval from the Board,
when necessary, so as to enhance the financial returns to the
shareholders and limit the risk exposure associated therewith.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was net
disposal in securities investment of approximately HK$75.9
million (2018: net purchase of HK$107.5 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$1.1 million (2018: Nil) from the
proprietary trading business, which was mainly the dividend
income received on the trading investments. Meanwhile, the
Group recognised a net loss of approximately HK$26.7 million
(including a realised loss of approximately HK$24.5 million
and an unrealised loss of approximately HK$2.2 million) on
the trading investments for the year ended 31 December
2019 as compared with a net loss of approximately HK$137.1
million (including a realised gain of approximately HK$2.8
million and an unrealised loss of approximately HK$139.9

million) for the same period in 2018.
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Below is an analysis of the financial assets held-for-trading

held by the Group as at 31 December 2019:

BZWBEESNMOT

Market value

AEER -_ZE-NF+-_A=1+—HFHEE

Unrealised
gain (loss)

for the year

as at Percentage ended

31 December  to the Group's 31 December

Industries 7% 2019 total assets 2019
BZE

—E-NF

t=ZRA=+t-H

R=Z-NF HAEE LEEZ

+t=ZRA=+-H BEE RERWE

ZhiE Bk (B18)

HK$'000 % HK$'000

FET FHET
Energy R 25,419 3.0% (18,321)
Information technology BRI 92,976 10.9% 34,757
Consumer goods and services HE MR RS 5,069 0.6% (20,927)
Properties and construction hEE R SR - 0% 4524
Materials JR## 14,453 1.7% (1,662)
Financials TR 7,758 0.9% (2,560)
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162,138 19.0% (2,246)

While the performance of different industries did vary, the
Group cautiously envisages the investment portfolio and shall

be determined to make any strategic moves.

Though the portfolio still recorded an unrealised loss for the
year ended 31 December 2019, the loss was substantially
reduced to approximately HK$2.3 million from approximately
HK$139.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Overall, the Group's proprietary trading business recorded an
operating loss after tax of approximately HK$28.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared with a loss
of approximately HK$146.4 million for the same period last
year.

Gain (loss) on acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Pursuant to the letter dated 25 October 2019, VC Brokerage
had made an instruction as a placing agent and intend to
acquire a 3-year 2.5%, unsecured non-refundable convertible
bonds issued by Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (“Asia
Energy” Stock code: 351) issued on 8 November 2019 for a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000. The initial conversion price of the convertible
bonds is HK$0.30 per share. The transaction was completed
on 14 November 2019 (“Asia Energy Convertible Bonds").
The fair value of the Asia Energy Convertible Bonds was
approximately HK$13.2 million as at the acquisition date and
hence a gain on acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$3.2 million was
recorded.

As disclosed in 2018 Annual Report, the Company is holding
the China Fortune Convertible Bonds in a principal amount of
HK$153,585,000 at initial conversion price of HK$0.06 each
for an aggregate consideration of HK$400.0 million on 8
January 2018. The consideration was satisfied in cash of
HK$40.0 million and by issue of the VC Convertible Bonds in
the principal amount of HK$360.0 million at initial conversion
price of HK$1.25 each. According to the valuation reports
prepared by an independent professional valuer, the fair
values of the China Fortune Convertible Bonds and the put
option as at 8 January 2018 were approximately HK$439.2
million and HK$28.0 million respectively and the fair value of
the VC Convertible Bonds as at 8 January 2018 was
approximately HK$474.7 million. As such, for the year ended
31 December 2018 the Group recognised a loss on
acquisition of the China Fortune Convertible Bonds of
approximately HK$47.4 million in profit or loss represented
the difference between the aggregate fair value of the China
Fortune Convertible Bonds and the put option and the
aggregate of cash consideration and fair value of the VC
Convertible Bonds on 8 January 2018.
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Fair value change on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The China Fortune Convertible Bonds were measured at fair
value with the fair value change recognised in profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2019, the fair values of the China Fortune
Convertible Bonds and the put option were approximately
HK$167.3 million and HK$116.4 million respectively in
accordance with a valuation report prepared by an
independent professional valuer. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group recognised the decrease in the
fair value of the China Fortune Convertible Bonds of
approximately HK$57.3 million and the increase in fair value

of the put option of approximately HK$36.9 million.

Unallocated administrative costs

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the unallocated
administrative costs amounted to approximately HK$51.2
million as compared with approximately HK$115.3 million for
the same period last year, which mainly included the
unallocated corporate operating expenses. The decrease in the
unallocated administrative costs of approximately HK$64.1
million in 2019 was mainly attributable to (i) the absence in
2019 of the portion of the equity-settled share option
expense of approximately HK$31.0 million pursuant to the
share options granted in January 2018; and (ii) reduction of
the effective interest expense of approximately HK$18.0
million incurred for the convertible bonds issued by the
company in January and June 2018; and (iii) reduction of the
corporate operating expenses incurred for the Group's
business development such as staff costs, entertainment and

travel expenses.
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Income tax credit (expense)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognized
an income tax credit of approximately HK$591,000 (2018:
income tax expense of HK$341,000) which included current
tax expense of approximately HK$32,000 (2018:
HK$922,000) and deferred tax credit of approximately
HK$623,000 (2018: deferred tax credit of HK$581,000). The
current income tax credit was made for the over provision of
Hong Kong Profits Tax charge in relation to the profitability
generated from the brokerage and financing businesses but
partially offset by the provision of PRC Enterprise Income Tax
in relation to the PRC representative offices of the Group. The
deferred tax credit was recognised mainly in relation to the
increase in accumulated tax loss of the Group, the convertible
bonds issued by the Company and unrealised gain on
financial assets held-for-trading for the proprietary trading

business.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$4.0 million (2018:
HK$21.3 million), out of which approximately HK$3.3 million
(2018: HK$21.2 million) was incurred pursuant to the
effective interest expense of convertible bonds issued by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019, together
with some finance costs incurred for the short-term bank
loans, in relation to the Group's brokerage and financing

businesses and interest expenses on lease liabilities.
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Headcount and employees information

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 63
employees (31 December 2018: 81), which excluded 16 self-
employed account executives for brokerage services (31
December 2018: 18), and 62 and 1 were located in Hong
Kong and the PRC respectively (31 December 2018: 75 and
6). Salaries and staff benefits costs (including the Directors’
emoluments) and staff commission amounted to
approximately HK$38.7 million and HK$1.9 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019 as
compared with approximately HK$78.2 million and HK$5.8

million respectively for the same period last year.

The decrease in the salaries and staff benefits costs of
approximately HK$39.5 million in 2019 was mainly
attributable to (i) the absence of the equity-settled share
option expense of approximately HK$19.8 million for the
share options granted in January 2018, (ii) decrease in
termination payments of approximately HK$5.2 million; and
(i) the staff related costs of approximately HK$14.5 million
saved due to average headcount reduction and other cost
control measures.

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their performance and qualifications. In
addition to basic salaries and participation in Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also provides medical
coverage, sales commission, discretionary and performance
related bonus, discretionary share options and share awards to
its employees. Meanwhile, employees are provided or funded
to attend training and development programs which are

relevant to their works.
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Liquidity and financial resources/capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group financed
its business operations and investments with internal
resources, cash revenue generated from operating activities

and convertible bonds.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy. As at 31
December 2019, almost all the bank balances and cash were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group intends to
maintain minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks. Further,
all the bank balances and cash were put in time deposits,
saving deposits and current accounts as at 31 December
20109.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not hold any banking
facilities. As at 31 December 2018, the Group held banking
facilities of HK$100 million granted from a bank to VC
Brokerage, which was required to be secured by bank deposits
of HK$40 million and corporate guarantee of HK$100 million
provided by the Company. Among the available banking
facilities, HK$40 million was general short-term money market
loan and current account overdraft. The other HK$50 million
was short-term money market loan for margin financing
business, which was required to be secured by VC Brokerage's
margin clients’ listed securities when utilised. The balance of
HK$10 million was used for drawings against uncleared
cheques. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had utilised an
amount of HK$40 million for the general short-term money

market loan, which bore an interest rate at 5.09% per annum.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank balances and
cash, net current assets and shareholders’ equity (other than
clients’ segregated accounts) amounted to approximately
HK$70.8 million (31 December 2018: HK$138.0 million),
HK$729.7 million (31 December 2018: HK$536.9 million)
and HK$785.9 million (31 December 2018: HK$1,039.3
million) respectively, representing a decrease of about 49%,
an increase of 36% and a decrease of 24% respectively as
compared with that of 31 December 2018. Current ratio,
expressed as current assets over current liabilities, remained
robust at about 26.0 times as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: 8.5 times). These showed that the Group
still maintained a solid financial position as at 31 December
20109.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the total
numbers of issued ordinary shares of the Company were
1,230,951,598.

Charges on group assets

The Group did not have any charged assets as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: HK$40.0 million
charge over its bank deposits to a bank for securing the

banking facilities granted to VC Brokerage).
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Foreign exchange exposure

It is the Group’s policy for all operating entities to use
corresponding local currency as much as possible so as to
minimize exchange related risks. For the year ended 31
December 2019, almost all of the Group's principal
businesses were conducted and recorded in Hong Kong
dollars. Impact from foreign exchange exposure was thus
minimal and no hedging against foreign currency exposure
had been necessary. In view of the operational needs, the
Group will continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure
from time to time and take necessary action to minimize the

exchange related risks.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities. As at 31 December 2018, the
Company had given financial guarantees of HK$100.0 million
to a bank in respect of banking facilities of HK$100.0 million
provided to VC Brokerage as mentioned in the section

“Liquidity and financial resources/capital structure” above.

So far as known to the Directors, there was no other litigation
or claim of material importance in which the Group is engaged

or pending or which was threatened against the Group.
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Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio,
expressed as total borrowings (being the bank borrowings,
lease liabilities and liability portion of convertible bonds) over
shareholders’ equity, was approximately 0.05 time (31

December 2018: 0.06 time).

Significant investments held, their performance and
future prospects

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's held the

following significant investments:

18% interest in Hackett Enterprises Limited

As disclosed in 2018 Annual Report, Apex Treasure
International Limited, the Company's indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, is holding 18% of the entire issued share capital of
Hackett Enterprises Limited (“Hackett Enterprises”) at an
acquisition consideration of HK$160,000,000. Hackett
Enterprises and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of loan financing and financial consultancy services
in the PRC and the provision of money lending services in

Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the above interest
in Hackett Enterprises was valued at HK$47.1 million against
that of approximately HK$207.1 million as at 31 December
2018. As a result, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$160.0 million was recorded for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the difference was charged under the
other comprehensive income. The decrease in fair value was
mainly attributable to the reduction in the PRC money lending
demands leading to drop in loan portfolios. In addition,
financial consultancy income also slowed down in line with

the PRC financial market trend.

Though the Group is still optimistic in financing business in
the PRC, given the uncertainties scattered around the global
economy, the Group will review the investment on regular

basis to formulate the best strategy on it.
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Financial assets held-for-trading

Included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2019 was the Group's investment in 32,606,000
shares or approximately 7.89% of IBO Technology Company
Limited (Stock Code: 2708) with fair value of approximately
HK$92.6 million, which amounts to approximately 10.9% of
the Group’'s total assets. The investment cost was
approximately HK$36.7 million. Its share price has increased
by approximately 65% during the year ended 31 December
2019. Given the significant movements during the year, the
Group will review its performance closely and take the most
appropriate for the benefits of the shareholders of the

Company.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's did not

have any material acquisitions or disposals.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets and their expected sources of funding in the
coming year

As at 31 December 2019 and as at the date hereof, the
Group had no other known plans with regard to material
investments or capital assets and their expected sources of
funding in the coming year except for the formation of the
joint venture securities company in the PRC. Material capital
expenditure will be incurred when the Group begins to pursue
different investments or projects in the coming years. The
Group will finance the respective investments or projects by
using its internal resources and/or different financing options

available, whichever should be deemed appropriate.

Meanwhile, as at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have
any significant commitments contracted but not provided for
in respect of purchase of property and equipment. Details of
the Group’s commitments are disclosed in Note 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Events after the reporting period

Major Transaction in relation to Disposal of the Relevant
Convertible Bonds by Exercising the Put Option

References are made to the announcement of the Company
dated 18 October 2017 (the “Announcement”) and the
circular of the Company dated 7 December 2017 (the
“Circular”), in relation to, among other things, the Acquisition.
On 18 October 2017, it was announced that the Company,
Pacific Alliance Limited (“PAL") and the Warrantors entered
into the Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the
Company agreed to purchase, and PAL agreed to sell, the
Convertible Bonds issued by China Fortune Financial Group
Limited (“CFFG CB") with a principal amount of
HK$153,585,000 convertible into 2,559,750,000 CFFG
Conversion Shares at the initial conversion price of HK$0.06
per CFFG Conversion Share (subject to adjustments) for an
aggregate consideration of HK$400,000,000. Also, pursuant to
the Sale and Purchase Agreement, PAL granted to the
Company the Put Option to require PAL to purchase from the
Company the Relevant Convertible Bonds, to the extent of
HK$76,792,500 (being 50% of the principal amount of the
CFFG CB), at the Put Option Price, which approximates the
cost of acquisition of the Relevant Convertible Bonds by the
Company under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, at any
time during the Put Option Period on the condition set out in

the Circular.
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On 24 January 2020, the Board announces that an agreement
was entered into between the Company and PAL, pursuant to
which the Company shall sell and transfer, as legal and
beneficial owner, the Relevant Convertible Bonds to PAL and
PAL shall purchase the Relevant Convertible Bonds free from
all encumbrances and third party rights of any kind and
together with all rights, including all rights to receive any and
all redemption money and interest as well as other payments
made or to be made by CFFG under and pursuant to the
CFFG CB Instrument.

The Disposal constitutes a major transaction of the Company
and is therefore subject to the notification, announcement,
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company will convene
the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") for the
Shareholders to consider, and if appropriate, approve the
Disposal. On 19 March 2020, the EGM was convened and

shareholders’ approval were obtained thereat.
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Disposal of the Group's entire holding of 30% interest
in Telebox Technology Holdings Limited

On 20 March 2020, Initial Honour Limited (“Initial Honour"),
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Chen Yu Zhen,
an independent third party, to dispose the Initial Honour's
entire holding of 30% interest in Telebox Technology Holdings
Limited, at a cash consideration of HK$5,000,000.
HK$1,000,000 was received as at the date of the report.

The novel Coronavirus

The widespread of the novel Coronavirus all over the world
since the beginning of 2020 poses challenges to nearly all the
industries in the society. The Group has been closely
monitoring the impact of the development on the Group's
business and taken all possible effective measures to limit and
keep the impact in control. Based on the information currently
available, the management does not foresee material adverse
impacts on the financial position of the Group. Nonetheless,
the degree of impact on the financial position may be

different when more information is available.
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DIRECTORS
FU Yiu Man, Peter
Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Fu, aged 64, joined the Group in July 2016 and has been
appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director in March
2018. Currently, Mr. Fu is the chairman of the Executive
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Fu is an independent non-executive director of
Beijing North Star Company Limited (Stock Code: 588), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong.

Mr. Fu obtained a bachelor's degree from Wharton Business
School of the University of Pennsylvania in the U.S. He has
served in various senior positions in BNP Paribas, Peregrine,
Baring Securities, UBS, Citigroup Inc., CCB International and
CCB International (China), etc. He served as the vice-president
of GCL-Poly Group since November 2013. For the period from
March 2014 to June 2016, Mr. Fu had been re-designated as
the vice-president of GCL Oil and Gas Company. He was
responsible for overseas finance and M&A business for the oil
and gas projects of the company. Mr. Fu has almost 40 years
of experience in financial management and securities

business.

TIN Ka Pak, Timmy
Executive Director

Mr. Tin, aged 43, joined the Group as Executive Director in
July 2011. Currently, he is a member of the Executive
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the

Company.

Mr. Tin holds a Bachelor degree of Business Administration
from Oxford Brookes University in the United Kingdom. He has
over 10 years management experience in listed companies,
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, duties including group management, strategic

planning, investment evaluation and investor relationship.
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LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo
Executive Director

Mr. Lin, aged 49, joined the Group in January 2014 and has
been appointed as the Executive Director in April 2015.
Currently, he is a member of the Executive Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin is a
director of China Fortune Foundation Limited and the
Honorary Secretary of Hong Kong Skating Union Limited (the
associate member of the Sports Federation and Olympic
Committee of Hong Kong). He is also an executive director of
Hong Kong Wenchang Natives Association, Commander of
Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol of (Kowloon East Region)
Railway District, Honorary President of JPC of Tseung Kwan O
District and the Honorary President of the Building Healthy

Kowloon City Association.

Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
and a Master of Science Degree in Marketing. The Institute of
Crisis and Risk Management awarded Mr. Lin as Fellow of
Certified Risk Planner in November 2019. He has over 20
years' experience in corporate development and business

strategy.
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WONG Chung Kin, Quentin
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 48, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wong is the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He has set up his own practice, Quentin Wong & Co. Certified
Public Accountants (Practising) since 1 January 2005, and set
up Quentin Wong & Co. CPA Limited in 2020. Mr. Wong is
currently an independent non-executive director of China
Trends Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8171), a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and
Creative Enterprises Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3992), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors. Meanwhile, he is a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
& Wales. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting and Financial Management from University of
Essex and a master degree of Science in Internal Auditing and
Management from The City University, London. He has over
15 years working experience in audit and accounting gained
from a sizeable international firm and has over 10 years of

practicing experience.
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WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MH
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 53, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in May 2013. Mr. Wong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Wong is a substantial shareholder and a director
of a design and printing company. He has over 20 vyears'
experience in design and printing industry. Mr. Wong was the
executive director and chairman of the board of China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 290), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2015 to January 2017.

Mr. Wong has been dedicating to wide range of community
services in Hong Kong and Southern China. He is the director
of Sik Sik Yuen, the committee member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Guangzhou, Liwan and
chairman/vice chairman of a number of non-profit

organizations.
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SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, aged 62, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in October 2016. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Siu is an independent non-executive director of
Excalibur Global Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8350), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. He is also a director of DBG Technology Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 300735), a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Meanwhile, Mr. Siu is also a director of a
consultancy firm and engineering firm. He was an
independent non-executive director, and later on re-
designated as an executive director, of Asia Energy Logistics
Group Limited (Stock Code: 351), from August 2016 to
March 2018 and from March 2018 to November 2018,
respectively. Mr. Siu was also an independent non-executive
director of Sheung Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1633) from October 2016 to January 2019. Both companies
above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He
had served in many public listed companies as senior
management and has over 25 years of managerial experience
in general management, commerce, banking, finance, real

estate development and construction business.

Mr. Siu is actively participating in public affairs and charitable
activities. He is the vice president of the Association of Hong
Kong Professionals and the Hong Kong Real Property
Federation, the honorary president of the Hong Kong Kowloon
City Industry and Commerce Association and the chairman of

the Building Healthy Kowloon City Association.
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Mr. Siu graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Polytechnic Associateship in Building Technology and
Management and a Master of Science in Electronic
Commerce. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(General Practice Stream), Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (General Practice Stream) and Chartered Institute of
Arbitrator. Mr. Siu is an Authorized Person under the Hong
Kong Building Ordinance of the Government of the HKSAR. He
is also a Registered Professional Engineer (Building Stream)
and a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice

Stream).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
LAI Yick Fung
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Mr. Lai, aged 49, joined the Group as chief financial officer in
April 2018. He has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company in May 2018. Mr. Lai obtained a Master of
Science Degree in Financial Management in the University of
London and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Lai was an executive
director of China Eco-Farming Limited (Stock Code: 8166),
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong, from July 2015 to March 2018. Mr. Lai had worked for
an international accounting firm and a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong and the United States as senior
management and has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, financial management and company secretarial

practice.
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The board (the “Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. As such, the maintenance of a high
standard of corporate governance has been and remains a top
priority of the Group (the Company and its subsidiaries). The
Group is committed to promoting and maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance, with the objectives of (i)
the maintenance of responsible decision making; (ii) the
improvement in transparency and disclosure of information to
shareholders; (iii) the continuance of respect for the rights of
shareholders and the recognition of the legitimate interests of
shareholders; and (iv) the improvement in management of

risk and the enhancement of performance by the Group.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE PROVISION OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2019, except for the following

deviations:

i. Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. All the Non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for specific
term. However, under the Article 97 of the Articles of
Association of the Company (the "Articles of
Association”), all Directors, including non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in the annual general meeting of the Company
and each Director is effectively appointed under an
average term of three years. The Company does not
believe that arbitrary term limits on directors’ service are
appropriate given that directors ought to be committed to
representing the long term interests of the Company's
shareholders, and the retirement and re-election
requirements of non-executive directors have given the
Company's shareholders the right to approve continuation

of non-executive directors’ offices.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEe

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for EE&€BFREREIEADNAMNERES T -
promoting the success of the Company by the Director and EFEBBEBAQNANEBELES  REN
supervision of the Company's business and affairs and the RAEEX - MEECSCRETERE ¥
ultimate responsibility for the day to day management of the AAFRIMNABEEEAERKEE SEFY
Company, which is delegated to the management. Each BETUARBFIEBKFEERITE °

Director has a duty to act in good faith in the interests of the

Company.

i. Board Composition i.

The Board currently comprises a total of 6 Directors, with
3 Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter
(Chairman), Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy and Mr. Lin Hoi
Kwong, Aristo; and 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin, Mr.
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, mH and Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH.

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. No
Director falls into this Article at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, one
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office, thus becoming eligible for re-election at each
annual general meeting of the Company. The Directors to
retire every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election. As such, Mr. Lin Hoi
Kwong, Aristo and Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and

being eligible to offer themselves for re-election.
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Biographical details of the retiring Directors have been set
out in a circular, which will be sent to shareholders
together with this Annual Report, to assist shareholders to

make an informed decision on their re-elections.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors, all of whom
are independent of the management of the Group's
businesses, are highly experienced professionals with
substantial experience in areas such as legal, accounting
and financial management. Their mix of skills and
business experience is a major contribution to the future
development of the Group. They ensure that matters are
fully debated and that no individual or group of
individuals dominates the Board's decision making
processes. In addition, they facilitate the Board to
maintain a high standard of financial and other
mandatory reporting and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2019. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the

terms of the guidelines in 2019.
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Securities Dealings by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities dealings on terms as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry
of the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by

Directors as set out in the Model Code in 2019.

The Board has also established a “Code of Securities
Dealings by Relevant Employees” for relevant employees
of the Company to regulate their dealings in the
securities of the Company so as to comply with the
directors’ obligations under code provision A.6.4 of the
CG Code.

Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction package to
ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company's operation and business as well as his/her
duties and responsibilities of directors under statutory
regulations and the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary
also provides the updates on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and

regulatory requirements to the Board from time to time.

S
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Meanwhile, the Directors are provided with monthly

updates on the Group's financial performance, position

and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing

professional development to develop and refresh their

knowledge and skills. During the year, each Director had

participated in continuous professional development by

attending seminars/workshops/reading materials on the

following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge

and skills and had provided the training records to the

Company.

Name of Directors

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy

Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH

Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH

Note:

E/na [=]
N EEBAHESERASREIMK
KRB -RARFRZ2HZMER  UEE
FERBLREFETHERS -
RARBBEESTL2EFEFEEI -
VA3 = I 39 508 2 B AR R R A FT o R
AEE ZEFHE2EBBEIER
il BELEEANTER 2EXE
T/ BEEBUTEBZER MU
IR H AN R B R AR o R F
HEMARFRRIENGZE -
Topics on
EEnA Training covered’
FIEE"
T HE X 5 (@) & (b)
HRMBEE (@ & (b)
EETIRE (a) & (b)
N (@) & (b)
&AL, MH (@ & (b)
BRI 3SR A, MH (a) & (b)
EE

1. Topics on training covered (a) Regulatory and corporate

governance updates; and (b) Finance related issues.
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v. Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance (“D&O Insurance”) coverage on
Directors’ and senior management's liabilities in respect
of legal actions against them arising out of corporate
activities of the Company. The D&O insurance will be

reviewed and renewed annually.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year and additional meetings are held as and when required
to discuss significant events or important issues. At least 14
days notice is given for regular Board meetings to all Directors
enabling them to attend and reasonable notice will be given
in case of special board meetings. Agenda accompanying
board papers are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each regular board meeting. The Group ensures that
appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group’s latest developments thereby assisting them in

discharge of their duties.

The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company attended the board meetings to advise on statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters of the Group. All
businesses transacted at the meetings were documented and
maintained in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

In 2019, the Board had held a total of 5 meetings. The details
of the attendance record of each member of the Board for
2019 are provided in the section "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF
THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS” below.
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PROCEDURE TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO SEEK
INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company, the Board has established written procedures to
enable the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company's expense,
in appropriate circumstances. No request was made by any

Director for such independent professional advice in 2019.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

i. Management Functions
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the board committees and the management. Both the
Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The Board
has established in writing which issues require decision
of the full Board and which can be delegated by the

Board to the board committees or management.

ii. Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and to
facilitate effective management, certain functions of the
Board have been delegated by the Board to various
board committees, namely, executive committee, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The committees review and make

recommendations to the Board on specific areas.

Each committee has its defined scope of duties and
terms of reference and the committee members are
empowered to make decisions on matters within the
terms of reference of each committee. The terms of
reference of the board committees are given at the
Company’s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee is made up of the Company's
Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman),
Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo and the
Company's senior management (non-voting capacity), namely,
Mr. Lai Yick Fung.

It oversees the implementation of the Company's strategic
objectives and risk management policies and the business and
operations of all of the business units of the Group.
Meanwhile, it is also responsible to develop, review and
monitor the Group's corporate governance policies and
practices. It holds meetings from time to time to discuss the
Group's financial and operational matters and other new
projects. Other details of the roles and functions of the
Executive Committee are given at the Company's website

under the section “Corporate Governance”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chung
Kin, Quentin (Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH and
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH. Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management
expertise, as requested by the Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing

Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review
the Group's financial statements and published reports; (b) to
provide advice and comments thereon to the Board; and (c)
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. Other details of the
roles and functions of the Audit Committee are given at the
Company’'s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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In 2019 the Audit Committee had held a total of two
meetings, among other matters, to review the Group's final
results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The details of
the attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee for 2019 are provided in the section
“ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kam
Choi, Kerry, mH (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on policies and structure for remuneration of directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration, determines the remuneration packages for
executive directors and senior management and makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors. Other details of the role and function of
the Remuneration Committee are given at the Company's

website under the section “Corporate Governance”.

In 2019, the Remuneration Committee had held one meeting,
among other matters, to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
details of the attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee for 2019 are provided in the
section “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT
BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETINGS" below.
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Remuneration Policy

The formulation of the Group's remuneration strategy and
policy is based on the principles of equity and market
competitiveness so as to drive staff to work towards the
mission of the Group and to retain talents. As a long-term
incentive plan and with the aim of motivating Directors
and employees in the continued pursuit of the
Company's goal and objectives and to recognize their
contributions to the Group, the Company has adopted
the share option scheme under which the Company may
grant share options to the Directors/selected employees/
eligible persons to subscribe for the shares of the
Company and two share incentive award schemes,
namely, The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust and The
VC Share Award Scheme Trust, under which the
Company may grant awarded shares to the Directors/
selected employees (Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries are not allowed to participate in The VC
Share Award Scheme Trust).

Emoluments of Directors

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with
regard to the performance of individuals, the Company's
operating results and market standards. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has (i) considered and reviewed the salary of
Directors and senior management of the Group; and (ii)
considered the discretionary bonus payments for

Directors and senior management of the Group.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is made up of the Company's

Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Miu

Man, Simon, mH (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin

and Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH.
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The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; identifies individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and makes recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

Other details of the role and function of the Nomination
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section "Corporate Governance”.

In 2019, the Nomination Committee had held one meeting,
among other matters, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board of the Company, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
recommended to the Board for consideration the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The details of the
attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee for 2019 are provided in the section
“ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of the Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Nonetheless, the ultimate
responsibility for selection and appointment of the Directors

rests with the entire Board.
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From the needs of the Company's business development, the
Nomination Committee may take such measures as it deems
appropriate to identify and evaluate candidates when it
considers necessary to recommend directors to the Board. The
Company Secretary is required to convene a Nomination
Committee Meeting and invites the Board members to
nominate candidates (if any) for the Nomination Committee
to consider before the meeting. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates who are not nominated by the
Board members. The Nomination Committee will evaluate,
select and recommend candidate(s) for directorships to the
Board by giving due consideration to the selection criteria
which include, but are not limited to, diversity of the Board,
commitment for responsibilities, qualifications on both
accomplishment and experience, independence of
independent non-executive directors, reputation for integrity,
potential contributions to the Board, and any plan(s) in place
for the orderly succession of the Board. In order for the
proposal to be effective, the recommendation must clearly
state the nomination intention and the candidate agrees to be
nominated. The personal profile must include and/or be
accompanied by full details of the candidate required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules, including the information
and/or confirmation required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing

Rules.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity
policy in September 2013. The main purpose of the policy is
to achieve diversity on the Board. Based on the policy, the
selection of candidates for board membership will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited,
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Details of the Board Diversity Policy are given at the
Company’'s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT
BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS
AND GENERAL MEETINGS

<N

=]

S

EXZEER ESZEEEERR
RAEZESHELH

Attendance record of Directors in 2019
“E-NFEESHERE

Audit Remuneration

Board  Committee ~ Committee
Name of Directors EEpg Meeting Meeting Meeting

Ex® ENZEg® HFMzEe

g3 g3 g3

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter MR EE 5/5  NARER  NATER
Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy HRALE 55  NATER  NATER
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo EBIRE 55 NATER  NATER
Mr. Xie Jintai' ABRLL /1 NARER  NATER
Mr. Zhang Min? RE KA 3/ NATER  NATER
Mr. Jiang Tian® EREHES 2/2 N/AMMER N/ATER
Ms. Lu Mengjia* EZrat /1 NATER  NATER
Independent Non-executive Directors BV #H7TEE
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin BRBEAE 5/5 2/2 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, M+ HIRETAE, W 5/5 2/2 11
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH BY LA, wH 5/5 2/2 11
Mr. Chiang Ho Wai® BEREES 1/1 11 NATER
Notes: Hiat -
1. Mr. Xie Jintai had resigned as an Executive Director with effect 1.

from 20 May 2019.

2. Mr. Zhang Min had resigned as an Executive Director with effect 2.

from 3 December 2019.

3. Mr. Jiang Tian had resigned as an Executive Director with effect 3.

from 1 April 2019.

4. Ms. Lu Mengjia had resigned as an Executive Director with effect 4.

from 6 May 2019.

5. Mr. Chiang Ho Wai had resigned as an Independent Non- 5.

executive Director with effect from 1 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies have been
adopted and applied consistently, and that judgments and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements and the reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor are set out on pages 112 to 116 of this Annual

Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

i. Responsibility
The Group has established a policy for managing
business risk and to:

a. define the roles and responsibilities of the relevant

parties in the risk management process;

b. provide a practical framework to the management

for mitigating various risks; and

c.  promote risk awareness within the Group.
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The Directors and the Board Committees have an
oversight role to determine that appropriate risk
management processes are in place and that these
processes are adequate and effective. The Directors
should determine the level of risk that the Board is willing
to accept in pursuit of its business objectives by
considering whether the risk against reward ratio is
appropriate. Management should be responsible for the
identification, assessment and mitigation of material risks
faced by the business unit(s)/group function(s) which
they are responsible for. The management should also
regularly conduct review and monitoring of the Group's
compliance with the risk management process, system

and internal control.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and
the Group's assets; to maintain proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information; and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
It aims to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement, fraud or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to

achieve the Group's business objectives.
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Management Supervision

The Board has assigned the Executive Committee to
oversee the implementation of the Group’s internal
control and risk management and to monitor the

business and operations continuously.

The Executive Committee and management have defined
the organizational structure of the Group with clear
reporting lines and authorities. Competent personnel are
recruited to facilitate the establishment and maintenance

of the risk management.

System and procedures are in place to identify, control
and report on the major types of risks. The management
endorses policies, procedures, codes and guidelines to
mitigate significant inherent risks embedded in the
operational and financial activities. The “Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics” is formulated and communicated to
all staffs with the aim of cultivating high integrity and

ethical values within the Group.

The Group operates multiple lines of defenses to effect a
robust control framework. At the first level, the operating
business and support units are responsible for the day-
to-day management of risks inherent in the various
business activities. The second line of defense sets the
policy and guidelines for managing specific risk areas,
provides advice and guidance in relation to the risk.
Internal audit function forms the third line of defense
which evaluates significant risk exposure and contributes
to the improvement of the risk management and control

systems.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group has in place an internal audit function within
the Group as required under code provision C.2.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The annual internal audit
plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
During the year under review, the Group has engaged an
independent professional adviser (“Internal Control
Adviser") to perform independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of certain subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control system for the year.
The Internal Control Adviser reports directly to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Control Adviser independently
reviews and assesses the design and the effectiveness of
the major subsidiaries’ system of internal control by
adopting a risk-based audit approach, focusing on major
processes and activities which are quantitatively or
qualitatively significant to the Group. The Internal Control
Adviser reports all significant internal control and risk

management matters to the Audit Committee.

Audit Committee Supervision

The Board acknowledge their responsibility for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee has been assigned by the Board to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control procedures of the Group. The Board also, through
the Audit Committee, has conducted an annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group's system of risk
management and internal control covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance

controls.
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The Audit Committee conducts regular meetings with
Senior Management, the Internal Control Adviser and
external auditor to review the financial statements and
auditor’s reports on financial and internal control matters.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant
internal control matters, suspected frauds or irregularities,
alleged infringement of laws and regulations, which come

to their attention.

The Audit Committee, through the Internal Control
Adviser, has conducted comprehensive risk assessments
and internal control reviews on the design and the
effectiveness of the major subsidiaries’ system of risk
management internal control for the year ended 31
December 2019, which covers the key controls for
mitigating the major risks associated with the significant
processes. During the year under review, no major issue

but areas for improvement have been identified.

The Audit Committee has considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are
appropriately designed and effective. The Audit
Committee has also assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experience, training programmes and
budget of staff of the Group’s Finance Department and

internal audit function and considered that it is adequate.
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v. Inside Information v

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the

Group:

a. has developed Inside Information Disclosure Policy
in relation to the disclosure of inside information
about the Group companies, its officers and
substantial shareholders. The disclosure can
communicate such information to investors for

investment decision on equal and informed basis;

b. has established Corporate Communications Policy
for responding to all media related inquiries,
interviews and conference on the corporate issues.
Authorized person are assigned to act as
spokespersons to speak on behalf of the Group and

to respond to external enquiries; and

¢ has included in its Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics a strict prohibition for all employees of the
Group on the unauthorized use of confidential or

inside information.
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DIVIDEND POLICY IR B B X
The Board has considered the general principles that it ZE&fEEZREKE (BEREHE)FK
currently intends to apply when recommending dividends for  EiR{E A HIR B85 - © £ B H B a1 E R

approval by the shareholders or when declaring any interim 2 —fRR 8| - EES A et L — B EHHEF
dividends. The actual dividend that the Board may EEHHETERE BEERELEBTT
recommend or declare in respect of any particular financial HERERZBESRIERBZENEMREMR
year will be subject to the factors outlined below as well as iR - BB A E BN L P AR 3% -

any other factors deemed relevant by the Board. Dividend

may be distributed either in cash, or in the form of shares.
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The dividend policy is as follows:

« In determining the dividend payment ratio in respect of
any particular financial year, the Board will take into
account a desire to maintain and potentially increase
dividend levels within the overall objective of maximizing
shareholder's value over the longer term, and;

« If an annual dividend in respect of a financial year is to
be paid, the dividend would generally be paid in form of
an interim and a final dividend.

In considering the level of dividend payments, if any, upon

recommendation by the Board, various factors will be taken

into account, including:

«  the level of cash and retained earnings;

«  the expected financial performance;

«  the projected levels of capital expenditure and other

investment plans;

. the taxation consideration;

«  the possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness;

«  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

« any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to

declare or distribute any dividend in any financial year.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, audit and non-audit

services provided by the external auditor of the Company, are

BB ET &

BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILEFE &
REIMNERZBRD P IR (2 B R IE B IRTE

as below: LU
SHINEWING Deloitte Touche
(HK) CPA Limited Tohmatsu Total
BB (EFE)
SHAERE Y -BERS
BRAF BT @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER
Audit services EURH
Audit of the consolidated financial statements BRAREHE_Z-NET2R
of the Group for the year ended 31 December ST-BLEFRZGaBBER
2019 and the review of the preliminary REMAEBEZE-Z-NF
announcement of the result of the Group TZA=T-RALEFEL
for the year ended 31 December 2019 NI RERD 1,080 - 1,080
Reversal of provision made for the review of the ROGEHAEEHE_S—+F
preliminary announcement of the result of TZA=ZT-BIEFEY
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017~ M H£E N MH{E 2 Bl - (20) (20)
Non-audit services *ERRYE
Provision of taxation services for the year ended REE_E-NETA=1—-H
31 December 2019 I FERER B R 137 - 137
Additional taxation services fee and disbursement  HEZE-Z-N\E¥+-A=1—H
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZENRBRHEEA XL 24 - 24
1241 (20) 1221
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matter. The
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less

than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2019.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the value of providing current and
quality information to its Shareholders, both individual and
institutional. It also recognizes the importance of maintaining
continuous communication with Shareholders and constantly
looks for ways to ensure the Group maintains an open and

ongoing dialogue with the existing and potential Shareholders.

i. Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy to ensure an effective ongoing
dialogue with Shareholders. Such policy shall be reviewed
by the Board on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. Details of the Shareholders’
Communication Policy are given at the Company’s

website under the section “Corporate Governance”.

ii. The Company’'s Website

The Company's website at www.vcgroup.com.hk provides
comprehensive and most updated information about the
Company, including financial results, announcements,
circulars, composition of the Board/Board committees
and their respective terms of reference, biographical
information of Directors and Senior Management, and
other corporate documents such as Articles of Association

and other policies adopted by the Company.
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Annual General Meeting

The Company regards the annual general meeting
("AGM") an important event as it provides an opportunity
for the Board to communicate with the Shareholders.
Notice of AGM and related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting.
The Company supports the CG Code's principle to
encourage Shareholders’ participation. Questioning by the

Shareholders at the AGM is encouraged and welcomed.

Enquiries

The Company Secretary responds to letters and
telephone enquiries from Shareholders/investors.
Shareholders and investors are welcomed to raise
enquiries through the Company’'s email contact info@
vcgroup.com.hk or by mail to our Company Secretary at
6th Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of General Meetings

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), Shareholders of the Company who
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may request the Directors of the Company
to convene general meetings. The requisition must state
the general nature of business to be dealt with at the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company at 6th
Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended

to be moved at the meeting.
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The Directors must proceed to convene a general
meeting within 21 days from the date of receipt of the
requisition. Such meeting should be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given. If the Directors fail to
convene the general meeting as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the meeting. Any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.

For more details, Shareholders may refer to the

requirements as set out in the Companies Ordinance.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote, or
at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote may (a) put forward proposal at general meeting;
and (b) circulate to other Shareholders written statement
with respect to matter to be dealt with or other business

to be dealt with at general meeting.

The requisition must be sent to the Company in hard
copy or in electronic form and must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given. It must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and be received by the
Company not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request related, or, if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

For more details on the Shareholders’ qualifications, and
the procedures and timeline, in connection with the
above, Shareholders may refer to the Sections 580 and

615 of the Companies Ordinance.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the constitutional documents

of the Company in 2019.

The consolidated version of the Company's Articles of
Association is given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.
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The Board (the “Board") of Directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019, together with the audited comparative

figures for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year including the
description of the Group’s business and its external
environment, business objectives and strategies, business
model and development and principal performance drivers are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 37

respectively of this Annual Report.

Further, the Management Discussion and Analysis also
contains the information about the Group's financial
performance analysis and financial position assessment,
number and remuneration of employees and remuneration
policies, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that had occurred since the year ended 31 December 2019

and the Group's likely future development in business.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group encourages environment protection, complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environment protection to the employees. The careful use of
resources and adoption of the best practices across the
Group's business shows our commitment towards
environmental protection. The Group adheres to the principle
of Recycling and Reducing. Stationeries such as envelopes,
letterheads and business cards, as well as interim reports and
annual reports delivered to the shareholders are printed on
environmentally friendly paper. It also implements green office
practices such as encouraging double-sided printing and
copying. Obsolete computer equipments, after removal of data
storage devices, are either donated to charities or passed to
recyclers together with used computer consumables such as

ink and toner cartridges.

Compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
financial services business

The Group’s financial services business is mainly under the
supervision of Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"),
including securities, futures and options brokering and dealing,
margin financing services, corporate finance services as well as
asset management, and other authorities for the insurance
brokerage and money lending services. As such, the Group
has to comply with the rules and regulations of SFC and other
related regulators and authorities. In order to comply with all
these rules and regulations, the Group’s Compliance
Department has tailored-made some specific operation
manuals and implemented the internal control procedures to
regulate the Group's daily business activities. Regularly testing
are conducted on the Group's operations to minimize the risk
exposures and take appropriate remedial actions, when
necessary. Meanwhile, the Group will engage independent
professional bodies to provide advices and assistance on the

Group's compliance issues, when necessary.
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In addition, the Group has adopted a more targeted approach
to customer due diligence through the use of a sophisticated
software provided by a third party financial service provider.
This simplifies and accelerates the customer due diligence for
the entire customer base of the Group, which includes
screening for money laundering, sanctions and threat finance
and also enables detailed monitoring of politically exposed
person relationships and networks and is also customizable to
identify a variety of specific third party risks, when necessary.
All these measures are important in increasing the efficiency
and effectiveness in dealing with the regulatory and
operational burdens and risks the Group’s regulated

businesses are facing.

Relationships with customers and suppliers and
major customers and suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers. To do so, the
Group delivers its financial services and products in
professional attitude to procure clients’ trust, which help to
create new business opportunities to the Group. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between

the Group and its customers and/or suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers combined are approximately 7% (2018:
10%) and 27% (2018: 349%) respectively, of the Group's
total revenue. During the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers. For 2019, all the five largest
customers have 1 year to 20 years of business relationship
with the Group and one is the listed company in Hong Kong.
Besides, the Group had no major supplier due to the nature

of principal activities of the Group.
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Relationships with employees

(a) Emolument policy and employee benefits

The Group understands that employees are valuable
assets, therefore it provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The
emolument policy of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. The Group's
employees are selected, remunerated and promoted on
the basis of their merit, qualifications, performance and
competence. Regular revision for each employee is
conducted annually. Meanwhile, the emoluments of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board, having regard to the performance of individuals,
the Group's operating results and comparable market

statistics.

Apart from the basic salaries and participation in
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also
provides medical coverage, sales commission,
discretionary performance-based bonus, discretionary

share options and share awards to all employees.

As above-mentioned, the Company has a share option
scheme and share award schemes as an incentive to the
eligible persons of the schemes, whom including the
Directors, employees and others of the Group. Details of
the schemes and the movements of the share options
and awarded shares granted to the eligible persons
during the year are set out in the sections of
“"DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES", “SHARE OPTION SCHEME"
and "SHARE AWARD SCHEMES" in this report.
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(b) Training and development

©

Employees of the Group are encouraged to attend
training and development courses so as to keep abreast
of their skills and knowledge. Our Compliance
Department organizes in-house training courses for all
employees of the Group, specifically for those are
licenced persons registered under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance, and provides ongoing
compliance updates and regulatory requirements to them.
The Group also funds the Directors to attend continuous
professional development training including updates on
regulatory requirements and corporate governance
practices. Relevant employees are also funded to attend
external training courses which are relevant to their

works.

Health and safety

In order to provide a safe working environment, offices’
workstations are regularly checked and maintained by the
Administration Department of the Group. Besides,
cleaning of carpets and air-conditioning systems are
regularly carried out so as to provide hygienic working

conditions for the employees.
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Principal risks and uncertainties of the Group

The Group's core businesses are the provision of financial
services comprising securities, futures and options brokering
and dealing, financing services and corporate finance and
other advisory services, asset management and insurance
brokerage; and proprietary trading. Due to the nature of the
Group’s financial services business and proprietary trading
business, the Group may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties associated with its key financial services and
products. It mainly divided into two categories, namely
operational risk and financial risks. To ensure implementation
of the appropriate measures in managing and monitoring
these risk exposures on a timely and effective manner, policies
and procedures are established by the Group. Details of the
key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group and the
ways on how the Group encounters these are given as

follows:

(a) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed operational processes, people and
systems or from external events. In the other words, the
operational risk arises from non-compliance of policies
and procedures and lack of control. The Group has
established some operational policies and guidelines,
delegation of authorities and reporting requirements for
helping each employee of the Group to develop a set of
personal practices in performing their job to the highest
level. The operational policies provide detailed guidelines
for various functions of the Group in executing most of
the business transactions such as accounting and finance,
operations, legal and compliance, human resources,

information technology and administration.
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(b)

Meanwhile, detailed compliance and procedural manuals
and policies are designed for the major subsidiaries of
the Group which carried out the finance services
business. The internal policies and manuals aim to
ensure that the major subsidiaries of the Company
comply with all rules, regulations, codes and legislations
governing every aspect of the Group's regulated activities
at all times. All sales staff and/or investment
representatives are required at all times to fully
understand and follow the regulated requirements, which
will be updated from time to time in response to changes
of rules and regulations. Training programs and active
communications are continuously provided to promote
their awareness. Internal control procedures are applied
to monitor compliance of the Group’s policies and
guidelines. Appropriate disciplinary actions shall be taken
against the responsible staff, who is guilty of serious
misconduct. Further, for the proprietary trading business,
securities investment policy has been established
providing investment guidelines and reporting procedures

for the responsible persons to follow.

The Group’s Compliance Department and Internal Control
Adviser are responsible for identifying and monitoring the
key operational exposures and report regularly the
potential risk issues to the management and the Audit

Committee of the Group respectively.

Financial risks
In the course of business activities, the Group is exposed
to a variety of financial risks, including market, credit and

liquidity risks.

() Market risk

The Group's market risk primarily includes currency
risk (foreign exchange rate risk), interest rate risk

and equity price risk.
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Currency risk — It is the Group's policy for each
group entity to operate in local currencies as far
as possible to minimize currency risks. Almost
all of the Group's principal businesses are
conducted in Hong Kong dollars which is also
the functional currency of the Company, with
small amounts of bank deposits denominated
in foreign currency. Since the impact of foreign
exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging
against foreign currency exposure has been
carried out by the Group for the year. The
Finance Department will manage and monitor

the relevant risk from time to time.

Interest rate risk — The Group is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
accounts receivable from money lending
business and pledged bank deposits, in which
the risk is considered to be insignificant as the
majority of the amount is carried at amortised
cost. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
accounts receivable from brokerage and
financing businesses such as cash clients,
margin clients and short-term bank borrowings,
which is mainly relating to the fluctuation of
prime rate or bank's cost of funding arising
from the Group's interest bearing financial
instruments. The Finance Department has
prepared sensitivity analysis on the exposure to
cash flow interest rates for the Group's interest
bearing financial instruments on a semi-
annually basis and note that such exposure to

the Group is not significant.
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Equity price risk — The Group is exposed to
equity price risk arising from fluctuation in the
price through the Group's investment in listed
equity securities. Management regularly reviews
and monitors the Group's investment portfolio

so as to limit the risk exposure.
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The Group's credit risk is the risk of losses from a
borrower or counterparty defaulting on an obligation
which will result in financial loss to the Group. The
risk mainly arises from the following business

activities undertaken by the Group:

Financing from brokerage business — In relation
to the financing from brokerage business, the
credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and
clients’ trade settlement. When the market goes
downside, the possibility of doubtful debts will
arise. The clients may be unable or unwilling to
settle the sum owed. As such, credit
assessment and continuous management of
credit exposures are indispensable. The Group
has established the credit policies and
procedures setting out in details the structure
of the credit risk management, the credit
approval and monitoring mechanism, and the
issue for provision for doubtful receivables.
Meanwhile, the management of the Group has
delegated a team forming the credit committee
for setting the direction of the credit risk
management and to oversee the Group's
overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the work
of the credit officer who is responsible for the
daily credit management activities, determine
and review the credit limits, credit approvals

and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
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follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts and receivables from the clients with
shortfalls. Ad hoc discussions and meetings
may also be held by the credit committee
whenever necessary. Moreover, the Group
closely evaluates the borrower's credit rating,
financial background and repayment abilities.
The assessment is based on a closely
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual account and on management's
judgment from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrowers,
collateral value and the past collection history

of each individual borrower.

Money lending — All individual loans are
currently assessed and approved by the Group's
management. The Group closely evaluates the
borrowers’ credit rating, financial background,
repayment abilities and the value of securities
collateral. The assessment is based on a close
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual borrower and on management's
judgment from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrower,
collateral value and the past collection history
of each individual borrower. The Finance
Department is responsible for the daily
monitoring of the borrowers including the
adequacy of the collateral value and any default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments
in accordance with the contractual terms, and
promptly report to the management, when

necessary.
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Furthermore, the Group has monitored its concentration
of credit risk in different aspects. The Group's
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has policies in
monitoring both client concentration risk and stock
concentration risk. The Group regularly performs stress
tests on stock concentration to evaluate the Group's
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy in the event of
abnormal and significant changes in market condition. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on the accounts receivable as the aggregate
balances with the five largest clients representing
approximately 44% (2018: 47%) of total accounts
receivable. However, all these clients’ balances are within
the credit limits granted by the Group and meet the loan-
to-value ratio. Further, the fair values of the securities
collateral held by the Group for the balances of these five
largest customers are in excess of the relevant carrying
amounts or has no overdue amounts as at 31 December
2019. Accordingly, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is closely monitored. The Group has

no other significant concentration of credit risk.

(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due.
The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources. The Group's
operations are mainly financed by internal generated
cash flow and short-term bank borrowings. In
managing the liquidity risk, it is important that the
Group maintains an adequate level of cash and
credit facilities to finance the Group's daily

operations.
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Indeed, the Group's major subsidiaries are regulated
by SFC, which are subject to SFC's liquid capital
requirements. Under the liquid capital requirements,
the regulated subsidiaries must maintain the
minimum liquid capital, which shall in excess of
HK$3 million or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities,
whichever the higher. The Finance Department
monitors the Group’s major funding positions on a
daily basis so as to ensure adequate financial
resources are available to meet the Group's financial
obligations as well as to comply with SFC
requirement. It is believed that the Group has
adequate working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the regulated subsidiaries have no
non-compliance with the liquid capital requirements

during the year.

For more details about the principal risks and
uncertainties in which the Group are facing and also the
relevant risk management objectives and policies, please
refer to section “Financial Review” contained in the
Management Discussion and Analysis and notes 35 and
36 to the consolidated financial statements on pages

256 to 282 respectively of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the Group's financial position at that date are set
out in the Group's consolidated financial statements on pages
117 to 295 of this Annual Report.

No interim dividend was paid to the Shareholders during the
year (2018: Nil). The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE
AWARDS

During the year, the Company did not issue any new shares.

Details of the movements in share capital, share options and
share awards of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 32 and 33 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has not entered into

any equity-linked agreement.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2019. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the

Company's shares during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2018: Nil).

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$100,000 (2018:
HK$559,000).

FIVE YEARS' FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial
years as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements is set out on page 296 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter, Chairman

Mr. TIN Ka Pak, Timmy

Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Mr. ZHANG Min (resigned on 2 December 2019)
Mr. XIE Jintai (resigned on 19 May 2019)

Ms. LU Mengjia (resigned on 5 May 2019)

Mr. JIANG Tian (resigned on 31 March 2019)

Independence Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin

Mr. WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MH

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Mr. CHIANG Ho Wai (resigned on 30 April 2019)

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. No Director falls into this Article at
the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but
not less than, one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors
to retire every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election. In accordance with this
provision, Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo and Mr. Wong Chung Kin,
Quentin shall retire at the AGM, and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

The directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the

year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ho, David

Mr. LEUNG Chi Wai, Chris

Mr. TSE Ming Kwong

Ms. HO Wing Man, Ginny

Ms. CHAN Tik Man

Ms. CHEUNG Ching Man

Mr. LO Ping Hung, Eric (acquired directorship on 3 April 2019
pursuant to acquisition of a subsidiary and resigned on 10
September 2019)

Mr. YEUNG Kwok Leung (appointed on 3 April 2019)

Ms. TSUI Dick Yee, Daisy (appointed on 15 April 2019)

Mr. WONG Chi Ming (appointed on 19 December 2019)

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE
GROUP

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
senior management of the Group as at the date of this report

are set out on pages 38 to 43 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (to be fullest extent permitted by
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme and share award schemes
disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Director is interested in any
business apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to complete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's businesses which is required to be disclosed pursuant

to the Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

ESRRO -HEAROREREREZ
B

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and WRZZ—AF+_A=+—H EE;&ES
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and ZHE®EEA LR ARQF REBEEE 2G5
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, #EEERD R EREFHEEREBE(EENEE
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company  {§&6I) (&5 KB EEH ) $£352(F 5] AAK
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures QRFFEZERMAZEBEER @ BB
Ordinance (“SFQ"), or as otherwise notified to the Company  MWEITABEHTE L HWIZHESTAN([1Z
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for  #5FBI|) B RBITHE AR ) M B FT 2 1 24%

Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the — #1F :

“Model Code"), were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares REXTRGREBROGZHR

of the Company
(a) Ordinary shares of the Company

(@) ARAEZEER

Number of shares

R &E
Approximate %
Personal Spouse Corporate of shareholding
interest interest interest Total IR ERLA
B AR [TREY £ EEER #at BAL
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 500,000 - - 500,000 0.04%

BRRELE
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(b) Share options of the Company (b) AFlzBRE
Number of share options
BREHE
Approximate %
Qutstanding of total
at issued
Qutstanding 31 December ordinary
at 1 January 2019 shares
2019 Granted ~ Exercised lapsed W=F-1% HEET
HoB-nE during during during t28 28R Brercisable  Exercise
Name of Director -A-8 the year the year the year =1-f EL LA Date of grant period price
E34i HRGE  REREE  RERGR  REAXN B BAl RiRH 8 ikl
HKS
AT
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter 4,000,000 - - (4000000) - - 29 September 2016 29 September 2016 - 28 September 2019 176
RRNEE ZE-RERAZTAA ZE-REAAZTAEE
ZE-MEARZTIA
7,484,000 - - - 7,484,000 061% 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 23 January 2021 167
“3-\§-B-1DA ZF-\§-ffRAEE
TRT-E-fTEH
11,484,000 - - (4000000) 7484000 061%
Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy 6,500,000 - - (6,500,000) - - 29 September 2016 29 Septerber 2016 - 28 September 2019 1.76
BEhELE ZE-RERAZTAR ZE-REAACTARE
ZE-MEARZTIA
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo 6,500,000 - - (6,500,000 - - 29 September 2016 29 September 2016 - 28 September 2019 176
BEIEE ZE-REARZTAR Z2-rENAZTABE
ZE-MEARZTIA
7,940,000 - - - 7,940,000 0.64% 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 23 January 2021 167
“E-NE-R-TER “E-N\f-A-tREE
E-E-BoTER
14,440,000 - - (6500000) 7940000 0.64%
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 200,000 - - (200,000) - - 29 September 2016 29 Septerber 2016 - 28 September 2019 176
S ZE-RERAZTAR ZE-RENAZTRAE
ZE-MEARZTIA
200,000 - - - 200,000 0.02% 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 23 January 2021 167
ZE-)\E-A-THA Z5-\E-A-tmAZ
TE-E-RotIR
400,000 - - (200,000) 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, 1t 200,000 - - (200,000) - - 29 September 2016 29 September 2016 - 28 September 2019 176
ERHRLE ZE-RERAZTAR ZE-REAAZTARE
TR-REAAZTIR
200,000 - - - 200,000 0.02% 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 23 January 2021 167
“2-)\5-A-1MA “R-N\E-A-tRRE
TE-k-RoTER
400,000 - - (200,000) 200,000 0.02%
M. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH 200,000 - - - 200,000 0.02% 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 23 January 2021 167
BYLEE “5-\E-AZ1RA “3-\f-AZtEAE
E-E-RoTER

Total &3t 33,424,000 - - (17,400000) 16,024,000 1.31%
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2019, the Company's total issued ordinary
shares was 1,230,951,598.

2. During the year, no share options mentioned above were

cancelled.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out under the
section of "SHARE OPTION SCHEME" in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.

Wiz

—NWF+—A=+—H8B ARQEZE
BT T B4R % A1,230,951,598% °

2. FRBELRBREREE -

3. EHERBEFEZFBIRAREEANTE
PREETE ] — &)

BEXAHFEEEN RZE—NLF+=A

=t+—H BERREKAIHMEALINA

NREREMEBEE (EEF MR EEE
TH#MZESR) 2Bh  BERkHRERE
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o BMEEEIARRRRER S LB K
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of

the Company

Number of

FERRRADARG P 2 Em

RARXRRG,HERDZHFA

Approximate %

underlying of total issued
Capacity/Nature Number of ~ sharesheld ~ Aggregate ordinary shares
Name of interest shares held gzl interest  EERTEER Notes
2% Bt/ BaitE FisRH#8E RAEE EREE A8EOEH Hs
Power Global Group Limited Beneficial owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 6.09% 2
ERBEA
Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric Beneficial owner 293,352,000 792,000 294,144,000 23.89% 3
ETHAE ERBEAA
Held by controlled corporation 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 6.09% 4
REHEERE
368,352,000 792,000 369,144,000 29.98%
Grade Rich Investments Limited Beneficial owner 79,000,000 - 79,000,000 6.42% 5
EREEA
Mr. Wong Kin Tin Held by controlled corporation 79,000,000 - 79,000,000 6.42% 5

fid= 153

SEHEERE
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2019, the Company's total issued ordinary
shares was 1,230,951,598.

2. The 75,000,000 ordinary shares held by Power Global Group
Limited also represent the corporate interests of Mr. Chung Chi

Shing, Eric in the Company.

3. The underlying shares represent 792,000 share options granted
by the Company to Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric on 24 January
2018.

4. Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric is taken to be interested in
75,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company as a result of him
being beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of
Power Global Group Limited, which in turn holds approximately
6.09% of the Company's total issued ordinary shares as at 31
December 2019.

5. Mr. Wong Kin Ting is taken to be interested in 79,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company as a result of him being
beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Grade
Rich Investments Limited, which in turn holds approximately
6.42% of the Company's total issued ordinary shares as at 31
December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Wiz

. R-ZE-AF+-_A=+—H £A2FZE
BT T B4R % A1,230,951,598% °

2. fPower Global Group Limited## A& 2
75,000,000 & i A% 78 B 48 A5 K 58 E AR R
Al EEER -

3. HERMEARRR-_Z—NF—A=-+NO
A M8 A S A 2 792,000 B A% 4 o
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% R B 2 % % BPower Global Group
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2009, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2009 Share
Option Scheme”). On 14 June 2018, by passed an ordinary
resolution at the extraordinary general meeting, the Company
adopted another share option scheme (the “2018 Share
Option Scheme”). On the same date, the 2009 Share Option
Scheme was terminated. No further options shall be offered
under and/or pursuant to the 2009 Share Option Scheme but
in all other respects the provisions of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted thereunder prior to such termination shall continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of

issue.

Summary of the principal terms of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme and the 2018 Share Options Scheme (collectively

known as the “Share Option Schemes") are listed below.

Summary of the Share Option Schemes

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Schemes
The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to
recognize the contribution made by the participants to
the Group and also provide them an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company with the view to
motivating them to optimize their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with them whose contributions are beneficial

to the long term growth of the Group.
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(b) Farticipants of the Share Option Schemes

©

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, to make an offer for the grant of share
options to the employees or directors of the Group or
such other persons who are eligible for participation in
the Share Option Schemes to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated in the Share Option Schemes.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Schemes

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Schemes must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to

time.

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the 2009 Share Option Schemes and the
2018 Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Share
Option Schemes (i.e. 37,116,977 shares and
89,481,682 shares of the Company, which represented
approximately 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 8 June 2009 and 14 June 2018
respectively). The Company may seek approval of the
Company's shareholders in a general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option
Schemes save that the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes under the limit as “refreshed” may not exceed
10% of the total number of shares of the Company in

issue as at the date of approval of the limit.

(b) BREE 22 HEE
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(@

(e)

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
147,597,682, representing approximately 11.99% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the

date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted and to be granted to any participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any twelve months up to the date of the grant to such
participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the

Company.

Time of exercise of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes, any share option
may be exercised in accordance with its terms at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each grantee, save that no share option may
be exercised more than 10 years from the date on which
the share option is deemed to have been granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Schemes. The Board may provide restrictions on

the exercise of a share option during the option period.
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®

9)

(h)

Payment on acceptance of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option within 28 days (for 2009 Share Option
Scheme) and 7 days (for 2018 Share Option Scheme)

from the date of grant of the share option.

Basic of determining the subscription price of share
option

The exercise price per share option under the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall be at least the
higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date when share option is
offered; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date on which share option is offered.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The 2009 Share Option Scheme has no remaining life as
no further share options may be granted but the
provisions of the 2009 Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect and share
options which are granted during the life of the 2009
Share Option Scheme may continue to exercisable in

accordance with their respectively terms of issue.
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The 2018 Share Option Scheme will continue to be in
full force and effect for a period of 10 years commencing
on 14 June 2018 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolutions in general meeting or the Board, may at any
time terminate the operation of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme). After termination, no further share options will
be granted but the provisions of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and the share options which are granted during the
life of the 2018 Share Option Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their respective terms
of issue.

Movement of Share Options

As at 31 December 2019, 58,116,000 share options of the
Company were outstanding. Details of the movements of the
share options during the year are as follows:

Number of share options
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BRESE
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BRERNFAZEEHMT

fEhEse
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 January at 31 December
019 Granted Reclassfied Lapsed 2019
Category of HZ2-1% during during Brercised duing  R=E-1% Share options
participant -A-8 the year the year  during the year theyear TZAZT-B Date of grant duration  Exercise price
SEEEH LESITH HERRY  HEREFAE RERTR RERXH HAGE BB ERECER fikE
HKS
iy
Directors 22,400,000 - - - (22400,000) - 29 September 2016 29 September 2016 - 176
gz ZI-NEARZTAR 28 September 2019
CERENACTARE
EEAACTAR
23,964,000 - (7,940000) - - 16,024,000 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 167
“Z-)\5-R-1EA 23 January 2021
3 )\E-RoTmEE
ZB-E-fotEH
Employees 1,300,000 - - - (1,300,000 - 29 September 201629 September 2016 - 176
8 CERERACTAR 28 September 2019
ZEREMAZTARE
“ENERAZTAR
9,132,000 - (200000) - - 8,932,000 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 167
3 )\E-A-TE 23 January 2021
ZI-\E-R-TREE
i S 1
Other eligble persons 16,900,000 - - - (16,900,000) - 29 September 2016 29 September 2016 - 176
HhaEiAL ZE-RERAZTAR 28 September 2019
EREARCTARE
AT
52,960,000 - 8,140,000 - (7,940000) 33,160,000 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 167
ZZ-)\5-R-1EH 23 January 2021
ZE-N\E-RoTmEE
e S
Total &3t 106,656,000 - - - (48540000 58116000
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Note:

Commencing from the date of grant up to the date falling on 3 years
from the date of grant of the share options, all shares comprised in

the share options can be exercised at any time.

Details of the grant of share options to the Directors of the
Company are disclosed in the sub-headed “Long Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” under the
section of “DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES" above.

During the year, no share options were cancelled under the

Share Option Scheme.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES
On 31 March 2008, the Company adopted two share

incentive award schemes, namely The VC Share Purchase
Scheme Trust (the “Share Purchase Scheme”) and The VC
Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Share Subscription Scheme")
(the Share Purchase Scheme and the Share Subscription
Scheme collectively are referred to as the “Share Award
Schemes”). Summary of the principal terms of the Share

Award Schemes are listed below:

Summary of the Share Award Schemes
(a) Purpose of the Share Award Schemes

The purpose of Share Award Schemes is to attract skilled
and experienced personnel, to provide incentives for
them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to
strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire

equity interests in the Company.
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(b) Farticipants of the Share Award Schemes

©

(@

The Board may, subject to the rules relating to the Share
Award Schemes, from time to time at is absolute
discretion select any employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries to be a participant in the Share Award
Schemes. However, director of the Company or any
subsidiaries and any other connected person of the
Company are not allowed to participate in the Share

Subscription Scheme.

Duration of the Share Award Schemes

The Share Award Schemes have a term of 20 years from
the date of adoption, i.e. 31 March 2008. The Board may
by resolution terminate the operation of the Share Award
Schemes at any time provided that such termination shall
not affect any subsisting rights of any selected employee.
If, at the date of such termination, the trustee holds any
shares which has not vested, then the trustee shall within
21 business days of receiving notice of such termination
sell such shares and remit the proceeds of sale (after

deductions) to the Company.

Scheme Limit

The scheme limit of the Share Purchase Scheme and
Share Subscription Scheme is 2% and 1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue respectively
from time to time (excluding shares which have already

been transferred to employees on vesting).
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(e) Grant of the Awarded Shares (e) R 22/ R 17D

For the Share Purchase Scheme, the Board or the trustee
of the scheme (as the case may be) shall either (1) set
aside a sum of money or (2) determine a number of
shares which it wishes to be the subject of a bonus or
award under the Share Purchase Scheme. Where a sum
of money has been set aside (or a number of shares has
been determined), it shall pay (or cause to be paid) that
amount or an amount sufficient to purchase that number
of shares to the trustee (or as it shall direct) from the
Group's resources as soon as practicable following such
funds being set aside. Within 15 business days of
receiving the amount sufficient to purchase that number
of shares, the trustee shall apply the same towards the

purchase of shares on the Stock Exchange.

For the Share Subscription Scheme, the Board or the
trustee of the scheme (as the case may be) shall at its
discretion either (i) determine a notional cash amount or
(i) determine a number of shares (the “Number of
Awarded Shares") which it wishes to be the subject of an
award under the Share Subscription Scheme. Where a
notional cash amount has been determined by the Board,
the Board shall determine the maximum number of
shares (the "Relevant Number of Shares”), rounded down
to the nearest whole number which could be purchased
with such notional cash amount on the Stock Exchange at
the market price prevailing on the date of the award. The
Company shall pay (or cause to be paid) an amount of
either (i) the Relevant Number of Shares (where the
Board has determined a notional cash amount) or (ii) the
Number of Awarded Shares (where the Board has
determined such number) to the trustee (or as it shall
direct) from the Group's resources as soon as practicable
in accordance with the rules relating to the Share

Subscription Scheme.
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No payment shall be made to the trustee of the Share
Award Schemes (the “Trustee”) and no instructions to
subscribe for shares shall be given to the Trustee under
the Share Award Schemes where any member of the
Board is in possession of the inside information in
relation to the Company or where dealings by Directors
are prohibited under the Model Code as set out in the
appendices to the Listing Rules or any applicable laws
and regulations or any internal code of conduct in
securities dealing adopted by the Company from time to

time.

Vesting of the Awarded Shares

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as an employee of the Company or
the subsidiary until the vesting date. The Board also has
the discretion to stipulate such other conditions in
respect of a particular employee which will apply to the
vesting of the shares. Any shares held by the Trustee on
behalf of the selected employee of the Share Award
Schemes shall vest in accordance with the timetable
determined by the Board at its discretion. An award will
lapse where the Company or the business division by
which the selected employee is employed ceases to be
part of the Group or in the event the selected employee
does not deliver the notice of exercise within the
prescribed time limit to the Trustee for the purpose of

exercising his rights to receive the vested shares.

Where shares which are referable to a selected employee
do not vest or are not acquired by selected employees in
accordance with the procedures abovementioned, the
Trustee shall hold such shares or any income deriving
therefrom exclusively for the benefit of all selected
employees of the Group as the Trustee determines in its
absolute discretion, after having taken into consideration

recommendations of the Board.
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(g) Trustee of the Schemes

The Company shall have the power exercisable by deed
to appoint or remove any person as a Trustee. The
minimum number of trustees shall be two individuals or
a body corporate. The Trustee has the power to exercise
at its discretion all voting rights attached to any shares
held. Pursuant to the scheme rules, the Trustee is
obligated to exercise its power with the objective of
maximizing the benefits of the participants of the Share
Award Schemes and shall not be subject to influence

from any party.

Outstanding Awarded Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
shares awarded by the Company to any employees of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and outstanding under the

Share Award Schemes.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are disclosed in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. None of the
related party transactions fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements and results for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and is satisfied that these have
been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and fairly present the Group's financial positions

and results for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”

on pages 52 to 53 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 44 to

70 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has resigned as auditor of
the Company with effect from 22 November 2018 and had
not commence any audit work on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA

Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited
Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
26 March 2020

Annual Report 2019 £}

TEER
TEERREHRNAFREI4BEEFET08 -
EHABRERE

RAREEFIEBHH  BREARARIHERGE

ZERMEREEMA ARFBE_T N
FH-_A=T—"HLEFE-—BH#FLHRA

REZRHRAZRIRE -

A
EH-EERISMITERTRARZE
M—% BT -/ \F+—A=Z+ZHRAE
e BEWBHEARANBE_ZT—N\F+=A
—tT-HLEFEZGFEVBRRAREMNSE
BIfE o

ARRBE_FT-NFT+_A=1+—HLF
B2zHBERECEHEKTM(FL) Gt
RMMEKMERARAERZ - NEERRBFKX
ELBRERBZRUNBEES KT (FE)
SHMEBMERARR/ERRZEED -

REEES
ERZERERAQF
FTERHTEF
REX

BB
—E-FF=A=-1+XH



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER A T

Annual Report 2019 £}

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B3I #Z 26Tk &

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ferkPFa
Shine‘ZOan

TO THE MEMBERS OF VALUE CONVERGENCE
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 117 to 295, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from

money lending services

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 159 to 166.

The key audit matter
HRESSR

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had accounts
receivable from money lending services with carrying
amount of approximately HK$82,639,000. The
Group has identified loans based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
RZTE-AF+-A=+—H > EBEXEXERE
AR5 2 MU R 7R 2 B T {EL 4 /382,639,000/8 7T ° &
SEREBEEVFERRENAEMEREE MK EE
BHRBMBRNER -

The assessment of impairment for accounts
receivable from money lending services involves
significant management judgements and estimates
on the amount of expected credit loss at the
reporting date.

FHE IR B UE RS 2 FEWR K 2 RE B 0 & B IR [
LS EREEBESBIEHERAE K
it

FEREAXSE (#)
B PR 75 Wi BR RKORL (B 22 18

BRMRAV S HRERM A2 E1590BEF
1668 2 & 5T UK o

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ETNMEREZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group's
forward-looking expected credit loss ("ECL") model used
to estimate the allowance for doubtful debts.
BPNEARTFEELAR EEEAMAREKER
FAREMLEREEEE ((BRMEEBRE]) EXAAN
R A& Ko ) i -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management, practices and key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, and
assessed the Group's impairment provisioning policy in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on i) the use
of reasonable and supportable credit risk information
that is available without undue cost or effort; and ii) the
staging criteria for determining if a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

AREZEHE(H)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from BB B 7 PE W BR OB B 2 48 ()

money lending services (continued)

The key audit matter
BRBETTEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ESTNMEREZEE

We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk and
the basis for classification of exposures into the three
stages. Our testing included the checking to loan
overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or other
related information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group.

BAEAE EEEREECGEERRETBRIFLZINK
KERSEA=ZEARBRNEERTAHE - HMHAR
BEREERAREN ERUEER L EMIE
BER TEE BEEBETHRERSE-

We have evaluated the Group’s estimation methodology
of ECL, and checked the parameters to external data
sources where available, including the price volatility of
selected underlying collateral, valuation of the collateral
and other sources of cash flows.

BMEsE ESEZRBEEFBEMG L Ik
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ZEBREE BERAREERRSRE 2 EMRIR -

We also assessed the financial statement disclosures
relating to the Group's exposure to credit risk.
BZMPNETHEE ESEEYEERRNMBHRE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

RREZEHE(H)

BAVEIIRREEMEZEABRARERE
ZHMBEEZGE

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and SE2MEA N EHR RN T202RFE156EEF

the accounting policies on pages 156 to 157.

The key audit matter
HRESSR

As at 31 December 2019, included in the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income is an investment in unlisted equity security
of approximately HK$47,054,000. Independent
valuer was engaged by the management for the fair
value estimations of the unlisted equity security as
at 31 December 2019.

RIZZB-NF+ZA=+—B  RAFEIRRE
Hit 2 EWARRIEZ M EEEBRENIE LHAAR
EH 2 REK47,054,000/8 T - B IR E R HEE LG
EMAFELETRABHFN =S —NF+=ZA=+—
B2z AFEELME -

We have identified the valuation of the investment
in unlisted equity security included in the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income as a key audit matter since significant
judgements and estimates, including use of
significant unobservable inputs, have been used in
the fair value estimations by the management and
the independent valuer at the end of the reporting
period.

BB AR FEIEREREMEERARERIE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ETNMEREZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge
management’s estimation in determining the fair value
of the financial assets. We have also involved valuation
specialists to review the appropriateness of this fair
value.

BB REFECERNEEEEETEMEEZR
FERNGEG RMATERREEERUATEUAF
BERGESR °

We also focused on the valuation methodologies and
assumptions of financial instruments that were classified
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

BN EFPBEIDEAFIRATFTEERZEREE
ZIEEFERRE -

We have assessed the valuation methodology and
challenged the inputs and assumptions used in the
valuation and validated the observable inputs using
external market data.

BHEMFEEBZEER L BARGEPAAZEH
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of convertible bonds under financial assets

at fair value through profit and loss

AREZEHE(H)

BAVEIRREREREE 2MBE
ETARRERGE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and 2B G A BB ENI2IREIS8EE S

the accounting policies on pages 158 to 159.

The key audit matter
HRESSER

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's investment
in convertible bonds classified as financial assets
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$297,087,000, representing 35% of total assets.
Financial instruments which had significant
unobservable inputs in the valuation, and hence
were categorised within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, involved a higher degree of uncertainty in
their valuation.

RZTE-NAF+-A=+—H > EXEIERRK
AFEAEZVBREEZAIARBESFRENZE
297,087,000/ 7T * {5 B EE35% - REERKEE
ATABERBABEBEZERER (A BEAES
BMAFEER  HEESERSETEEMN -

The Group has applied valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that include significant
unobservable inputs, involve management using
subjective judgements and assumptions. With
different valuation techniques and assumptions
applied, the valuation results can vary significantly.
HRNERARRTSRENSRERLR E£EER
RHERMKEERLATE ZEHERMERE
BEZ THHAGRRKRR  LEBIERTAEEH
ABIE 2 MERMAE - ]RAB TR B EE M &R
& ASHBATRZ HELS

1598 2 &5TBUK »

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EPNESTNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group's
valuation and accounting treatment for convertible
bonds under financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss.

BMPNEFREFELER SEEHRAFTEIER
EERRRECMBEET A BRRERFGERG
Bz 12 e R AR B R 5 1 o

We evaluated the appropriateness of the models used
by management for the valuation of the convertible
bonds.

ZMETEEERR AT RRESFHEMEA 2R R

meE-

We also evaluated the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the unobservable and observable
inputs used for the convertible bonds.

AT ERATRRESAERZ TR KT
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and our agreed
terms of engagements, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the

Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B3I #Z 26Tk &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B3 #Z ek &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chui Yiu Cheong.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chui Yiu Cheong

Practising Certificate Number: P0O7219

Hong Kong
26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEERHEMEEKAR
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-NAFT+_A=+—BLHFE

2019 2018
—E-NnF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FERT FHET
Revenue Yoz 5 49,210 50,474
Other income H b U A 5 4,092 4,058
Other losses HivE518 7 (182) (207)
Gain (loss) on acquisition of financial Wi A EY IR R
assets at fair value through BHEREECMBEAE
profit or loss Ez W (EE) 23 3,167 (47,436)
Fair value change on financial assets BAFEIRRERR
at fair value through profit or loss REBHBEEL
N EE 23 (20,161) (177,657)
Net realised and unrealised loss on FIEBEEVKREEZ
financial assets held-for-trading EEIR R AREIR
18558 23 (26,669) (137,119)
Impairment loss on accounts J& W BR 3 2 R B B 18
receivable, net HEE (7,451) (8,260)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate 7B A &) 2 #E2
2R EE R 21 (5,000) -
Staff costs 8 TR 8 (40,605) (84,046)
Commission expenses e (4,840) (5,387)
Depreciation of property and equipment — #13% & & & #1 & 19 (3,304) (2,108)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREESENE 20 (6,047) -
Finance costs RN 11 (3,960) (21,282)
Other operating expenses HMgeEm® (32,147) (56,994)
Share of loss of an associate DEBERRIZEE (63) amn
Loss before tax B 5 A Es 1B (93,960) (485,975)
Income tax credit (expense) FrisfiEe (AX) 12 591 (341)
Loss for the year FEEE 13 (93,369) (486,316)
Other comprehensive expense FEEMEEAX
for the year
Item that will not be classified HetgnEziasn
subsequently to profit or loss: FRZIER -
Fair value loss on financial RATFEYERE
assets at fair value through other Hh2EBA K
comprehensive income RIBZ MG EE
ZANFEEE 22 (160,030) -
Total comprehensive expense for the year & 2 RSz 4458 (253,399) (486,316)
Loss per share (HK cents) FhREE GBI
Basic and diluted BERK#E 15 (7.59) (49.36)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z& kR E

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE—NF+=-—A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FTET FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Goodwill kS 16 2,016 -
Trading rights R oK 17 - -
Other intangible assets Hih |y & e 18 1,246 1,246
Interest in an associate REERR 2w 21 4,926 9,989
Property and equipment I EYS L 19 5,915 2,844
Statutory deposits EEEE 2,988 2,988
Rental and utility deposits e MKkEEE 1,868 1,578
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 10,879 -
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEINER
profit or loss EiEmERE
B EE 23 13,358 304,081
Financial assets at fair value through AT EYER R
other comprehensive income Hith2EIRAR
RIBZMBEE 22 47,054 207,084
90,250 529,810
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JE U BR X 24 223,680 167,927
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - ZE2 Rk
other receivables H A U BR 3R 18,520 22,429
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIERER
profit or loss B AR IR
2B EE 23 445,867 240,282
Pledged bank deposits BEHEBRITEK 25 - 40,000
Bank balances and cash WITHBR MRS 26 70,788 138,032

758,855

608,670
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z& kA=

As at 31 December 2019
R-ZE—NF+=-—A=+—H
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2019 2018
—E-AEF —E—N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaF FiE&T FAET
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable JE 1~ BR 3K 27 16,231 24,390
Accrued liabilities and EstaE R
other payables H b ETBRR 5,968 6,893
Lease liabilities HEHE 20 6,641 -
Tax payable FE@ T IE 329 537
Short-term bank borrowings HHIRITIE R 28 - 40,000
29,169 71,820
Net current assets REBEEFHE 729,686 536,850
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAER 819,936 1,066,660
Non-current liabilities kFBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S 30 29,005 26,116
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEE 29 659 1,282
Lease liabilities HEEBE 20 4,409 -
34,073 27,398
Net assets EEFE 785,863 1,039,262
Capital and reserves BEXRHE
Share capital [N 32 1,585,239 1,585,239
Reserves &% (799,376) (545,977)
Total equity ERBERE 785,863 1,039,262

The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 295
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter

MBI EE
Director

EF

FINTEEE2BEMHA G MFHRERL
EEeN _E-_ZE=A -+ A EEE

TiT TR MIEERERE

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy

HRHELE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &Z&#EisEehR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ - NF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the company
ARRAEAAEE

Convertible  Investments Share
Share Capital bonds  revaluation option Other Accumulated
capitl  reseve  reseve  resee  reseve  resemve losses Total
) 8RR REEfR - R
Rx  BX@E  &Hf e BRERE AR  RAER @it
HE00D  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0
TR Thn TR Thn TR T TR Thn
(note a) (note b)
(ita) (Hith)
At 1 January 2018 R-Z-N\E-F-B 855363 123758 - (550) 20406 (761 (251269) 746941
Loss and total FEFERZE
comﬁrehensive expense Rxa8
for the year - - - - - - (486316)  (486316)
Total comprehensive FEXERIAE
expense for the year - - - - - - (486316)  (486316)
Recognition of equity-setled  BRMUBRAZ (2
share option expenses BRERX
(note 33) (M3133) - - - - 31,322 - - 31322
Issue of shares upon RiRERER
exercise of share options Bkl
(note 32) (hiz32) 431 - - - (97) - - 334
Recognition of equity BRnARGES
component of convertible Eagn
bonds (note 30) (Hi#30) - - 310819 - - - - 310819
Deferred tax liabilties on BRUARE S
recognition of equity BadnZ
component of convertible EREHEAR
bonds - - (459) - - - - (459
Issue of shares upon RT#aRESAR
conversion of convertible maakiA
bonds (note 32b) (Wi#32) 656,821 - (291,808) - - - - 365013
Release of deferred tax BEmAREFAR
liablties on conversion of LERWESE
convertible bonds o - - 3118 - - - - 25118
Issue of shares by top-up RULERINARER
placement an REMETRG
subscription (note 320) 1:£323) 73811 - - - - - - 73811
Transaction costs attrbutable ~ REEMETRE
10 issue of shares by LRARE
placement (1187) - - - - - - (1187)
At 31 December 2018 R-2-NF
and 1 January 2019 tZA=+-8k
“E-NE-R-R 1585239 123758 17,536 (550) 51,631 (767)  (737,585) 1,039,262
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (93369)  (93369)
Other comprehensive EREMZERR
expense for the year
Fair value loss on BATEIIERELL
financial assets at fair PENARREY
value through other HREEZATERER
comprehensive income (Wit22)
(note 22) . - - (160,030) - - - (160,030)
Total comprehensive FRREARLE
expense for the year , - - - (160030) - - (93369)  (253399)
Transfer of share option REREEUM
fesenve upon lapse of AORRERRE
share options - - - - (24257) - 24251 -
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NE
t-A=1-H 1,585,239 123,758 17536 (160,580) 21374 (767)  (806,697) 785,863
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &Z&#EisEEhR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-ZT-NFT+-A=1T—HLLFE
Notes:
(a) Capital reserve

(b)

Pursuant to a scheme of capital reorganisation, which became
effective on 28 May 2003, the High Court of Hong Kong had
approved the reduction of the capital of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and the cancellation of the
Company's share premium account. The credit arising from the
reduction of the share capital account and cancellation of the
share premium account, after eliminated against the
accumulated losses, in the aggregate amount of
HK$123,758,200 was transferred to a capital reserve account of
the Company. Such capital reserve account will not be treated as
realised profits, and shall be treated as an undistributable
reserve of the Company until and unless the creditors of the
Company as at the date of the sanction are fully settled. In view
of the fact that the Company had already fully settled the
relevant debts due to the creditors, the Company is of the view

that the reserve is distributable to the Company's shareholders.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the differences between the purchase
considerations and the amounts acquired from non-controlling
interests arising from acquisitions of the remaining equity
interests of 9.90% and 8.84% in VC Capital Limited and VC

Asset Management Limited respectively completed in year 2012.

(b)

BER-_ZTZT=FRAA -+ N\BERZEAR
BHAFE - BARFERIERRERER
BRAR([ARQE]) BRARFHARAZ K
17 35 (B R o BB RR 7N BR 2 v 88 AR 19 Vi (B BR P
EECZERBRFTEBEBYHEEZAEAR
123,758,200 70 * EBA KRR B 2 BRI

MR BARE 2 MR DIRFE  BEE KK
EARFNZECTERAZRNRERHEN
Bl ERARBEBBENEREEAZ
BRER SARTARE  LWREHCA DK
FARRAPER -

H AR #

HibE B EAFZERER Y BB EARE
BRAGDNEREEETEBRAGBSEAK
29.90% [ 8.84%% A #E %5 2 fE B (B B A
WEZEzENEE ERKRBER =2
—ZFTEK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS EZ8IRE&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NAF+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustment for
Interest income from
authorised institutions
Interest income from
convertible bonds
Interest expense on the
convertible bonds
Interest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Impairment loss on interest in an
associate
Share of loss of an associate
Depreciation of property
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Unrealised loss on financial
assets held-for-trading
Fair value change on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

(Gain) loss on acquisition of
financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Impairment loss on accounts
receivable, net

Loss on disposal of property
and equipment

Equity-settled share option expense
(note 33)

Provision for long service payments/

annual leave payments

REEH
B 3% B B9 18
HEEE

KERAEELZ
A B M A
AR 75 F B A

A] 8 A AE 55 B R 52

fERMEFX
HEABMERX
REERR 2R
Z B IEE R
DB E R R Z R
MELRBITE

CREEERE
HIEBBEVKEEZ
KEHERE

R RAFEYERE
BaEEEEZ
HHEENFEE
W B A FEY R R
FESEKREEZ
M EE s (W)
&8

JE Uk BR 5k 2 R B

E 18 F 58
LEMERZE

2 &8

LARR AN 32 1+ 2 B A 4
F (#7i233)
RERB SR
B EE

2019

o
HK$'000
FHR

(93,960)

(702)
(3,105)
3,248

11

701

5,000
63

3,304
6,047

2,246

20,161

(3,167)

7,451

166

237

2018
ZT-N\F
HK$'000
TAET

(485,975)

(733)

(3,013)

21,203
79

2,108

139,961

177,657

47,436

8,260

149

31,322

463
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z8IR&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Operating cash flows before HEEREIAIZ
movements in working capital RE|RERE (52,299) (61,072)
(Increase) decrease in accounts FEMBR 2 (&) R/
receivable (63,204) 35,466
Decrease (increase) in financial assets & A FEYIEREREEBZHE
at fair value through profit or loss BRIR 7 MR EE 2R
() 75,898 (58,690)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, TERFRIE - 12 E R H A&
deposits and other receivables WBR K 2 R (38 n) 6,390 (6,540)
(Increase) decrease in rental and HeERKEEREZ
utility deposits (42 hn) 3Rk > (290) 1,124
Decrease in accounts payable JE < BR R 2 R (8,159) (12,501)
Decrease in accrued liabilities and JE 5T B & B H 4t & A< AR K
other payables 2R (1,493) (10,945)
Cash used in operations SETAR S (43,157) (113,158)
Bank interest received 2 HERITHE 768 728
Income tax refund REMER - 32
Income tax paid ERFEH (240) (715)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHMAREFE
ACTIVITIES (42,629) (113,113)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of financial assets at BERATEIERE
fair value through profit or loss BREREECMBEE (10,000) (40,000)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R ERRITER 40,000 -
Acquisition of interest in WHEENE S R E 2R
an associate - (10,000)
Acquisition of a subsidiary LA e BfT B8 1 A (2,016) -
Purchase of property and equipment BEEMEREE (7,044) (869)
Proceeds from disposal of property LEMERREZ
and equipment PSR 503 472
Payment of statutory deposits XEERS (47) (1,724)
Refund of statutory deposits REVEEE® 47 2,183
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REZBHMEB (AR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B 21,443 (49,938)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS EZ8IRE&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NAF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Proceeds from exercise of T RE MR i 2 PR1S FRIE
share options - 334
Proceeds from issue of shares by NAEEERFTHANEE R
top-up placement and subscription REmMEITRG
Z Frig 538 - 73,811
New bank borrowings raised FERITER - 80,000
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITERK (40,000) (80,000)
Payments for transaction costs XA ERE M EITRG 2
attributable to issue of shares by R G A
placement - (1,187)
Repayment of lease liabilities BREHEEEE (6,019) -
Interest paid 2R (39) (65)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REES (FrA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES IR FRE (46,058) 72,893
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERAELEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZHEDFEE (67,244) (90,158)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FAZHER
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR RE%ERERAE 138,032 228,190

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERZEAER
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY R&%{EEE -
BANK BALANCES AND CASH MBETEHBRES 70,788 138,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & 1R =Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of financial services

and proprietary trading.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency

of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first
time, the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015 - 2017 Cycle

—REH
AARB—FREBEMRIZ ARE
RAT  EROREEBEXBFAER
AR (TBRF]) L7 - AR AEMHBE
BRFEEEME ZMITNFRAR T
B — B R -

AARREMBLRAR ([AEE]) B
HERHERRBLRAZETER -

REMBRRAETIR  BILTAR
REIZNEEH -

RRAFMEGREEITERME
BELEA(EBMBHREER ]

RAFE  AEBEBEREATIAE
B ag ([ZEEFMAE]) R
2 F R & B R RS R B RT AR

BABREE il
F16%

A (ERMBRERE MEHRENTHRER
ZE®)— REFIN

EENBREE] AEERBZRT
FOR BT BN

BA g ES BECEHRE Y
F19% 2 5]

BEAgES REERAR
F285 27T REPECRBER

RN BREE] EENBREE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &M SR ERMsE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—
7

BNFT_A=T—BHLHFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 16 resulted in the changes in the
Group’s accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements as summarises below.

The application of other new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and position for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out

in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with
respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant
changes to the lessee accounting by removing the
distinction between operating lease and finance lease
and requiring the recognition of right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee
accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have
remained largely unchanged. Details of these new
accounting policies are described in note 3. The Group
has applied HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity, where appropriate, at 1
January 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17

Leases.

2. RAFEGREBITEBUE

WMEER(EFBMBREED D)
(%)
TXHARRMEAN G RERAE
1655 ¥ A % B @ S IO P R 2
BRUGANBRRTERAL B
RZBE -

RAFRRBEAMH B REERTER
MBmELENEAFERBEFEARE
Bz BRARM BN R ERA
BHRRMBIHKBEZTRALBERNTE -

RABBYBREEANF 165K [HE
47
FEEMBHREEANEIGRUBEE S
RBI AR HARMERT B3R - WA A
SRR EANE - SIKKEeHER
MEHEZHNED WERKRERMA
HERRETHREEELMERE R
HHEEREREEEEMERN - HEAR
AEBAGRE  HBEAGFHEZHER
HHRFTE - SN G BRRZFBR
MRHES - AEECENERE LY
BHREEFIREHEE] - M ERXE
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(continued)

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group elected to apply
the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of
which arrangements are, or contain, leases. It applied
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as
leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-4 were not
reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered

into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group as lessee

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases (except for lease of low value assets
and lease with remaining lease term of twelve months or
less). These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January
2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January

2019 was 5.375% per annum.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets and measures
them at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted

by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

BE—
7

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

(continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

The following table summarises the impact of transition

to HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not

affected by the adjustments have not been included.

Right-of-use assets
Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Lease liabilities

Notes:

Notes
i3
EREEE (a),(b)
ERFE RER
H At R (b)
HERB (a)

(a) As at 1 January 2019, right-of-use assets were measured

at an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the

amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

(b) Prepaid rental of approximately HK$442,000 as at 31

December 2018 was adjusted to right-of-use assets.

2. RAFEGREBITEBUE
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Carrying amount

—NF-A-BBEE
BAELL Y

Carrying
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previously Impact on as restated
reported at 31 adoption of at 1 January
December 2018 HKFRS 16 2019
RZE-N\F RZB-NF
TZA=+—H RMER —-B—H
BEZHRz  HHREER BEY2
REE F16RFE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Differences between operating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018, the date immediately preceding the
date of initial application, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate, and the lease liabilities

recognised as at 1 January 2019 are as follows:

2. RAFEBREEBIEEUE
HEER((HEBMBREERN])
(%)
BRMEBMBRELERE 165
EIz2&¥E (&)

KEEEZATAN (E)
RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H(AEE
BRERBHANER) FREEHEZKF
PR 7 REMERERR - —NF
—A—HmRzEEaBE s HNERDN
e

Carrying
amount as

restated at

1 January
2019
R-ZZB—NF
—H—H
a5
ZBREE
HK$'000
FERT
Operating lease commitment disclosed RZE-NF+A=+—BEKE
as at 31 December 2018 I E T E A 16,665
Less: Short-term leases and other leases  J&l : RHAHAERFKEHNR T —NF
with remaining lease term ending TZAZ+—RASZEIERZ
on or before 31 December 2019 HihHE (2,485)
14,180
Discounted using the applicable incremental R & XEA B BRABEA 2B E (5K F X
borrowing rate at the date of initial BRYR -_F-NF—-A—-—HEIZZH
application and lease liabilities recognised ~ E& &
as at 1 January 2019 13,180
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRAHBEBREEITEEBHKE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REER(TFERAMBEREER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) (&)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases RABBYBREENF 1657 H
(continued) Elzeg (&)
The Group as lessee (continued) KEFEREAHANAN (&)
Carrying
amount as

restated at

1 January
2019
R=B-IF
—H—H
REF
ZEREE
HK$'000
THERT

Analysed as: DHT
Non-current portion JERNHAER 2 8,914
Current portion BN ER &F 9 4,266

13,180
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

(continued)

Practical expedients applied

On the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group

has also used the following practical expedients permitted

by the standard:

the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of

leases with reasonably similar characteristics; and

the accounting for operating leases with a remaining

lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January

2019 as short-term leases.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group had not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?®

between an Investor and its

Amendments to Definition of a Business*
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Definition of Material’

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting'
Financial Reporting

2018

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform!

Revised Conceptual Framework for

2. RAFBEMREETETERE
WMEER(EFBMBREED D)
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the results and the financial

position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of
fair value measurement are explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company

«  has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs incurred
to effect a business combination are recognised in profit

or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
business combination are recognised and measured

in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

« assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of the acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with the share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below);
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

« assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard; and

« lease liabilities are measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments as if the acquired
lease was a new lease at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets
are measured at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared

with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another
standards, are measured at acquisition-date fair value
except for non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured either at fair value or at the
present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net

assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at

cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU") (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised

for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an associate
that included in the carrying amount of the investment is

set out in “interest in an associate” below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

The Group's interest in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Under the equity method, interest in an
associate is initially recognised at cost. The Group's share
of the profit or loss and changes in the other
comprehensive income of the associate is recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group's
share of loss of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, which determined using the
equity method together with any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are provided for,
and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’s accounting policies conform to those of the
Group when the associate’s financial statements are used

by the Group in applying the equity method.
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3.

—NET+ZA=+—HLEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in an associate (continued)

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment,
any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate is recognised as goodwill and is

included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method, including
recognising the associate’s losses (if any), the Group
determines whether there is an objective evidence that
the net investment in the associate is impaired. Goodwill
that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment
in an associate is not separately recognised. The entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment in the associate. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in an associate (continued)

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate is recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate. The Group's share in
the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these

transactions is eliminated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

«  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

«  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract

«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

«  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

« Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to customers.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
A performance obligation represents a good or service (or

a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series

of distinct goods or services that are substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

« The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's

performance as the Group performs;

«  The Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is

created and enhanced; or

«  The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales

related taxes.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer. A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,

a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities

of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the following major

sources:

+  Brokerage commission and other related fee from
dealing in securities and futures and options

contracts

+  Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing and sub-

placing commission

. Arrangement, advisory, referral fee and other fee

income

. Interest income

. Dividend income from financial assets held-for-

trading

Provision of services

Revenue from brokerage commission and other related
fee from dealing in securities and futures and options

contracts is recognised as income at a point in time.

Arrangement, advisory, underwriting, sub-underwriting,
placing and sub-placing, referral fee and other fee income
are recognised over time or at a point in time with
reference to the detailed terms of transactions as
stipulated in the contracts entered into with its customers

and counterparties.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (Policy applicable on or after 1 January
2019)

Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the

contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it
is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and
leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

assets are consumed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.

Leasing (Policy applicable on or after 1 January
2019) (continued)

Definition of a lease (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses

its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise:

« fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

«  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

«  the amount expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

«  the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee

is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHEHE(E)
Leasing (Policy applicable on or after 1 January HE(ZZE-hEFE—-BF—HHZ#&
2019) (continued) BRAZBX) (&)
Definition of a lease (continued) HEZTEE (&)
The Group as lessee (continued) REBEREMBA(B)
Lease liabilities (continued) HEAEE)
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the HEBBEREGFEMBINRRTEFZS -

consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

«  the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using revised discount rate.

« the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a

revised discount rate is used).
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BNFT_A=T—BHLHFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (Policy applicable on or after 1 January
2019) (continued)

Definition of a lease (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

+ a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date and any initial
direct costs, less lease incentives received. Whenever the
Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and
remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
"Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (Policy applicable on or after 1 January
2019) (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
They are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the

lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any

identified impairment loss.

Leasing (Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Trading rights/other intangible assets

Trading rights represent rights to trade on the Stock
Exchange and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
("HKFE"). They are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
and amortised using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives.

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any

subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of the trading
rights and other intangible assets are measured as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets and are recognised in the profit or

loss when the assets are derecognised.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and equipment (continued)

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") and
FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for

managing them.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are

subject to impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

(continued)

0)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant

period.

For financial assets other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets
that are credit-impaired on initial recognition), the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses, through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows,
including expected credit losses, to the amortised

cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

(continued)

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method

(continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount
at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any
loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial

asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For
financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross

carrying amount of the financial asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

(continued)

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method

(continued)

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The calculation does not revert to the
gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial
asset subsequently improves so that the financial

asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is

included in the “Other income” line item (note 5).

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.
Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held-for-trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. T E&HHE (&)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (continued)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred

to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Revenue” line

item in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held-for-trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business

combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any
debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the

end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or

losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not

part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or

loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or

interest earned on the financial asset. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

< on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and

effective hedging instrument).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
accounts receivable, and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable from dealing in securities transactions,
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services
and contract assets. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,

including time value of money where appropriate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

+  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability

to meet its debt obligations;

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

«  significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

< an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its

debt obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has
external credit rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has
a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable:

«  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the

debtor; or

« information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

« a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

« the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider;

« it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

« the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the

reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the original effective interest rate.

3. TEEFBE(E)

TRERE (&)

BEEE (&)

38 BR
EAEMBRES AR BREM BN
BEAREERE &SR EHUEFKIAR - P
WX ZHFRBRIEARERF > A
SEHAMEMBEE - CME W HE
ENAREREAEELEREZRERR
(Zn3E F) 4 B 3008 2 12 Fr B i 58 i #1
17 - (EfAIREIR B Z SRIA G R B 2

7
e

AEMERBEHREESR
ARERHEEERR  @RAZTEEY
BE - BHOBKRE (AIBRLEZORERX
BE)RENMONKEE - ZOMER
BHOBRENFENARE EATE LS
FHELABCELBEREN - BNE
WO RMBEEMS - LREER
HERMZREE -

RHMBEEMS  BREEBRBRMGTS
REGOBERAKEZMEGHOERETR
EEASEBEHUBRZAERSREMN
EZEHER > WIRIABERFXEER -

165



166

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRER AT

Annual Report 2019 £}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &M SR ERMsE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NAF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for financial assets that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial

asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. T EEHHE (&)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In
addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In
contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but

is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies are measured
in accordance with the specific accounting policies set

out below.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised

costs

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-
trading, or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the

amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is

included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Convertible bonds (continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised. Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be released to the accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year which the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either (i) the same taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the initial

recognition exemption.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and other

eligible persons

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). The Group measures the
recharge based on the fair value of the equity
instruments of the Company at the grant date and
allocates that recharge to each subsidiary based on the
proportion of services received. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting condition.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss. When the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Shares awarded to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of shares awarded at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (awarded

shares compensation reserve).

When The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust (“Trust”)
purchases the Company's shares from the open market,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for share
purchase scheme and deducted from total equity. No
gain or loss is recognised on the transactions of the
Company's own shares. When the Trust transfers the
Company's shares to grantees upon vesting, the related
costs of the granted shares vested are reversed from
shares held for share purchase scheme. Accordingly, the
related expense of the granted shares vested is reversed
from awarded shares compensation reserve. The
difference arising from such transfer is debited/credited

to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Shares awarded to directors and employees (continued)

When the share awards are forfeited before the vesting
date, the amount previously recognised in awarded
shares compensation reserve will be reversed

immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of
property and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on
the characteristics of inputs, as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective

fair value measurement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF")
are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities" carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or

permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of their tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.
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3

BNFT_A=T—BHLHFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or a CGU is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or the CGU is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or a
CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4.

E-NF+_A=+—BLFE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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4.

BNFT_A=T—BHLHFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of accounts receivable

The impairment provisions for accounts receivable are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, bases on the
number of days that an individual receivable is
outstanding as well as the Group's historical experience
and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable was approximately HK$223,680,000 (2018:
HK$167,927,000). As at 31 December 2019,
impairment losses of accounts receivable were
approximately HK$31,433,000 and HK$21,622,000
(2018: HK$40,469,000 and HK$5,587,000) arising from
money lending services and securities transactions

respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, impairment loss of accounts
receivable of approximately HK$450,000 (2018: Nil)
arising from corporate finance and other advisory services

have also been recognised.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of certain tax losses of approximately
HK$430,454,000 (2018: HK$416,466,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, or changes in facts
and circumstances which result in revision of future taxation
profits estimation, a material recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a recognition takes place.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated fair value of convertible bonds and
financial assets at FVTOCI

As described in note 36, the directors of the Company
use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. For convertible bonds
and financial assets at FVTOCI, assumptions are made
based on inputs not quoted in an active market adjusted
for specific features of the instrument. If the inputs and
estimates applied in the model are different, the fair

value of these financial instruments may change.

The carrying amounts of the convertible bonds and
financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2019 were
approximately HK$297,087,000 (2018:
HK$304,081,000) and HK$47,054,000 (2018:
HK$207,084,000) respectively. The directors of the
Company believe that the chosen valuation techniques
and assumptions are appropriate in determining the fair

value of these financial instruments.
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—hFE+-HA=1T—"HLFE
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue principally arises from the financial services

business comprising the provision of securities, futures

and options brokering and dealing, provision of margin

financing and money lending services, provision of

Wi B E Al A
WaTERESHRBER (KT EHE
REZS HELRERELCKRER ®
HRESBEMRERY  RHEER
BHERE  BHAGEKBRE KA

placing and underwriting services, provision of mergers X ERABRRLE)  URBEE
and acquisitions services, and other corporate finance BEEHEK -
related advisory services, and proprietary trading.
Revenue Wz
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TET
Revenue from contracts with customers BB EHEEAFI5KEBR
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEFITYEHZNE
Disaggregated by major services lines RIZERBED
— Brokerage commission and other related —EZZEALEERE R
fees from dealing in securities and ARMBEERE REMD
futures and options contracts AEEE A 11,786 18,185
— Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing B DB KER
and sub-placing commission NEERE 1,339 360
— Arrangement, referral, advisory —ZH 8N B R
and other fee income Hih &R KA 11,786 14,753
24911 33,298
Revenue from other sources R B H M RIR 2 &
— Interest income from clients —REEPZHMEKA 23,188 17,176
~ Dividend income from listed — KRB ETRAES
equity securities ZBBHA 1,111 -
24,299 17,176
49,210 50,474
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 5. W R E M A ()
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFIVENBKNE 2 BARH
customers by timing of recognition by

2019 2018
—®—hE —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 2 TR SR

At a point in time 7 — {E B 5 26 15,128 22,719
Over time R — R A 9,783 10,579
24911 33,298

Other income H g A
2019 2018
—®—hE —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET

Interest income from authorised

KA RBAEEZFEUWA

institutions 702 733
Interest income from convertible bonds 2k B A #2 f& & 25 2 F 2 U A 3,105 3,013
Total interest income RPN PN k- 3,807 3,746
Sundry income MIEMA 285 312

4,092 4,058
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—hFE+-HA=1T—"HLFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are organised and
managed separately, according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other operating segments. The Group
operates financial services and proprietary trading
businesses and classifies its business into five operating
segments, namely brokerage and financing businesses,
corporate finance and other advisory services, asset
management, insurance brokerage and proprietary trading
and reports to the Group's Executive Committee (being
the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker) accordingly.
Details of these five (2018: four) operating and

reportable segments are summarised as follows:

(i) the brokerage and financing segment engages in
securities, futures and options brokering and dealing,
provision of margin financing and money lending,

and placing and underwriting services;

(i) the corporate finance and other advisory services
segment engages in the provision of corporate
financial advisory services and company secretarial

services;

(iii) the asset management segment engages in the

provision of asset management services;

(iv) the insurance brokerage segment engages in

provision of insurance broker age services; and

(v) the proprietary trading segment engages in the
trading of equity securities, debt securities and other

financial products.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (gg)
The following tables presented revenue and results of TREJNBE_ZT-NFR-_ZFT-NF
these reportable and operating segments for the years s —JF*EJtﬁJgEii/ﬁ%#&%&
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. rmESE W REBEER -
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-—AWF+-RA=+—HLFE
Corporate
finance

Brokerage  and other

and  advisory Asset Insurance  Proprietary  Segment

=

financing ~ sewvices management  brokerage trading total ~ Eliminations Total
LXRER
SLRRE HMREE  KEEE R RE
 BRE % BEXE RERE 294 b3f - i
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
Tér TR Tén TR Tén THR Tén TR

(note)
(Hit)
Segment revenue G 37813 10286 - - 1,1 49210 - 49210
Intra-segment sales AHEEES 55 1912 - - - 1,967 (1,967) -
37,868 12,198 - - 1M 51,177 (1,967) 49,210
Segment profit (loss) AHEN (EE) 12,593 (2,784) (1,601) (484)  (28434)  (20710) - (0,70
Unallocated administrative costs & 7 BL{TBAL A& (51,193)
Gain on acquisition of WERATETER
financil assets at FVTPL EREEREH
BEE & 5,167
Fair value change on RATEGIRRER
financil assets at FVTPL HEREHBE
EIATELY (20,161)
Impairment loss on nterest  REERE ZER
in an associate LHEEE (5,000)
Share of loss of an associate A EEBE DA ZER (63)
Loss before taxation for the year EERHAEE (93,960)
Note: Insurance brokerage services were commenced during Bt BE_Z—NF+A=+—HILF
the year ended 31 December 2019 as a result of a ﬁﬁ—Fﬁ WEBna (K FE37) MARE
subsidiary (note 37). Therefore, a new segment of REELER - Atk - REFEEHIERF
insurance brokerage services was added in the current B 45 40 AR 75 9 & -

year.
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E-NF+ZA=+T—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Other segment information

Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other

7 HEM (F)
BE—T-NF+-A=+—HILFE (&)
H 5 HE R

and  advisory Asset  Insurance  Proprietary  Segment
financing ~ services management  brokerage trading total ~ Adjustments Total
LERER
BER  EHER g RE g
BEXE  BBEE  EERE  SLRR  BERE  oHed ik @it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THR THR THR TER TER TER TER TiEn
(note)
(Hit)
Amounts indluded in the HESHERR
measure of segment profit ~ FFAZA%E:
or loss:
Net realised and unrealised ~ {EEEBKEE
loss on financial assets JBERRAE
held-for-trading REREE - - - - 26669 26,669 - 26669
Interest income from RERAREL
authorised institutions 0N (527) (110) (60) - - (697) (5) (102)
Staff costs EIRA 7,052 7,143 1,364 480 - 16,039 24,566 40,605
Commission expenses BeExX 4,789 - - - 105 4,894 (54) 4,840
Depreciation of property and M ERFETE
equipment 361 34 - - - 395 2,909 3,304
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FEEAENE
assets - - - - - - 6,047 6,047
Impairment loss on accounts BB 2 A E
receivable, net FEFE 7,001 450 - - - 7,451 - 7,451
Finance costs HERA 6,801 - - - 1,858 8,659 (5,400) 3,259
Interest expenses on lease ~ FEBEZ
liablties HERX - - - - - - 701 701
Amounts regularly provided to -~ TR EFAEEH
the Group's Executive TRE8EHERD
Committee but not included ~~ SFERBL A A
in the measure of segment 2%
profit or loss:
Income tax credit fERER (20) - - - (145) (165) (426) (591)
Interest income from RETRRESR
convertible bonds HEHA - - - - - - (3,105 (3,105)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018

6. DH

PE M ()
BE-2-\F+t=-A=+-ALFE

Corporate

finance

Brokerage  and other

and advisory Asset  Proprietary Segment

financing senvices management frading total  Eliminations Total

PERER

BLREE  AHBRER 3 EH
£ BE%  BBEF  BEER  oPeH Ea it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR AR TR TR iR TR
Segment revenue PR 36,721 13,753 - - 50,474 - 50,474
Intra-segment sales AHRHER 511 540 - - 1,051 (1,051) -
37232 14,293 - - 51,525 (1,051) 50474
Segment profit (loss) AREN(BR) 4572 (22080 (1539)  (146369)  (145544) - (14554)
Unallocated administrative costs &2 BAIBA A (115327)
Loss on acquisition of finencial YR ZATFEFEREBR
assets at FVTPL R HREEER (47,436)
Far value change on financial ~ RATEJIEREBERR
assets at FVTPL BIMBEELATE

25 (177657)
Share of loss of an associate AMEBERAZER (1)
Loss before taration for the year ~ FEBHHER (485975)

191
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

6.

Other segment information

Corporate
finance and

Brokerage ~other advisory

6. 7T HREHR (F)
HE-Z-/\FT-AS+—ALFE )
H 5 HE R

Asset  Proprietary

and financing senvices management frading  Segment total  Adjustments Total
PEBER
BEREE  HEBERR B 5
£% ¥k ER%K  BEXK AP g it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL T TiEn TERL TERL TiEn
(note)
(Bt)
Amounts induded in the measure  FHEDHEREHAZEE:
of segment profit or loss:
Net realised and unrealised loss  #{EEESKEEZEER
on financial assets heldfor- ~ RAZBEEFE
frading - - - 137,119 137,119 - 137,119
Interest income from REZAREZFZMA
authorised institutions (569) (109) (53) - (731 2 (733)
Staf costs EIRE 17,783 7689 1227 - 26699 57347 84,046
Commission expenses BeEx 5,287 - - 611 5,898 G 5387
Depreciation of property and ~~ ERFKENE
equipment 586 318 - - 904 1204 2,108
Impairment loss on accounts — EWEHZRESETE
receivable, net 8,260 - - - 8,260 - 8,260
Finance costs HERE 4,683 - - 7391 12,074 9,208 2128
Amounts regularly provided to the  E R (£ FAEEH 17
Group's Executive Committee ZESEHENTERN
but not included in the measure ~ WARFFAZ £ % :
of segment profit or loss:
Income tax expense FERAX 867 18 - (240 643 (302) 34]
Interest income from REARRESHERA
convertible bonds - - - - - (3013) (3013)
Note: Adjustments include the unallocated administrative costs Mt REREITEEESEZLME(Z
that are not directly allocated to the five (2018: four) T-N\FEHE)KEI B RS
operating segments and also represent the intra-group BEATHAA  ARREXREERE
sales, finance costs and management fee which are RTFASE  EBMARFMEE -
eliminated at consolidation. MERARERE -
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E-NF+_A=+—BLFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

Segment profit or loss represents the profit earned by/
loss from each segment, before the deduction of
unallocated administrative costs, fair value change on
financial assets at FVTPL, gain (loss) on acquisition of
financial assets at FVTPL, impairment loss on interest in
an associate and share of loss of an associate. This is the
measure reported to the Group's Executive Committee
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

No single customer contributed 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for both 2019 and 2018. The Group's
operations are mainly located in Hong Kong (place of
domicile). The Group's revenue from external customers
is mainly derived from Hong Kong for both 2019 and
2018. Almost all of its non-current assets and other than
financial instruments are attributed to the operations in

Hong Kong.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as they
are not regularly provided to the Group’s Executive

Committee.

2 EBEFR (&)

Hftt o BE R (F)

DEBREE DR Z G, EE
ZEE WARMBRARDBEITHREAN ~ 12
RNFEIGERREEGRBEZ MK EE
ZRFEEE  WRERAFEIRRE
BalREE M EE 2 W (BR) -
K& N R 2 s 2 MERE R DA B
ERRZEE AR EBHRITEE
SRENENEER L ERR 2 E%E

mE

RZE-—NEFERFT—N\F TESE—
BEMAEEWZF10% A L - AEE
CEBDEEIRER (BH) - =

T-NERZZT—N\F AEBHINE
FZRHETBREEE -BRemEREIN
REBMET2HIERDEEDEETBE
BE@ -

HRAORHEENABYEFEHREHRTA
SEMTEES WA E2NEHEH -
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7. OTHER LOSSES 7. HfbEia
2019 2018
—2-nE -—T-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Loss on disposal of property HEDERKRBZEIE
and equipment 166 149
Net exchange loss ERERERE 16 58
182 207
8. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8. BIMA (BEESEHL)
EMOLUMENTS)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Staff commission BEITREE 1,937 5,846
Salaries and wages HeEehITE 33,858 47,120
Termination benefit wILERENS 148 5,335
Staff welfare BI®RH 1,548 2,244
Recruitment costs R B 11 354
Provision of long service REORBE/FR
payment/annual leave benefits 12 T B 5 237 463
Retirement benefits scheme RIKAE M ET &K
contributions 924 1,263
Discretionary and performance related ~ EJf5EXRIRMRIES &
incentive payments and provision of Hm N & B
gratuity 1,942 1,651
Equity-settled share option expense VA RR A 3 A5 2 B P #eE B <2 - 19,770
40,605 84,046
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8. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme")
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of
which are held in separate trustee-administered funds.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme have
switched to the MPF Scheme and all new eligible
employees joining the Group on or after December 2000
are all under the MPF Scheme. No further contribution
was made to the ORSO Scheme after the switch. The
account of ORSO Scheme which the Group participated

has been closed in September 2018.

Both the Group and the employees contribute a fixed
percentage of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.

The contribution by the Group is capped at HK$1,500

per employee per month and is expensed as incurred.

BEIRA (BRESEHE) (&)

AN ER B HE 1T AR 3B KB SR IR AT 8RB
AE Az SROE HARET 81 (18 % R KA
g mR-_ZTTETFET - ARE(R
BIE A TR S A BRG] RS 58 H 1 AR
& ([RESFE) - BRI
BERAEREEEESORARBA - REHE
TR EIRATEBERAAEINE 2R
BEBARESFE MR _TTZTF
TZRARZEFMAREBZFABERE
RESAAZMBEESFE - BARE
TatER - BERBERAKETEELHE
R AEEER-_Z-N\FAABME
BRI EIRRP -

AEBREEBHREBTF S ZETEAD
Lhm g E R st B R - NEEZHK
RAESHEES A1,5008 T KD
R ERTIERS °
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9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 9. EERFETHAEME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 ENEREMNRARNNIMG (ZE—NF:
(2018: 14) directors of the Company were as follows: 14 EEZMEmT :

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE-E-NE+t-A=1-BLEE

Discretionary
and Equity-
Retirement  performance settled
Salaries benefits related share
and other scheme incentive option Total
Fees benefits contribution ~ payments expense emoluments

UBRAEX

FeR  BAEANEG BERRE  HZBR
e EfEd Bt BRRENX L £53 ]k
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Executive Directors HITES
Fu Yiu Man, Peter (note 5) REX(Hits) - 2,040 18 - - 2,058
Tin Ka Pak, Timmy B - 960 18 - - 978
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo EET - 960 18 - - 978
Xie Jintai (note 1) HER W21 - 277 - - - 277
Zhang Min (note 2) RR(M:22) - 774 18 - - 792
Jiang Tian (note 3) ZX(W3#3) - 173 4 - - 177
Lu Mengjia (note 4) BE%E (Hita) - 333 7 - - 340

Independent Non-executive By #3178

Directors

Wong Chung Kin, Quentin ZiNE 216 - - - - 216
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH Z88 216 - - - - 216
Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH B3, w 216 - - - - 216
Chiang Ho Wai (note 9) LI (Hi9) 72 - - - - 72

720 5517 83 - - 6,320
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEME (F)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-\F+_Azt-ALEE

Discretionary
and Equity-
Retirement  performance settled
Salaries benefits related share
and other scheme incentive option Total
Fees benefits  contribution payments expense  emoluments
PR
ekt  RARNMG BEBERREA L EBIRE
we =l ity BRBNR (53 ame

HK$000  HK$000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
TER TER TET TET TAL TAL

Executive Directors HITES
Fu Yiu Man, Peter (note 5) TR (s) _ 1,894 15 _ _ 1,909
Tin Ka Pak, Timmy Bz - 1626 18 - - 1,644
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo 28I - 1627 18 - 3,162 4,807
Xie Jintai (note 1) HAREMW1) - 1,046 - - - 1,046
Zhang Min (note 2) KR (H#2) - 434 10 - - 444
Jiang Tian (note 3) ER(W##3) - 357 9 - - 366
Lu Mengjia (note 4) BEz(Hits) - 160 3 - - 163
Chung Chi Shing, Eric (note 6) &5 (#1:76) - 270 3 - 315 588
Shen Li (note 7) LB (H##7) - 1673 12 - - 1,685
Zhou Francis Bingrong (note 8) Bk B (#7:28) - 339 6 - - 345
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
Directors
Wong Chung Kin, Quentin BB 216 - - - 80 296
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH BN 216 - - - 80 296
Siu Miu Man, Simon, uH BY X, w 216 - - - 80 296
Chiang Ho Wai (note 9) BER(M29) 58 - - - - 58

706 9,426 94 - 377 13,943
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BE

9.

e

NE+T-_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Xie Jintai was resigned with effect from 20 May 2019.

Mr. Zhang Min has been appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 25 June 2018

and resigned with effect from 3 December 2019.

Mr. Jiang Tian has been appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 25 June 2018
and resigned with effect from 1 April 2019.

Ms. Lu Mengjia has been appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 November
2018 and resigned with effect from 6 May 2019.

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter has been appointed as the Executive

Director of the Company with effect from 2 March 2018.

Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric was resigned with effect from 2
March 2018.

Ms. Shen Li was appointed as the Executive Director of the
Company on 2 March 2018 and resigned with effect from
1 November 2018.

Mr. Zhou Francis Bingrong was appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 22 January 2018
and resigned with effect from 16 April 2018.

Mr. Chiang Ho Wai has been appointed as the Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
24 September 2018 and was resigned with effect from 1
May 2019.

ESRETETBRAENE ()

Kz -

1. BRFREER-_ZE-AFRA-+H
HEFHIE -

2. REREER-Z-NFRA-+IH
BZERARAATES AIN_-F
—NFET-A=ZBEFIE-

3. EREER_Z-NFRAZ-+AA
EEREA/ARARNTES IR =
Z-NFHUA - HEBE-

4. EERLZLIR_ZT-NFE+—-HF—H
REZERARFMNITESE AR
T-NFRANHBBE-

5. RBXAER-_ZT-NF=ZAZHE
BZERAARRITES -

6. BEREE-T-N\F=ZAZBLBE -

7. BEKtTR-—_E—- N\E=F-—BEEZ
TAERRABIRITES TR =T —AN
F+—A—HRBEE-

8. RAXKBEERZ=ZZTE-—N\F—-—A=+=
BREEZTARNARRMITES IR
—N\FEWM A+ BEREHT -

9. BEBEANR_Z-NAFAA-T+ME
PREZERARBBEILIFNTES
WHR-FE—NFRA—HEEIE-
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9.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The Non-executive Directors’ and Independent
Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy had also been the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company until he stepped down effective
from 1 January 2019 (but remains as an Executive
Director since then) and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief

Executive Officer.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no share options
(2018: 9,332,000) were granted to the directors of the
Company to subscribe for ordinary shares of the
Company in respect of their services provided to the
Group. These share options were vested immediately and
no share option expense (2018: HK$3,717,000) was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Details of the share option scheme of the Company are

set out in note 33.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
ordinary shares were awarded to the directors of the
Company under share incentive award schemes in
respect of their services provided to the Group. Further

details of which are set out in note 33.

EERETETBRAENE ()

EXFEATESTHEEIEBERNEER
BEERARNARAREEBREZ R -
EXHESFMITESE NBUIFNITES
MeX2RANBEEHERRRESRHE
ZBR% °

XA £ R HEARBITHRAR
E_E-NF-A-HRERL(ER
EFHTESR) LXHBEZHEERER
A PATT R 48 £ & 17 12 4 AR 755 WO ER 2 A

BE_Z-NAF+_A=+—HLEE
N ARAREFTERMAEBRMZ
AR 75 4% AT SR BB AR R E B AR 2 BE R
(ZZT—/\F :9,332,00017) - 2518
BREDAKEE TERBE-_T—N
FHZA=Z+—HLFERULERER
BEYZ (ZZF—/\F :3,717,000%T) °
BERAARAEIRES & 2 s B &AM
33

HEZZ—NhFRZZE-N\F+=A
=+—RIEFEAR  BEEERG ZE
HERARREETMAEERHZIRG
MR SRR E MR - BRIE —PaEH
RBIFE33 o

199



200

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRER AT

Annual Report 2019 £}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &M SR ERMsE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR 10.
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2018: three) was a director of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 9. The emoluments of the remaining

four individuals (2018: two) were as follows:

I GREHEEREREERE

o &
AEBRAUEBHEMALR  —f1 (=
Z—\F:ZH) ARARESE A8
SERBNMES - BTME (=N
FomB) AL ZBMeRFIMT :

2019 2018

ZE-AF —T-N\#F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Salaries and other benefits FohHMER 5,523 4,943

Retirement benefit scheme RKAE B ET B K

contributions 72 12
Discretionary and performance 15 2% 3R 48 B 22 B 1< 3K

related incentive payments 996 -

Equity-settled share option expense WA AR 32 5 2 B AR M 7 =2 - 194

6,591 5,149

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEZMENFTIIERE :

Number of individuals

AH
2019 2018
—2-nE -T2 )\F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7L & 1,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L £2,000,0007% 7T 4 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - 2
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Other than the emoluments of directors and the chief
executive disclosed in note 9, the emoluments of the

senior management fell within the following bands:

10. AV G EHFEERSREEE

< (&)

BRI BEEEERFETHRABZ
e aREBB2MeNF T3
:

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000/ 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,000% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7L £3,000,0007% 7T - 2

The senior management represents key management
personnel of the Group, other than directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in note 9. The
emoluments of the key management personnel are

included in note 38.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as inducements to join or upon

joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

AREEEEAEECEEERAS (T
BREARAESR  BEZHMEBE RN
OFHE) FEEBABZMEHR
Bi5E38 o

BHE_Z-NER_ZE-—NF+H
=St+—BLEFEARA  ARBAEAARR
REERASERNESH ALK
FERERBN® - YE/R IR AR E AN
By BENSERBERMEE -
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. ME KA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest expense on: INTIEEB 2 F B :
Convertible bonds issued (note 30) BEBITAIRRES (F1:230) 3,248 21,203
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERREX 11 79
Lease liabilities (note 20) MEBE M F20) 701 -
3,960 21,282
12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 12. FEM (E8) M
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Current tax: BVERRR I
Hong Kong Profits Tax FRMFH - 914
The People’s Republic of China hEARAM
("PRC") Enterprise Income Tax ([HEL]) MRS 48 45
Under (over) provision in prior year MEFERETE GBE)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEHR (20) (29)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ERETR 4 (8)
Deferred tax IR ERR A
Current year (note 29) KEE (H15£29) (623) (581)

(591) 341
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporation will be
taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the Group
is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as there are no assessable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC entities is 25% from 1 January 2008

onwards.

Pursuant to the rules and regulation of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income

tax in this jurisdiction.

12. FRrE 8 (B %) B X ()

R_E-NE=A_-+—B BB %
FRB(ZE—LFHRBK (B (B75)
BOIER) (MEFIEZR]) - | AFER
M ZEOIERR_T—NF=A
ZHN\BEEERRERE  TREARAT
BoRBEANGEHMERH - cEREEE
2,000,000/ 7T i M 2 B & %8.25% -
i #8 #82,000,000/% 7T 2 jam H) #i & &
165% HEZE—N\F+-_A="4—
BIEFE AEEETEERERBZE
BREBRFEBRASTE - BRE
B -NFTZA=+—BLFEY
EERFOEF - RAERBFBFEHAIE
R o

BEFEAREMBECEMSTE (D
FAHEBED REEMGBIEERE
Pl PERERBIMEA_TENF—H
—HEH25% °

REABEZHS ((RERELXES])
RAINRG - NEBBAMMNZRERE
&2 EMFT1FH -
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued) 12. FREH (EA2)BEX (&)

The tax (credit) expense can be reconciled to the loss WME M) YHESEEEREME

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

EWARZEHRATEBERET

2019 2018
—E-hEF AN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET

Loss before tax BT AT ES 1B (93,960) (485,975)
Calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax BREEMNEHHE16.5%

rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZZE—N\F :165%)H (15,503) (80,186)
Tax effect of share of loss of DhEE R REE Y

an associate MR 10 2
Tax effect of different tax rate of ERERRETRABEZ

the PRC representative offices DTRV37% 47 45
Tax effect of income not taxable for HBIEM S BEHBWA 2

tax purpose ki34 (791) (365)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ BB M S A/ B L 2

for tax purpose MR E 6,946 49,156
Overprovision in respect of prior year B FEBEERE (16) 37)
Tax effect of temporary difference RER B ERE 2

not recognised MR E 7,149 16,313
Utilisation of previously unrecognised AT RER 2 AT B

deductible temporary difference b B 2= 58 (741) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BANUTRERZHIBER

tax losses (2,425) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ KERMBEEE ZHEFE 4,733 15,578
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rates FERMARSG 222

regime - (165)
Tax (credit) expense for the year FREHBIE(EE) X H (591) 341
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

13.

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Included in other operating expenses:

Auditor's remuneration

Depreciation of property
and equipment

Depreciation for right-of-use assets

Expenses relating to short-term leases
(note 20)

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

Entertainment and travel expenses
(mainly incurred for business

development)

CREESENE

RHAERX
(H1at20)

HEMEZKERS

FEMZRAS (X8
MEBERMES)

FEESR
F BB ER T IS RE TR

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
1,080 1,080
3,304 2,108
6,047 -
4,593 -

- 10,710

6,017 9,220

14. DIVIDENDS

14.

No dividends have been paid or declared or proposed by

the Company during the years ended 31 December

2019 and 2018.

R B

B2 NErRZZE—N\F+=HA
—t+—HLFE ARRTEINHE
IR BT B o
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15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREA
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RAGEEAEBEERERNREESE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on TR AT 8URETE -
the following data:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Loss for the purpose of basic and R EESRELAREE
diluted loss per share BEZEBER
Loss for the year attributable to RATHEA ANEIG
owners of the Company FEEE (93,369) (486,316)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
‘000 ‘000
T F A%
Number of shares R4 88
Weighted average number of ordinary — Ftit B B REAR K EEE
shares for the purpose of basic and 2 E BRI RE T 8
diluted loss per share 1,230,952 985,197
The computation of diluted loss per share does not SESREEEERUTEBRRARAR
assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding BEATRKRES KR AETEEEH
convertible bonds since their exercise would result in a BE_T—NAFrE_ZE—N\F+_A
=t-

decrease in loss per share for the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not

BUEFEZERERRD

EER#BEEERYERRARAE

assume the exercise of the Company's share options
because the exercise price of those share options was
higher than the average market price for shares for both
2019 and 2018.

Hﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ CABBEZITEESR S
—NERZF-N\F2ROFIHE -
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16. GOODWILL 16. &
HK$'000
FERT
Carrying value ARMEE
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary FARKEH B AR MES (#:237)
during the year (Note 37) and at ERZZE-NF+A=+—H
31 December 2019 2,016

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to one CGU, comprising a
subsidiary in the provision of insurance brokerage

services.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, management
of the Company determines that there is no impairment

on goodwill.

RETHENR  LRHEEIEE—
B —ERERRECRE KB
%ﬂﬁizfﬁﬁéiﬁﬁ(ﬁzfﬁiéii
A e

RBE-_FT-NF+-_A=1T—"BL*F
CARREEEEERELERE -

PG
EI
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17. TRADING RIGHTS 17. X5 %
HK$'000
FET
Cost [N
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RZE-NF—A—AH-
and 31 December 2019 —E-N\F+ZA=+—H8K
—E-AF+-_A=+—H 5,066
Amortisation BN
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF—-—HA—RH"
and 31 December 2019 —E-N\FF+ZA=+—HBK
—E—hE+-_A=+—H 5,066
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2018 and RZBE—NF+_A=+—8K
31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZA=+—H -
Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from 6 March RHOER_EEEE= AE (BT -

2000, the effective date of the merger of the Stock

BEERRARBEATREREBERAA

Exchange, HKFE and Hong Kong Securities Clearing ([EHEE D AMER) Y HEB -

Company Limited (“HKSCC").
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HW B\ EE
HK$'000
FHT
Cost DN
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RZFE—-NF—H—H-
and 31 December 2019 —E-N\F+ZA=t+—-HBE
—E-NAF+ZA=+—H 1,538
Accumulated impairment 2FHRE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RZ_E—-NF—HA—H"
and 31 December 2019 —F2-N\F+-_A=+—HK
—E-NAF+-A=+—H 292
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NF+ZA=+—-HBE
31 December 2019 —E-hAF+-_A=+—H 1,246
Other intangible assets represent club memberships with HEihER EESEER FAEHAFEHY
indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment SHesE s WUAFEREERA AR
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their SE 1 4F e RS (A & H AT Uk B 4 EE A
recoverable amounts based on fair value less costs to WITHERS c AEEEAITESEENT
sell. The fair value is determined using an observable BT EAMETSBRETFT  REE—
market price or recent market transaction price and no T NER-_E—N\E+-_F=+—H

indication of impairment was noted during the years IFEERTELERBEIRR -
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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19. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 19. MERFZE
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold  fixtures and  equipment Motor
improvements  equipment  and software vehicles Total
HE HH-%E ERRME
NEEE &L k&4 "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FET FEL FET
Cost KA
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\E—H—H 4,440 4,922 9,614 3,874 22,850
Additions NE - 27 842 - 869
Disposal HE - (23) (168) (891) (1,082)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZA=1+—*H 4,440 4926 10,288 2,983 22,637
Additions RE 5,689 938 217 200 7,044
Write-off 34 - (64) (118) - (182)
Disposal HE (4,415) (1,150) (2,453) (1,422) (9,440)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+ZA=+—H 5714 4,650 7934 1,761 20,059
Depreciation il
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—-H—H 3,958 4,281 8,544 1,563 18,146
Charge for the year FRRX 389 225 860 634 2,108
Disposal HE - (1) (113) (337) (461)
At 31 December 2018 WZE-NF
+-A=+-H 4347 4,495 9,291 1,660 19,793
Charge for the year ERFX 2,005 321 553 425 3,304
Write-off Hsa - (64) (118) - (182)
Disposal HE (4,321) (1,139) (2,425) (886) (8,771)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+ZA=+—H 2,031 3,613 7,301 1,199 14,144
Carrying values RHE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+ZA=1+-H 3,683 1,037 633 562 5915
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NEF
+ZA=1+-H 93 431 997 1323 2,844
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19. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 19. MERRZE (E)
The above items of property and equipment are P ERFREEB DABSRERUAT
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates FRFERE -
per annum:
Over the lease term not TS =F
Leasehold improvements exceeding three years HEMERE GiERY)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 20% B REREZE  20%
Computer equipment and software ~ 33'/5% B R S R 331/5%
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
20. LEASES 20. HE
(i) Right-of-use assets (i) EAEEE
31/12/2019 1/1/2019
—E-NnF —E-N%F
+=—B=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Leased properties HEME 10,879 13,622
The Group has lease arrangements for its office AEBEREFEYE BEIBEE
premises, staff quarters and car parking spaces. The MOREMEI A EZHE - HE—R
lease terms are generally ranged from two to three RME=F o
years.
Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ERBIBEZHBELN #E-T
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to —NFE+_A=+—BLEEZF

HK$3,304,000 due to new leases of staff quarters. F#EBEENE 53,304,000 7T ©
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20. LEASES (continued) 20. HE (&)

(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEEE
31/12/2019 1/1/2019
—EB-NF —E-NF
+=ZB=+-—H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Non-current FEME 4,409 8,914
Current i) 6,641 4,266
11,050 13,180
31/12/2019
—E-AF
t=A=+—-AH
HK$'000
FTHET
Within one year —F R 6,641
After one year but within two years —FREMFEA 4,409
11,050

Less: Amount due for settlement within W 1218 B NZELE 2B

12 months (shown under current GIREBEET)

liabilities) (6,641)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 B & B #&8 2 FA 4,409
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the HE_Z-—NF+A=+—H1
Group entered into one new lease agreement in FE AEERHEEWESISL—B
respect of renting property and recognised lease HHEWwE UTHEIAEESED

liability of approximately $3,188,000. 3,188,000/ 7T °
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20. LEASES (continued) 20. HE (&)
(iii) Amounts due recognised in profit or loss (i) R RER 2 BN RIE
31/12/2019
—B-hF
+=ZBA=+—H
HK$'000
FERT
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets  FAEEE 2 MERX 6,047
Expense relating to short-term leases HEMEERBE  AX 4,593
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 11) MHEBEZF B (Hit11) 701
(iv) Others (iv) Hftb
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total HE-_Z—NWF+-A=+—H1t
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately FE - MHEMEEZRBSRLELN
HK$10,612,000. /310,612,000 7T °
21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21, R N T > 2
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
Cost of investment in an associate REEE R B 2 E KA 10,000 10,000
Impairment loss IEE R (5,000) -
Share of post-acquisition losses and AMEEREER
other comprehensive expenses Hih2HEHAX (74) (an

4,926 9,989
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the details of the

Group's associate are as follows:

Country of
Name of entity Form of entity  incorporation
(L5 L1374 BRI
Telebox Technology ~ Incorporated ~~ Republic of
Holdngs Limted & fF T Seychelles
EERAN

21. REBE QR 2 & ()
R-B-—NAER-F—-N\F+-A

[1]
-+ 1

— B AKEZBZEARFEHI

sy
pum ]
=

Proportion of

Principal place Class of ownership interests Proportion of
held by the Group
AREHE

FRERLLH FERRRLA
2019 2018 2019 2018

SB-AF ZFO0F ZE-0F

of operation  shares held voting power held  Principal activities

TRERME FERGEA TEER

PRC 30%

HE

Ordinary 30% 30% 30% () Operation of socidl

AR media platform

(i) Operation of
cryptocurrency
trading platform

aenzss
25%4

(i) Provision of digitel
wallet for
custody and
transfer of
cryptocurrencies

REHESR
tERER
MEERERH
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. ABE QT 2 &= (])
The summarised financial information of the associate HAEEMEEZEYFAEREARZ
that is material to the Group and are accounted for using BERNRCHMBEERBESHS T

equity method is set out below:

2019 2018

ZE-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Current assets mENEE - 1
Non-current assets FEMEEE - 2,808
Current liabilities mEBBE (260) (2,858)
Non-current liabilities EMEBE - -
2019 2018

—E-hF —ZT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Revenue Wz - -

Loss and other comprehensive FEEERAMEPERX

expense for the year 214 50
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. REAE DT M ()

22.

The reconciliation of the summarised financial

information presented above to the carrying amount of

the interest in the associate is set out below:

5B TS E R B B
EEHERHEINWT :

EREERR

2019 2018
—EB-NF —EF-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Net liabilities of the associate BEnmzBEFER (260) (49)
The Group's share of net liabilities of N B 5 {5 Telebox Technology
Telebox Technology Holdings Limited Holdings Limited 2z & (& 5 %8 (78) (15)
Goodwill RS 10,004 10,004
Impairment loss B &8 (5,000) -
Carrying amount of the Group's AN E B M Telebox Technology
interest in Telebox Technology Holdings Limited# z5 2
Holdings Limited FRHEE 4,926 9,989

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

22. BAFEIRRERMEZEY

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARBECZUBEE
2019 2018
—2-nE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Unlisted equity securities designated BERRAFEIIRKR
as at FVTOC! (notes a & b) TEMEEBRAREE 2
I EHRRARE S (B itakb) 47,054 207,084
Analysed for reporting purpose as BEmE BN DIIE
non-current assets FERBDEE 47,054 207,084
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

On 8 June 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds
with 2% coupon rate at a total principal value of
HK$160,000,000 to an independent third party, CVP
Financial Group Limited, as the consideration of the
acquisition of 18% of the entire equity securities issued by
Hackett Enterprises Limited, a private entity incorporated in
the Republic of Seychelles, which, together with its
subsidiaries, is engaged in the business of provision of loan
financing and financial consultancy services in the PRC and

the provision of money lending services in Hong Kong.

According to the valuation as at 31 December 2019 by an
independent professional valuer, the fair value of these
equity securities was approximately HK$47,054,000, a fair
value loss of approximately HK$160,030,000 was

recognised under the other comprehensive income.

The amount also includes the Group's investments in 5%
and 5% of the unlisted equity securities issued by two
private entities incorporated in Hong Kong and the British
Virgin Islands respectively. Their principal activities are
investment holding in the PRC and operation of restaurants
in Hong Kong respectively. The fair value of both
investments were approximately to HK$Nil as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

22. BAFEIRREEMGEZEY
ARBEZMBEE (&)
Bt

@ RZE-NFEXANB  XARET
N 42 %8 /160,000,000/8 TT2[E FH
BREZABKRESTBILE=ER
CREBEFERAF (EREBEBAEE
M Hackett Enterprises LimitedFT517 2
HBRAEFSRZ18%ZIKENRE  Z
NE R —MEREZTBHAMB MK
ZHARTE  EREMBAFTEER
FRFEEHERRE &SRB R
% U RREBRERER -

REBYEXEEOAN_-_F-NF
T A=+ BZEE ZERARES
2 2T {E4947,054,000/8 7T - A H Al 2
HBEAFERRBALAFEBEN
160,030,000/ 7T °

(b) ﬁi%ﬁ BAREERRED BINE
BERRBRELCBESTMERLZAR
T%%ﬁ#im%$ & 775% & 5% 2 1%
BoRERRIZEZEBDANARE
BEETERERNEBEEERE R
—hWFF+ZA=Z+—BER=ZZT—N
F+ZA=+—8B ZEREZAQF
BHNRTAET -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 2. BRAFEIEREHMAZE I

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) AREEBHBEE (&)

Notes: (continued) Hia - (&)

(c) This investment in equity securities is not held-for-trading. © RPBRAFBHFZBREVIEREEE M
Instead, it is held for medium to long-term strategic RERFERARBARTES - Bt K
purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company have REAEZEERBKZSEREEERR
elected to designate these investments as at FVTOCI as NFEIRREEMEERARERE
they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in REAREERAE REXEERZSE
these investments' fair value in profit or loss would not be BEZRBATEEDHEASEEER
consistent with the Group's strategy of holding these M EZSRENBRZEREZR
investments for long-term purposes and realising their BRRBENHRETE -

performance potential in the long run.

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23. B AFEIRREERKRER
PROFIT OR LOSS ZHEEE
Details of financial assets at FVTPL are set out as follows: BATEIENEESEFERE KA

EZFBEINMT

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Financial assets mandatorily BHIEAFEIER
measured at FVTPL EEEREEZ
MBEE
Convertible bonds (note a & b) R ES (M itakb) 297,087 304,081
Listed equity securities listed in NEXEEMZ EHRA
Hong Kong (held-for-trading) BH(FEEH) 162,138 240,282
459,225 544,363
Analysed for reporting purpose: PEmE B RO
— Non-current assets —ERBEE 13,358 304,081
— Current assets -nBEE 445,867 240,282

459,225 544,363
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes:

(@

On 18 October 2017, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Pacific Alliance Limited
("PAL") as vendor, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to purchase, and PAL agreed to sell, the 3-year 2%,
unsecured redeemable convertible bonds with the principal
amount of HK$153,585,000 issued by China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune”, Stock Code:
290) on 30 March 2017 (the “China Fortune Convertible
Bonds”) for an aggregate consideration of
HK$400,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The consideration of
HK$40,000,000 was satisfied in cash and the balance of
the consideration of HK$360,000,000 was satisfied by way
of issue of the convertible bonds by the Company at the
completion date of the Acquisition. The China Fortune
Convertible Bonds are convertible into 2,559,750,000
conversion shares of China Fortune at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.06 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments). The Acquisition was completed on 8 January
2018. The China Fortune Convertible Bonds were classified
as financial assets at FVTPL and measured at fair value at
initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period
(note 30).

23. BAFEIRREESRER

2 BEE (&)
HioE -
@ R-T—+tE+ATNR FAAR

Pacific Alliance Limited ([PAL] - {E A&
TR —HE&EWE  HBit - ARA
REEE MPALRELEFRHERS
MEFFRAR([FEER] - RER
%2000 RZE—tF=A=+H%
137K 4 %8 /153,585,000 T Z = F £
20 SR A fE ) AR AR E 5 ([F B
BRI RRES]) I RZBRE
#/400,000,000% 7T ([WHEEE]) - &
#40,000,000/ 7t 2 (R ETH AR &
- H #:360,000,000% 7T 2 X & 8 A
AARPWEEETKBBAETZA
BRESH 2 A A - HBEF R A8
BREFAZVTRARETRER
R#mo.o6E T (Al FTHE)L]|E
2,559,750,0000% A B & 58 # AR Ak 17 -
WEEBER-_E—N\F—ANB=
e BEZARABKRESDDBRIE
NFEINREREEBHERB MK E
E RUSHEIABRRSBMEBRER
FEF=E (f330) -
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)

In return for the Company's undertaking to China Fortune
that the Company shall not exercise the conversion rights
attaching to the China Fortune Convertible Bonds from the
completion date up to and including 29 March 2019, PAL
grants to the Company a put option which require PAL to
purchase from the Company the China Fortune Convertible
Bonds to the extent of the principal amount of
HK$76,792,500. Exercising the put option by partial
disposal of China Fortune Convertible Bonds in 2020 have

been disclosed in note 42.

The fair values of the China Fortune Convertible Bonds
HK$283,729,000 (2018: HK$304,081,000) as at 31
December 2019 and were calculated using the binomial
option pricing model (“Binomial Model”) by an
independent professional valuer in which the major

parameters were summarised as follows:

BT ANZBE

Share price of the issuer

BTN BIEEFI%
L o

Effective interest rate of the issuer
Risk free rate
Expected volatility of the issuer

BITAZREE

Dividend yield of the issuer

BT A Z AR E

23. BAFEIBRRERSERER
ZHBEE (&)
#E: (#)

(@

(&)

NN BT B BE (NN
ERERBHBE-Z—NF= ﬂ
—+jLE|( B A)TERBEE®RA
N6 18 5 BT B 75 2 32 A& 4 - PALAI R A
ﬂ?&ﬁjﬂfﬁﬂﬂﬁév}mmgimmﬁ
REEEREE %ﬁ‘fﬁﬁx{i%(u
76,792,500 7T 2 K& R HR) °
Z_EFRAHES S TEE %ﬁﬂﬁﬂx
EHFMITERGEE—F2 R F42

PREERAIBRESFNR_T—NF
T A=+-"BZRAFEHA
283,729,000 T (=& — \F -
304,081,000/ 7T) * JhERB L HE XA
EBRRA-—EAREEERNX (25
AEXDFTE HFZ28lmT -

31 December 31 December

2018 2019
—ZT-N\F —E-hF
+ZA=+—-H8 +=ZA=+-—H
HK$0.085 HK$0.059
0.085% 7T 0.059% T

12% 15%

1.73% 2.16%

4500 42.75%

0% 0%
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

(®)

(continued)

The effective interest rate of the issuer was determined
with reference to the average of the bond yields of the
comparable companies with similar businesses and credit
rating of the issuer. Risk free rate was determined with
reference to yield of Hong Kong government bonds over
the exercise period near the valuation dates of 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 respectively.
Expected volatility of the issuer was determined using the
historical volatility of the issuer's share price over the
exercise period as at the valuation dates of 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 respectively.

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, VC
Brokerage Limited (“VC Brokerage”) had acquired a
3-year 2.5%, unsecured non-refundable convertible bonds
issued by Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (“Asia
Energy” Stock code: 351) issued on 8 November 2019 for
a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000. The initial conversion price of the
convertible bonds is HK$0.30 per share. The transaction
was completed on 14 November 2019 (“Asia Energy
Convertible Bonds").

23 BAFEIRRERSRER
ZHBEE (&)
Mt (F)

(@

®)

(&)

BOAZEBRNERD2EEBETAE
BEREEFREEZTEALBRARZ
FHEFOHREET - ERARANETD
SEZREBRNESFREEAH-F
—NE+ A=+ -ARZZT-NF
TZAZT—RAAERTERARZE
WMEREE - BHITAZEBINESEM
REERM-_Z-AF+_A=+—
BER-Z-NF+-_A=+—BR7T
EHAR 2 BT ABREE LR IREE -

ARGz 2EMBRARIERZESER
AR (ERZFH]) BWBETIMNERD
HEEARAR (TEMEER] - BRER
BRI E-AEFE+—ANBE
1T 235 Hi2. 58 B MK 38 T AT 1R 3R AT 2
B (& % (4 £ %8 /10,000,000 L)
R {B 410,000,000/ T ° AJ R EFH 2
MARRE ABIR0I0E T - GRS
BERZZT-AF+—A+HABRRKR (D
MR ES]) ©
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) (continued)

The fair value of the Asia Energy Convertible Bonds was
approximately HK$13,167,000 as at the acquisition date
and approximately HK$13,358,000 as at 31 December
2019 and was calculated using Binomial Model by an
independent professional valuer in which the parameters

were summarised as follows:

Share price of the issuer BITAZ KRB
BITAZEBRNE
2 [ B M R
BT A 2 TAHK B
BITAZKREE

Effective interest rate of the issuer
Risk free rate
Expected volatility of the issuer

Dividend yield of the issuer

The effective interest rate of the issuer was determined
with reference to the average of the bond yields of the
comparable companies with similar businesses and credit
rating of the issuer. Risk free rate was determined with
reference to yield of Hong Kong government bonds over
the exercise period near the valuation dates of 14
November 2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively.
Expected volatility of the issuer was determined using the
historical volatility of the issuer's share price over the
exercise period as at the valuation dates of 14 November
2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively.

Annual Report 2019 £}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &M SR ERMsE

23. BAFEIBRRERSERER
ZHBEE (&)
#E: (#)

(b)

(&)

REEBHE-_Z—AFE+=A
=+—B DMERARKRES ZA
FEDHLHAE13,167,000% 7T &
13,358,000/ 7T * DHBE Y EXEHE
MEA—EAEAFE  H288an
Ul

14 November 31 December
2019 2019
—E-NF —E-NF

+t—A+mE +=A=t+-—H

HK$0.395 HK$0.4
0.3958 7T 0.4 T
12% 12%
1.70% 1.66%
82% 84%

0% 0%

BITAZBRNETSEEETAE
BREEFRBEEZTALBRARZ
FHEFORXETE - ERARAET
SEBZEBNESFREERAH -F
—“NF+—A+TEHERE-Z-AF
TZTAZT AR TERARZE
WEREE - BT AZERMIETE R
REER#H-_Z-AF+—-A+HA
RZZ-NAEF+A=+—BRIT®
HAZ BT ARBELKEEE -
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. EUWERR

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary £ B % £ B2 R# 1T
course of business of dealing in: NTZHMEEZ
FEUER K
Securities transactions (note a): EFEHERX G (Wita)
Clearing house HEERT 5,209 763
Cash clients REEFP 2,922 15,821
Futures and options contracts HELPEaNRS
transactions (note a): (Htita) -
Clearing house EE 18 17
8,149 16,601
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary £ B % £ B2
course of business of provision of RECEREREM
corporate finance and other advisory BRREMEEZ
services (note a) FEW R SK (M ita) 6,419 5,673
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (450) -
5,969 5,673
14,118 22,274
Accounts receivable arising from the EREEBBREREET
ordinary course of business of MERBEBEMELZ
money lending services (note b) e BRX (HfiZh) 114,072 60,552
Less: Impairment loss W OREE R (31,433) (40,469)
82,639 20,083
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary £ B F 2% BRHPEET
course of business of dealing in (note ¢): TR SmESE
2 FERWBR TR (Wt atc)
Securities transactions: BHERS
Margin clients RESEP 148,545 131,157
Less: Impairment loss W OREEE (21,622) (5,587)
126,923 125,570
223,680 167,927

As at 31 December 2019, the gross amount of accounts
receivable arising from contracts with customers amounted
to approximately HK$14,568,000 (2018: HK$22,274,000).

RZE—-NE+-A=+—8 BEF
AIVAHMEEZRINERBREBL A
14,568,000 T (=& — J\&F
22,274,000 7T) ©
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The Group measures the loss allowance for accounts
receivable at an amount equal to 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL. The ECL on accounts receivable are
estimated using a provision matrix on those under
simplified approach with reference to past default
experience of the accounts receivable, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the accounts receivable, latest
collateral valuation, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast

direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Notes:

(a) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities
transactions are two trading days after the trade date and
accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of dealing in futures and options contracts
transactions are one trading day after the trade date.
Accounts receivable from clearing house and majority of
accounts receivable from cash clients represent trades
pending settlement arising from the business of dealing in

securities transactions.

In respect of the accounts receivable arising from dealing
in securities, futures and options contracts, except for those
amounts due from margin clients, the aging analysis based

on the trade date is as follows:

Within 30 days 308 A
31 — 90 days 31290H
Over 90 days #BE90H

24. BWIRR (&)

AEEZEEFR T _EARREEREE
FREFEDREREEERZSRAE
FEW R 2 B IR R - BURF 2B
EEBRNVEBLITELEREENE
ECEDNRBRERABEE MG A5
FEM R < H & - 30 msoa Mk
B BRLERRARNRE HBHEHR
T RIBRIAONBERET R SHEFH AR -

HizE -

(@ ERAREBAETHRETEERESR
SMELAZRRERZEERRES
EMEmEZS 8 MEBBEKB
RARETEEHRERHRANRS
MELZERERZEEHRRESHA
HE—EAX50 - BREEMERERK
RBDEURREEPERIBRETE
EEFRIEBMELZFTRERS -

:

RETEEZS MERBEALOM
EEZEBER(BRRESEFPERER
Mo z R i GREE BEIGEE) 1
T

2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
7,743 16,158

53 101

353 342

8,149 16,601
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

()

24. EWARFR (&)

Hiat o (&)

(continued) (a) (#&)
The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from CTHEEBRAERETFRRHECERER
the ordinary course of business of provision of corporate HEtEMRESMEL 2 EWERR 24
finance and other advisory services are normally due HH— e E RS EE B
immediately from date of billing but the Group may grant a AREBEAGETEEFFH0EBEZEE
credit period of 30 days on average to its clients. The aging o ZERMBFBZRERYIT(RER
analysis of these receivables based on the invoice date is HEASE) AT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within 30 days 30BR 1,716 2,859
31 — 90 days 31%290H 787 1,387
Over 90 days HBiB90H 3,466 1,427
5,969 5,673
As at 31 December 2019, accounts receivable arising from b) Z—hF+-_A=+—8B" ' &H

the ordinary course of business of money lending services
bear fixed-rate interest of 1.5% per month or 12% per
annum (2018: 1.5% per month or 12% per annum). The
accounts receivable had remaining contractual maturity
date falling within one year as at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2019, accounts receivable with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$44 million
(2018: HK$3 million) were secured by the clients' listed

securities.

»w=
BEBBEFANEREMEELEZE
WERESAISEREFI2E (ZF
—N\F:BAIEXBFI2E) 2EE
FIEFE - REWMERR - ZFRUKER
RZHBENFHALIR—F RN =
E-NF+-_B=+—8 KEFME
#144,000,0008 T (=T — )\ F :
3,000,000% 7T) 2 EWHR KA E P £
mEHRER -
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 24. EURBRFX (&)
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
(b) (continued) (b) (%)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December REBABEEFAR_Z-—AERK
2019 and 2018 by the Group's internal credit rating and T N\F+ZA=Z=+—BZEE#L
year end classification: BN RFERSELT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-AF+ZA=+—-HL#F
E
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating RIS B FEAR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
SRR
It B ERE HEZ

T-EA Z2BEEHEYE ZEFHENY
BHEE HHEE BEHEE

& Ei8 &8
(B1ER) (%2R B) (3R ER) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHExT FHET FET
Performing RiF - - - -
Doubtful g - 81,552 - 81,552
Default BN - - 32,520 32,520

- 81,552 32,520 114,072




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2019 £}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & 1R =Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 24. EUWNBREFX (8)
Notes: (continued) i (%)
(b) (continued) (b) (#&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT-\F+-A=1T—HILtFE
Lifetime

ECL not Lifetime

12-months credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating A B 1S B AR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

BEiEE

I fEEERE WAEZ

+TZEA ZREFESR BEFEH

BEEE EEEE EHEE

EE g &8
(BB ER) (E2PE) (B3MEER) BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Performing RiF - — _ _
Doubtful 3= - 20,332 - 20,332
Default B - - 40,220 40,220
- 20,332 40,220 60,552
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 24, EWER K (&)
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
(b) (continued) (b) (#&)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on FREARBEEMELEZBRERZ
accounts receivable from money lending business are as MEBEEEZESOT
follows:
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
2FE
YEEERE HEZ
TR 2EEFENY ZEFED
AHEE AHEE AMEE
JE =] BB [ E=]
(B1RR) (B2 RR) (B3R R) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—\F
—H—H - 5,244 33,243 38,487
Amounts written off IRk - - (691) (691)
Impairment reversed FREL ZRE
during the year - (2,803) (5,332) (8,135)
Impairment loss recognised  “F MR Z FIEE B
during the year - 808 10,000 10,808
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—)\F
+=—A=+—H - 3,249 37,220 40,469
Impairment reversed during N B 2 5 (B
the year - - (10,000) (10,000)
Impairment loss recognised  FNER 2R EEE
during the year - 931 33 964
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hF
+=—A=+—H - 4,180 27,253 31,433
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HEz—FT—

NE+T-_A=+—HILFE

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) (continued)

©

The Group has taken all necessary legal actions to follow
up the outstanding loan. During 2019, one of the clients
which default in 2018 had settled a full outstanding
amount of HK$13,000,000 for his total outstanding
principal and accrued interest in accordance with the
settlement terms as mutually agreed by the Group and the
client. As such, the reversal of impairment losses of
approximately HK$10,000,000 was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The accounts receivable due from margin clients of
approximately HK$148,545,000 (2018: HK$131,157,000)
were secured by the clients’ pledged listed securities which
carried a fair value of approximately HK$401,856,000
(2018: HK$507,690,000). The management of the Group
has assessed the market value of pledged listed securities
of each individual customer that has margin shortfall as at
the end of each reporting period and reviewed each of the

status.

(b)

©

24. B RN (&)
Mg (%)

(&)

$§‘%IE%HS¢ D BERTHIAR
EREEER -R_T—hF Hp—
ER_F— /\EELZ'JZ%)EE7FETJ€$
SEBEZEFPETBEZBEERR
HREER REATSEEEE

2013,000,000 7T - Bt - REZE
—NFE+ZA=+T—HBIEFE B}
18 %5 Bk 7 32 410,000,000 7T 2 W6 (B
EiE i -

%A H>

B H#148,545,000/8 T (ZF—N\F:
131,157,000 T) B R BT, 2
FEWAR 3R Th LA 1B 4J401,856,0007%
7T (=ZZ— \F : 507,690,000/ T) Z
BERETEFFER - AEEER
BEAEREEREHRGEDBRR
BLRRZENEFPZEEM LW
HmE WEEGEERZER -
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

(continued)

Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for
calculating margin values. Additional funds or collateral are
required if the amount of accounts receivable from margin
clients outstanding exceeds the eligible margin value of the
securities deposited. The collateral held can be re-pledged
up to 140% of the margin receivable amounts and the
corresponding collateral held can be sold at the Group's
discretion to settle any outstanding amounts owed by the
margin clients. Accounts receivable due from margin clients
are repayable on demand and bear interest at commercial

rates.

As at 31 December 2019, an impairment of approximately
HK$21,622,000 (2018: HK$5,587,000) was recognised in
respect of the accounts receivable due from six margin
clients of approximately HK$34,645,000 (2018: a margin
client of HK$18,585,000) and secured by the pledged list
securities which carried a fair value of approximately
HK$13,023,000 (2018: HK$12,998,000).

©

24, EW AR ()
w (&)

(%)

EFUREFERTSL RUGFEHR
RESEBE HNERERBEFFPZX
BEESCHRBEMETFESZAE
RErELEE WARHBEIESR
EHme-mAclfmr BER&
BERE D EWKIAN1400% - i FTH
BzHBEERRTIHAEERBER
EHENEERESEPER ZEM
REEFH - BURFESEP ZEX
ARBERFEEL R ENRET L -

RZBE—-AE+=ZRA=+—R0 2%
7 8L 4934,645,000/% 7T JE W N & IR B
&P (ZZ —/\F : 18,585,000/ 7T
B —EREFESEP) 2 BUWRZER
#)21,622,0008 TTRE (ZZ — )\ F :
5,587,000/ 7T) & E W AR BT LA
F{E#4913,023,000/8 7T (= — \F :
12,998,000/ 7t) 2 B E M HE
HAR
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) (continued)

24. EWARFR (&)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 by the Group's internal credit rating and

year end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Hiat o (&)

(o (&)

BAEEANBEEFEAR T —NF
EZZ-NF+-RA=+—HzK@A

BEDTRFRDEWT

BE-ZF-NF+-A=t+—-HL#HF

E
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating A EB1E B FEAR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YE|EERHE EFEREZ
ToEA ZEEFEE EBEEATEED
BHEE BHEE BHEE
B8 Ei8 &8
(BB1EER) (2R ER) (3R mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHExT FET
Performing R 113,900 - - 113,900
Doubitful 3= - - - -
Default EBHN - - 34,645 34,645
113,900 - 34,645 148,545
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 24. EUNBEF (8§)
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
(0) (continued) (o (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT-N\F+ZA=+—HLF
=
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating A B EERTR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

TEEERE EEEREZ
ToER ZEEFES BEAFES
BHEE BHEE BHEE

B8 B8 B8
(B1RER) (E2B5ER) (F3MER) BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Performing RiF 112,572 - - 112,572
Doubtful 12 5 - - - -
Default EAD - - 18,585 18,585
112,572 — 18,585 131,157
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) (continued)

24,

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

FE W R K (4R
Mg (%)

(o (#&)

FEWRE 2 F P 2 R BUZ R (B 8 B

accounts receivable from margin clients are as follows: BEEHuwT
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
WEEERE SFEREZ
T=EA ZEEFES EBEEFED
BHEE BHEE REEE
B8 [Fi=1 [Fi=]
(B1RR) (%H2M ) (3R ER) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHET FHBT
ECL allowances as at RZZ—)\F
1 January 2018 —A—BZHEH
BFEEIEEE - - - -
Impairment loss recognised & RIER 2R EEE
for the year - - 5,587 5,587
31 December 2018 RZZE—)\F
+=ZA=+—H - - 5,587 5,587
Amounts written off gkt - - @) @
Impairment loss recognised AR Z FEEE
for the year - - 16,037 16,037
31 December 2019 RZZ—NEF
+=ZA=+—H - - 21,622 21,622
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BE—
25.

26.

—NEFE+ZA=+—RHILFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
pledged bank deposits. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group has placed a bank deposit of HK$40,000,000 at
an interest rate of 2.00% per annum to a bank to secure
banking facilities of HK$100,000,000 which included the
drawn bank borrowings of HK$40,000,000. Details of the

bank borrowings are set out in note 28.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash and short-term
bank deposits held by the Group at market interest rates
ranging from 0.001% to 2.40% (2018: 0.001% to
2.05%) per annum with an original maturity of one

month.

In the course of the conduct of the regulated activities of
its ordinary business, VC Brokerage, VC Futures Limited
and VC Capital Limited ("VC Capital”) act as trustees that
result in the holding of clients’ monies on behalf of
clients and other institutions. These assets are not assets
of the Group and, therefore, are not included in its
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31
December 2019, the Group maintained segregated
accounts at a clearing house of approximately
HK$3,235,000 (2018: HK$3,463,000) and at other
authorised institutions of approximately HK$148,407,000
(2018: HK$162,367,000) in conjunction with its
securities, futures and options brokering and dealing
business, and corporate financial advisory business as a
result of the normal business transactions, which are not
otherwise dealt with in these consolidated financial

statements.

25.

26

EEFRITERN

E—NF+=—A=+—H8 A58
WEERMEEFRITFER - RZFE—N
F+ZA=+—H AEEKAEH
40,000,000/% T2 F F| E2.00E 5t B 2
RITERER T —KRT AR
100,000,000/ 7T 2 #R 17§t & ¥ 1E &
H ZEREBRPTEREERRL
40,000,000/ TTIRTTE K - BHAIRITE
M2 FHBEHRH 28 -

RITERRAS

RITEHEBRIASEREAEEMBFRER
REBAR—MEA  RTISFERENTF
0.001EZ2.40E (ZZ— /A4 : 0.001
E%E2.05F) 5 B ZEEBIRITER -

EREEBAREPREXREEHE -
ERES ERPEAERAFNERR
BERARI(DERME ) REXFEA
KEFPLHEMBBRHBEZELNIA - %%
EFT@M—‘%Z?F CIA R AE AR
BHBIRARA - RZT—NEFE+ A

i

E—I-—EI '$‘§lﬁﬁii%%ﬁ%x
ETZES  HE &ﬂﬂ%%ﬁﬂ&%ﬂ?‘é%

BUARGEREBMEBMN —HEE
Fra&% SL B LR P - & 43,235,000/
7T (ZZF—)\F : 3,463,000 7T) + 5
REMBARERIBIERE 8L

148,407,000 T (Z T — N\ & :
162,367,000 7T) - KPP T &1
A BmRPEE -
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27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 27. BYERR
2019 2018
—E-AEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Accounts payable arising from ordinary £ B & 2B H HiET
course of business dealing BEXHEEMEEZ
in securities transactions: JETBR X
Clearing house EER - 23,313
Cash clients RaxpP 16,053 973
Margin clients RESEP 178 104
16,231 24,390
Accounts payable to clearing house represent trades M SRS EASSBEEEL Y
pending settlement arising from dealing in securities FHEERTS  —MAEERSHE YA
transactions which are usually due within two trading X5 HRNEE -
days after the trade date.
The accounts payable to cash clients and margin clients ENEARRBESEE Y ESRARES
are repayable on demand except where certain balances BEE HETHLESFER (—R

represent trade pending settlement which are usually due ng
within two trading days after the trade date or deposits
received from clients for their securities dealing activities.

Only the excessive amounts over the required deposits

stipulated are repayable on demand.

No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not

give additional value in view of the nature of this

business.

WEFPEFEEASMAEKIZZ
S BB ZMNIE

KEFER

4

ERUEB 2 EE  KATESZR
RO EAEIEIMEE - KRB
BRER AT ©

BEAMRZMERSZHAIH) K

Eal

EREZHBBEREANE

wE
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28. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

Secured and guaranteed

BHEARBER
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28. MHISRITER

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET

- 40,000

As at 31 December 2018, the short-term bank
borrowings, which were secured by pledged bank
deposits and the Company's corporate guarantee, bore
an interest rate at the bank’s cost of funding plus 2% per
annum. Details of the pledged bank deposits are

disclosed in note 25.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not maintain

any banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused banking
facilities of HK$60,000,000, including an amount of
HK$50,000,000 for short-term money market loan for
margin financing business and an amount of

HK$10,000,000 for drawings against uncleared cheques.

R-ZZE-NE+-_A=+—8 EHR

TERTTUNEERRITERRARRA]Z
ERERERA  WIREITES AN
QEFFN KRR - AHEDTEMRITER
ZHABRM 2545

R-ZF-NE+-A=+—8 XKH
I & G FETIRITRLE o

RZZE-—NFE+ZA=+—H XEH
5 A %160,000,000/%8 7T 2 K B) A $R. 17 @l
&% - B1E50,000,0008 T BIRE S B
BXEBZEHNEBMBER B F
10,000,000/ 7T DB ERAEH X RIEK ©
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29. DEFERRED TAX (ASSET)/LIABILITIES 20. EERIB(EE) A
The following is the major deferred tax (asset) liabilities EHRAZETERERIEBE(BEE) BEN
recognised and movements thereon during the current MERKAFERBEFEZEHUT -

and prior years.

Unrealised
gain on

financial  Accelerated

Tax  assets held tax  Convertible
losses  for trading depreciation bonds Total
BFEE
BHREEZ mE
HEBE ARERKE RERE TRRES @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL TAT TAL TAT TAL

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F
—A—A (2,754) 2,824 318 - 388
Charge to convertible RATRRES
bond reserve EREEIS - - - 1,475 1,475
Charge (credit) to profit or loss ~ HEZ R (HE) 2,014 (2,082) (174) (339) (581)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—-N\F
+-A=+t—H (740) 742 144 1,136 1,282
Charge (credit) to profit or loss R EZEEIR (HE) (5,.326) 5,248 (68) (477) (623)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—N%F

+ZRA=+—H (6,066) 5,990 76 659 659
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX (ASSET)/LIABILITIES (continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$467,218,000 (2018:
HK$420,951,000) available for offset against future
profits. As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax asset and
liability have been recognised in respect of tax losses of
approximately HK$36,764,000 (2018: recognised of
HK$4,485,000) and taxable temporary difference of
approximately HK$36,764,000 (2018: HK$5,366,000)
respectively. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$430,454,000 (2018: HK$416,466,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The estimated
unused tax losses have no expiry date but are subject to
further approval of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue

Department.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 8 January 2018, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“CB1") with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$360,000,000 to PAL as the balance of the
consideration of the acquisition of the China Fortune
Convertible Bonds as disclosed in note 23. The
convertible bonds will mature on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are converted into 288,000,000
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s option at initial conversion price of HK$1.25

per conversion share.

29.

30.

EZEBIE(EE) &E (&)

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H X&H
B ARB AT IEE1E4467,218,000
B (=ZZ—/\F : 420,951,000/ L) *
AEEERRER - RZT—hF+=
A=+—H " 2953 #436,764,000/5
TL(ZF — \F : 4,485,0008 7T) 2 i
T8 [ 18 & %936,764,000/8 7L (ZZ — )\
F : 5,366,000/ 7T) Z F& R T & s 2= 5
BARCHEEAERGE - WEHRHLK
#9430,454,000%8 T (=& — )\ -
416,466,000/ JT) 2 Tt 18 &5 18 1 R iR
EFRIEE B - &R R K G F HOR A T8
Bl e ZEMARDABREE BT RER
H BEALEERERRITHME  FA]
1

i}

o

\
/

R E F
R-ZZE—N\F—ANH  KQABEITA
4 48 % /5%60,000,0008 TZEE B K 7

AR ES (AT #]ARE 1)) TPAL - 1
AW 23 B WS R B F ok a AR &
H2HBTRE - ATRRESF R AR
EHFETEHEE=ZFARF AN -7
BIREFATRESFFEAERERATHRK
EHFETHRBEZRHALHER -
BERF R P MR E TR R D 1.25%
7T % AT 2 BR (& % R 12 72288,000,0000%

BB -
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BE—
30.

E-NF+_A=+—HILFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, CB1 with
principal amounts of HK$345,000,000 were converted
into 276,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$1.25 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$198,397,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the

conversion of convertible bonds.

On 8 June 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds
("CB2") with 2% coupon rate at a total principal value of
HK$160,000,000 to an independent third party, CVP
Financial Group Limited, as the consideration of the
acquisition of unlisted equity securities issued by Hackett
Enterprises Limited as disclosed in note 22. The
convertible bond will mature on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are converted into 123,076,923
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bond and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s initial conversion price of HK$1.30 per

conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, CB2 with
principal amounts of HK$142,000,000 were converted
into 109,230,769 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$1.30 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$70,293,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bond reserves upon the

conversion of convertible bonds.

30. TR E S (B])

REBE-_T—NF+A=+—HLF
€+ 7K £ %8345,000,0005%8 JT Z 7] # f%
BHEIEREBRI2BTHABRA
276,000,000 A& 2 &) L @A - 1 iR
HRBREFRRITRRESFHERRLD
198,397,000/ 7T 2 FR 5 (M Bk B % &
Z) -

RZZE-NFERXANR '$/‘ET%*??ZIS
& #8%5 /160,000,000 L2 [E 2 H &
zmﬁﬂx%%(rﬂmﬂéﬁznﬂgl
E=FRReMEBERAT - ERH
FE22F7 # B8 W BEHackett Enterprises
Limited¥ 1T 2 3E E R AFEH 2 KB °
AMRESFGRATRRES F1TABE
FE-ERAFAENE - TRBREFTHE
HRABANEERARRES 21T H R
ZI B IEBAERA - ERRIPBRR
BERBKRM1.I0BTHATRKRES
H5123,076,923 IR AR (5 -

HE_Z-N\F+_A=T—HILEFE
ZIS%%’EVQoooooo,%TEZTWxF%%z
ERER1.30/8 7T K12 78109,230,769%
RATEBAR o 7N IR A RAR B H RN
A] #2 jR & %5 % 18 B Bk 4970,293,0007% 7T
ZHBEHRRBTE)
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
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30. TR &S (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &M SR ERMsE

CB1 CB2

issued on issued on

8 January 8 June
2018 2018 Total

R-ZB-N\F RZ-B-N\F

—HANH ~ANH

BiT2Z BIT2Z
ARKREST  TRRES2 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET

Liability component at RZZE-NF—-H—H

1 January 2018 Z BB - - -
Liability component on NFHERF 2B EHD

initial recognition 249,415 121,534 370,949
Effective interest expenses ERFSHX (MiF11)

(note 11) 16,543 4,660 21,203
Interest payable FERTF B - (1,023) (1,023)
Conversion into new ordinary RMRE LR (Hi32b)

shares (note 32b) (254,241) (110,772) (365,013)
Liability component at RZE-N\EF

31 December 2018 and +ZA=+—8xK

1 January 2019 —E-NF—-A—H

ZaEHD 11,717 14,399 26,116
Effective interest expenses BB ERZ (A1)

(note 11) 1,523 1,725 3,248
Interest payable J& 7 2 - (359) (359)
Liability component at RZZE-NFE+=A

31 December 2019 =t—RZaEHD 13,240 15,765 29,005
Maturity date 3HIR 8 January 2021 8 June 2021

—E- % —E-—F
—ANR NANE
Remaining principal not yet RZE-NF

converted as at +ZA=+—H HK$15,000,000 HK$18,000,000

31 December 2019 WMARMZBTAS 150000008 7T 18,000,000/ 7T
Conversion price BRE HK$1.25 HK$1.30

1.258 7T 1.30/8 7T



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER A T

Annual Report 2019 £}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & 1R =Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—
30.

E-NF+_A=+—HILFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
CB1 and CB2 comprise a liability component and equity
conversion component. The equity component is
included in the convertible bonds reserve under equity

attributable to the owners of the Company.

The liability component of CB1 and CB2 are classified

under non-current liabilities.

30. TR E S (B])
AR EF IR RRER2ERERD
RERBREB D ERK - EmIBHEEAR
REVEAAREER T2 BBRESRE
e

A ES IR RREF2ZBERHD
Do BEFRRBAEME-

The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 RBEE_T-—NF+_A=+—HILHF
December 2018 recognised in the consolidated BB Z2UBRBRESFNEFREVEARRE
statement of financial position are as follows: ERWT :
CB1 CB2
issued on issued on
8 January 8 June
2018 2018 Total
R-B-NFE R-E-N\F
—ANH ~ANE
BT BiT2
TRRESF TBRBRES?2 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR
Fair value of convertible BRITABRKRESZ
bonds issued ~FE 474,684 207,084 681,768
Equity conversion component REmBRRE 5D (225,269) (85,550) (310,819)
Liability component on initial RETREBVSERZ
recognition at issue date BEHNS 249,415 121,534 370,949
Maturity date A 8 January 2021 8 June 2021

—E-—%F —E-—%F
—HA/\H NHJ\H
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The fair values of the above convertible bonds were
valued by an independent valuer as at their respective
issue dates and were calculated by using the Binomial
Model. CB1 and CB2 comprise a liability component and
equity conversion component. The major inputs into the

model were as follows:

Share price B
Conversion price BB
Effective interest rate BB &
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18
Expected life TE HA F HA
Risk-free rate R e ) =
Expected dividend yield TR AR B X

30. TR &S (&)

Lt TR AR 5 2 A FE R B L ERD
REBNBETHRBERERZHANE
AFE - R EFIRATRKRESR2H
BEMD MERBREE D AEK - ZER
ZEBBHABIELT

CB1 CB2
MERRESRT  ATRRER2

HK$1.46 HK$1.39
1.4678 7T 1.39%8 7T
HK$1.25 HK$1.30
12587 1.30/87T
13% 12%
71% 68%

3 years 3 years
3% 3%
1.45% 2.03%
Nil #% Nil f%

The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
component, is included in the convertible bonds reserve

under equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

EE (BSOS ZEEBE FALRT
BEARGREDE N2 BRRESFEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 31
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

BERHELZ2REHK

TRENAEEREETHELZARBE

arising from financing activities, including both cash and S RIEEA RIFELEEH - L
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing EEELACEEAEAE RS REDN
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future KXKEERERANEFBGARSRER
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated PO ARE EEEA RS REY S
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing & o
activities.
Other payables
Efp AR
Interest Interest
payables on payables Short-term
Convertible convertible on bank Lease bank
bonds bonds borrowings liabilities borrowings
TaRES 2 RAERLZ BHRRG
TRRES g} ER7E HEER (EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAL TER TR TARL
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§-A-H - - 14 - 40,000
Financing cash inflows RERERA - - - - 80,000
Financing cash outflows RERSRM - - (65) - (80,000)
Non-cash changes FHEEE
Interest expenses accrued EAMER T 20,180 1,023 79 - -
Liability component on initial BEMEE A ARERE
recognition of CB1 in exchange of {1537 —Hﬁ REH1
convertible bonds purchased ZARHS 249,415 - - - -
Liability component on initial BRABERATEIR
recognition of CB2 in exchange of ~ REEMZERAREE
financial assets at FVTOC purchased 2 BI%EEB S BT
BREF2 AR 121,534 - - - -
Conversion into new ordinary shares % A3 £k (365,013) - - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-)\F
+ZA=+-H 26,116 1023 28 - 40,000
Non-cash changes #E228
Impact on adoption of RBERUBREED
HKFRS 16 F16%TE - - - 13,180
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-H 26,116 1,023 28 13,180 40,000
Financing cash outflows BERSRL - - (39) (6,019) (40,000)
Non-cash changes FHzE
Interest expenses accrued g 2,889 359 1 701 -
New lease arrangements MRERH - - - 5188
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF
t-A=t-H 29,005 1382 - 11,050 -
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. ®RA&

Number of

ordinary shares  Share capital

ZERYA & 2
'000 HK$'000
T A& FHET
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—-—NF—HA—H 794,617 855,363
Issue of shares upon conversion of A A # iR B AR IR i B 1T
convertible bonds (note b) & (K #Eb) 385,231 656,821
Issue of shares upon by top-up SR BRI A NRE R
placement and subscription (note a) REE BT IRAD (#f5ta) 50,904 73,811
Transaction costs attributable to H s mETRG 2
issue of shares by placement (note a) XX SR (ffita) - (1,187)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1718 B e i T BT AR 19
share options (note ¢) (Htitc) 200 431
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 R=Z—\F+_H=+—8 "
and 31 December 2019 —ZE-AE-A-HBR
—E-NAF+-A=1—H 1,230,952 1,585,239
Notes: Bt -

(a) On 26 June 2018, the Company entered into a placing
and subscription agreement with a placing agent (the
"Placing Agent”) and Mr. Chung Chi Shing (“Mr. Chung")
whereby (i) Mr. Chung agreed to appoint the Placing Agent
and the Placing Agent has agreed to act as agent of Mr.
Chung and use its best endeavour to procure not less than
six placees for up to 60,000,000 shares of the Company
at HK$1.45 per placing shares; and (i) Mr. Chung had
agreed to subscribe for up to 60,000,000 shares of the
Company at HK$1.45 per subscription share.

(@

»

R-T—NEANA-+AA AR
BEEREREEREE ((EEE]
T -HRERRERS  BKLO)E

FERBEEREREMESKEN
REEFELEZRE WRAKK
SZHRET DR RNEEREA - LEFR
Bic & A% 19 1.457% JT 3R i 5 % 60,000,000
BARBRG : R(NBLAERBANE
BRBENDIA4SE T RER S
60,000,000f% A8 A Bl 15 ©
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

®)

©

(continued)

The completion of the placing took place on 29 June 2018
and a total of 50,904,000 shares of the Company (the
"Sale Shares") were successfully placed to not less than six
placees at the HK$1.45 per Sale Share. All the conditions
of the subscription as set out in the placing and
subscription took place on 10 July 2018 whereby a total of
50,904,000 shares of the Company (the “Subscription
Shares") were allotted and issued to Mr. Chung at HK$1.45

per Subscription Share in all respects.

The net proceeds from the placing is approximately
HK$72,624,000 after deduction of commission and other
related expenses of placing from the gross proceeds of
approximately HK$73,811,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain
portions of CB1 and CB2 were converted into
276,000,000 and 109,230,769 ordinary shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$1.25 and HK$1.30
per ordinary shares respectively. As a result of the
conversion, share capital has been increased by
approximately HK$470,123,000 and HK$186,698,000
respectively and convertible bonds reserve has been
decreased by approximately HK$198,397,000 and
HK$70,293,000 respectively. The new shares rank pari

passu with the existing shares in all respects.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 200,000 share
options under the share option scheme of the Company
had been exercised by the holders at exercise price
HK$1.67 each for the issuance of shares. As a result of the
exercise of share options, bank balances and cash and
share capital have been increased by HK$334,000 and
HK$431,000 respectively and share option reserve has
been decreased by approximately HK$97,000. The new
shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all

respects.

©)

®)

©

32. RA (48)
MsE - ()

(#)

REFBEER=ZZE—NFRA=ThI
B - ERINRGRARFRG ([4F
ERH]) 1,458 TR T D R AN B EE
ANELE A #£50,904,0000 F E B - &
REERREREMBREETE M
BHRHEER-T—NELATHRER "
BB REGRAR ARG ([RERH])
1458 o MsEL AR E RETA R
50,904,000/% R & I 15 °

REFHE2AERBEBLBEOR
73,811,000/ 7T - M MR A € KB &
FHHABERXBEEREELMER
THF A B72,624,0008 T °

HE-T—-N\FE+ZA=+—8B1
FE OAEREHFIRABRRKESR?
ZETEHDE D RRERI258 TR
1.307% 7T * ¥ /276,000,000 % &
109,230,769MX R A Al E@AL - R
A& - BR AR 5> B3 N 49470,123,0005% 7T
%:186,698,000/% 7T, + i Al # ik (& 7
& B 9 5 4> 49198,397,0007 7T &
70,293,000/ 7T ° ¥ AX (0 7 & 75 M
WERNZBRFHA

HE-_Z—NF+=-A=+—81LtHF
[ AR RESE T 22000001
EREAEBEARSRI67TE T 2T
BT IABITRD - BRITHEER
W SRATA R IR B A D B N
334,000/ 7T % 431,000/ 7T » M 68 %
T {5 8 BB 2 £997,00078 JT o 1A% 19
REFTEHERERGO ZERFHA -
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS .ERENKROER

Share option scheme

The Company offered the share option scheme under
which share options are granted to the directors,
employees and other eligible persons of the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company in recognising their
contributions and in retaining employees who will

continue to make valuable contribution to the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2009,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2009
Share Option Scheme").

Pursuant to an extraordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
14 June 2018, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2018 Share Option Scheme”).

On 29 September 2016, directors and employees of the
Group were granted share options to subscribe for
41,000,000 underlying shares under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme (the “2016 Share Options”). These share
options were immediately vested on the grant date and
have duration of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from
29 September 2016 to 28 September 2019. Any share
options granted shall normally lapse upon the expiration
of 3 months after the relevant grantee ceases to be an
employee of the Group. The Board has the discretion to

amend the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

BRESE

ARAFIREBRESE - BURE AR
BARARND  BRETAEEES -
BENMEMEEBAL UBERSE
BERE TSI @B RAEEIFHEESR
BlzEBRE-

AAFRENR ZEBNEXANART
THREEAFA® BB EBRER
R —BEREAE((—ZTAFH
RAEstE) -

ARBABRBER-_F-N\FATHAR
TZRERFRIAG LBBIRER K
M—EFBREGE (2T -N\F8B
PetgatEll) -

R-Z—XRNEALAZ+HIE  KARFR
B_ZTNFREREAESNASEES
N B 1 A 32 #841,000,0000% #H 74 A%
MrzERE(ZZ— FHERKRE] -
ZEBERECAELABRARSEE - I
HEHBREAARBRAAR=F (I =F
—ANENAZTARE=ZZ—AFHA
Z+NR)  FAEEEZERE K
BRBEABATBALEEES R =
BAK - EEE R MIBEATERE

B 2 -3
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

On 24 January 2018, directors and employees of the
Group and other eligible persons were granted share
options to subscribe for 66,256,000 underlying shares
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme. These share
options were immediately vested on the grant date and
have duration of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from
24 January 2018 to 23 January 2021. Any share options
granted shall normally lapse upon the expiration of 3
months after the relevant grantee ceases to be an
employee of the Group. The Board has the discretion to

amend the terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares in
respect of which share options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme was 58,116,000 (2018: 106,656,000),
representing approximately 4.72% (2018: 8.66%) of the
shares of the Company in issue. No share options had
been granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

The 2016 Share Options has been lapsed and expired on
28 September 2019.

IERERKRGOER (&)

R ARS8 ()
RZE-—NEFE—A=Z+HH  KRFR
B_ZEENFEREFINAEEES
REERAMEERALTREAIRE
66,256,000 X HHEA AR 19 2 BB AR 1 - % 55
BRECKREBHARSE - WHK
HAMEFERBER=F(AN=_Z—N
F—AZtWOAZz=-FE=-_—%—A
Z+=H) AMERHZERE K
BREBEEARATBRAEEESR=
BEAXRKR EFEGAMBEEIT_TZTN
FHERE B 2K -

RZE-NAFE+ZA=+—H RE
—EEZAFEREFEE KB MM
RKITEzEREMPRZKRHERB
/58,116,000 (=& — J\ £ :
106,656,000/%) - HHE XA QA2 %
TN 494.72% (—ZF— )\ 5 : 8.66%) °
RZZE—-—NAFR-_ZT—-NE+ -4
T+ —AERE-T N\ FERET
ZIR B AE -

TE-RFEREER -_ZT-NAFNLA
“TNBRMRBIEBER -
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 3.BRERRORR (&)
(continued)
Share option scheme (continued) B RS El (E)
The estimated fair values of the options granted under BE-_ZTAFEREAFEIR =N
the 2009 Share Option Scheme on 24 January 2018 is F—A-THNHBRH BEBREZGHTA
approximately HK$31,322,000 recognised in the share F{E# 531,322,000/ 70 (52 B A% 42
option reserve, which was calculated using the binomial BER)  DERA-ZBEARAFE  E
model with the key inputs into the model as disclosed PR 2 E2HABBN TREE -
below.
24 January
2018
—E-N\F
—HA=+WmA
Share Price at the date of grant REHBBZRE HK$1.62
1.6287T
Exercise Price 7B HK$1.67
1.678 7T
Risk-free rate I B A 1.512%
Expected volatility TEHR R 18 71.528%
Exercise multiples — directors TEEH &S 1.38
— employees/other eligible persons —EE /EMAEERAL 1.53
The Group recognised total equity-settled share option REZ-_ZT— ) \F+-_A=+—HIF
expense of approximately HK$31,322,000 included in B AEBRBIE =T NFEREST
the staff cost and other operating expenses for the year ZI#% 2 66,256,00017 8 i # #E 53 DA AR
ended 31 December 2018 in relation to the 66,256,000 RN 2 B IR HE B S 4288 931,322,000
share options granted under the 2009 Share Option BT FTABIRAREMEER -

Scheme.
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 3. BBRERRKRGORR (&)
(continued)
Share option scheme (continued) B REET &l (&)
Movements in the number of share options granted to REARBE-_ZEZENFERETZRT
the directors of the Company, employees of the Group ARBIEE AEEREREREMEER
and other eligible persons outstanding under the 2009 ALTHRITEZERESZEEHNOT :

Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-F-AF+ZA=+—-BLEE
Number of share options
EREHA
Exercise Balance as Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance as
Price Per  at 1 January during  Reclassification during during ~ at 31 December
Categories of grantees Grant date share 2019 the year ~ during the year the year the year 2019
i i
“R-1% “2-1%
-A-H RER tZAZ+-H
ARARH RS SRRE 288 RERRE ENARE RERGE  RERKN k8
(note 1)
(Wit1)
Directors of the Company 29 September 2016 HK$1.76 22,400,000 - (5,000,000) - (17,400,000) -
LD £ ZBRE 17687
AAZTAR
24 January 2018 HK$1.67 23,964,000 - (7,940,000) - - 16,024,000
“F-)\F 16787
-fZ1RA
Employes 29 September 2016 HKSIL76 1300000 - (200,000) - (1,100,000) -
& “E-R 17687
AAZTAE
24 January 2018 HK$1.67 9,132,000 - (200,000) - - 8,932,000
E-)E 16787
-fZ1EER
Other eligible persons 29 September 2016 HK$1.76 16,900,000 - 5,200,000 - (22,100000) -
EfRERAL . St 17687
AAZTAR
24 January 2018 HK$1.67 32,960,000 - 8,140,000 - (7,940,000) 33,160,000
“F-)\F 16787
-fZ1RA
Total 106,656,000 - - - (48,540,000) 58,116,000
it
Erercisable as at
31 December 2019 58,116,000
RE-NET2R
SH-RTRIR
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.70 - - - HK$1.75 HK$1.67

METITEE 17087 17587 16787




250

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRER AT

Annual Report 2019 £}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &M SR ERMsE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+_A=t—BLHFE
33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
(continued)
Share option scheme (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018

IERERKRGOER (E)

BB & ()
HE_ZT- \F+_A=+—HBLEE

Number of share options
ERigs e
Evercise Balence as Granted Evercised Lapsed Balance as
Price Per at 1 January during  Redlassification during duing 3t 37 December
Categories of grantees Grant date share 2018 the year  during the year the year the year 218
3 iy
2E-)\E E-NE
—-f-H RER tZR=T-H
HRAR ]zl SHARE L% RERRH EFip RERE RERKH ba:1
(note 2)
(hit2)
Directors of the Company 29 September 2016 HK$1.76 19,000,000 - 3,400,000 - - 22,400,000
KAAES TERE 17687
ABZThR
24 January 2018 HK$1.67 - 9,332,000 14,632,000 - - 23,964,000
3\ 16T T
—ﬂifmﬁ
Employees 29 September 2016 HK$1.76 13,100,000 - (11,800,000) - - 1,300,000
32 Bk 17657
AAZTAA
24 January 2018 HK$1.67 - 33,104,000 (23,772,000) (200,000) - 9,132,000
It it 16787
—fZ1RA
Other elighle persons 29 September 2016 HK$1.76 8,500,000 - 8,400,000 - - 16,900,000
EfpRERAL IERE 176%7
ABZThR
24 January 2018 HK§1.67 - 23,820,000 9,140,000 - - 32,960,000
“E)\E 1677
—AZfER
Total 40,600,000 66,256,000 - (200,000) - 106,656,000
g
Exercisable as at 106,656,000
31 December 2018
BZ2-NE+2R
Zt-BUFR
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.76 HK$1.67 - HK$1.67 - HK$1.70
MEFSTEE 17687 16747 16747 1707
Notes: o

(1) The reclassification represents the number of share options
transferred between the different categories of grantees as
a result of the resignation of two directors of the Company
and an employee during the year ended 31 December
2019.

(2) The reclassification represents the number of share options
transferred between the different categories of grantees as
a result of the appointment of one director of the
Company and the resignation of one director of the
Company and certain employees during the year ended 31
December 2018.

() EF s BEHRBE_T-NLF+=
A=+—BLFEARARRAIMEES
K — %R B BHE T RN AR AR AR
ZHEERBREZHE -

2 EFSEHARBE-T—N\FI=
A=+ —BULFERARF—LEF
EEAURAAA - ZEFRE TR
g S IN CIFET
R Z A -
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Awarded share schemes

On 31 March 2008, the Board approved the
establishment of two share incentive award schemes,
namely the VC Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Share
Subscription Scheme”) and the VC Share Purchase
Scheme Trust (the “Share Purchase Scheme”) (the Share
Purchase Scheme and the Share Subscription Scheme
collectively are referred to as the “Share Award
Schemes"). The Share Subscription Scheme will subscribe
for new shares whereas the Share Purchase Scheme
utilises shares purchased in the market. The directors of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme

but not the Share Subscription Scheme.

The purpose of each of the Share Subscription Scheme
and the Share Purchase Scheme is to encourage and
facilitate the acquisition and holding of shares in the
Company, by and for the benefit of employees of the
Company and any subsidiaries of the Company
(excluding directors of the Company and any subsidiaries
and other connected persons of the Company in respect
of the Share Subscription Scheme). The Board may
determine from time to time to award shares in order to
recognise the contribution of certain employees, to seek
to retain them for the continued operation and
development of the Group, and to attract suitable

personnel for the further development of the Group.
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Awarded share schemes (continued)
Share Subscription Scheme

The Share Subscription Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share Award
Scheme Trust. The directors of the Company and any
subsidiaries and other connected persons of the
Company will not be entitled to participate in the Share
Subscription Scheme. The number of shares to be issued
under the Share Subscription Scheme is limited to one
per cent of the ordinary issued share capital of the
Company from time to time (excluding shares which

have already been transferred to employees on vesting).

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as an employee of the Company or
a subsidiary until the vesting date. The Board also has the
discretion to stipulate such other conditions in respect of
a particular employee which will apply to the vesting of
the shares. No share was granted through the Share

Subscription Scheme since its establishment.

Share Purchase Scheme

The Share Purchase Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share
Purchase Scheme Trust. The directors and employees of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme.
The number of shares to be issued under the Share
Purchase Scheme is limited to two per cent of the
ordinary issued share capital of the Company from time
to time (excluding shares which have already been

transferred to employees on vesting).
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS ERENKROER (&)
(continued)
Awarded share schemes (continued) % 17 52 B 51 &) (%)
Share Purchase Scheme (continued) R EEE (&)
Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected BB ENMEETEENREBERE
employee remaining as the Director or an employee of HRIEKAREKABIEIMBARIZES
the Company or a subsidiary until the vesting date. The HEERGH - EFE AT BBH INE
Board also has the discretion to stipulate such other AR TESHEEFBR M 2 HMIF
conditions in respect of a particular Director or an %o
employee which will apply to the vesting of the shares.
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, HEZZ—NLEFRZZE-—N\F+=ZA
there was no movement or outstanding awarded shares =T—HIEFE ROBEFSIETH
under the Share Purchase Scheme. B REAR D RFE - INEERES -
34. COMMITMENTS 34. &E
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEE
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's RIMERR REERRAEGERE
commitments contracted but not provided for in TEURBEMERERHEDIAE
respect of capital contribution to a joint venture and REHBZRENT
purchase of property and equipment are as follows:
2019 2018
—B-nE T \E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Capital contribution to meBrETE (Hit)
a joint venture (note) 495,508 502,850
Purchase of property and equipment 8 B ¥ % & & & - 1,979

495,508 504,829
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34. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) Capital commitments (continued)

Note:

In July 2016, VC Brokerage entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) with three
independent third parties to establish a joint venture, in
which the principal activity is securities broking in Guangxi,
the PRC (the “JV Company”). Pursuant to the Joint Venture
Agreement, VC Brokerage will contribute RMB445 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$496 million (2018:
equivalent to approximately HK$503 million)), representing
44.5% shareholding in the JV Company. Meanwhile, the
Company entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) with a placing agent to procure on a best
effort basis, to not less than six independent parties, to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$850 million during the
placing period, to finance the investment of the JV

Company.

The Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement
will become effective upon (i) the Company having
obtained the approval and authorisation from its
shareholders and the relevant regulatory authorities about
the Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement;
and (ii) VC Brokerage having obtained the approval and
authorisation from the relevant regulatory authorities for
establishment of the JV Company. On 26 October 2016,
the approval and authorisation from the shareholders of
the Company in relation to the Joint Venture Agreement

and the Placing Agreement had been obtained.

On 21 May 2019, being the expiry date of the extended
placing period, the Company was unable to reach
agreement with the placing agent to further extend the
placing period, the Placing Agreement had lapsed on that
date.

As at the date of this report, the application of the
formation of the JV Company is still under China Securities

Regulatory Commission’s review.
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34. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Commitments under operating leases
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

rental premises which fall due are as follows:

34, &IE (4E)

(b) KEHERE
R-E—N\F+-A=+—8 &
EEBEEWE Y FTAURBELHE

EAEIHBAKERSNT

2018

— N\

HK$'000

FHET

Within one year —FN 7,345

In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFTF (BREEWE) 9,320

16,665

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable REHSERAERGTESFTFEY

by the Group for its office premises, staff quarters ¥ BEIBFESNMPRENENHE

and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2018, e RZE-NEFE+ZA=+—
rentals are fixed for lease terms of 1 to 3 years. H - HHEER/IZE3IF -

The Group is the lessee in respect of office
premises, staff quarters and car parking spaces
which the leases were previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
standard is applied retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the standard
recognised at the date of initial application (see note
2).

AEBARSFEYE BIES
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REENAAREE LSS ERSE
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REE D RKBEERTBIERTER
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BE—
35.

—hFE+-HA=1T—"HLFE
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure each group
entity will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt
(comprising short-term bank borrowings) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising

issued share capital and reserves).

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
manages its overall capital structure through the
drawdown and repayment of short-term bank borrowings,

payment of dividends and issuance of new shares.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the "SFC") for the
business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the “SF(FR)R") adopted by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R,
the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their liquid
capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as determined by
the SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with the SFC on a monthly basis. The
Regulated Subsidiaries have no non-compliance with the
liquid capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
during the year.
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 35.

One of the subsidiaries acquired in 2019 is a member of

The Hong Kong Confederation of Insurance (the "CIB")

and Insurance Authority (the “IA") and is required to

maintain a minimum net asset value and share capital of

HK$100,000 at all times. There is no non-compliance of

the capital requirements imposed by the CIB and the IA

since the licence grant date to the year ended 31

December 2019.

EXEEERE (&)
HPF—HRZZE-NFREZWE R A
REERBERBE ((REE]) &K
BEEER([RERBDZEGE - WiEH
TE 7B PA 1 {A] B fi% % #5100,000/% 7T 2 &
REEFERRA - REREREA -
EHE_T-NF+_A=T—HILF
B WEERZEARBEE RREBET
A2 ERBTE °

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. TRLE
Categories of financial instruments TREBER
2019 2018
—E-nE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised costs REHEA AT R MBEEE 311,768 364,825
Financial asset at FVTOCI BAFEIRRERMEE
WARREZ MBEE 47,054 207,084
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAFEIEREERER
BRIBZ MG EE
— Held-for-trading —REEE 162,138 240,282
— Mandatorily measured at FVTPL — g Hl A AR
NEBRREE 297,087 304,081
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost BEHK AR 51,142 97,343
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental
and utility deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at FVTOCI, accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other
payables and convertible bonds issued. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in their respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

It is the Group's policy for each group entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. Almost all of the Group's principal businesses are
conducted in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the respective entities of the
Group, with small amounts of bank deposits
denominated in foreign currency. Since the impact of
foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging against
foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis on

currency risk was presented.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to convertible bonds included in financial assets
at FVTPL (see note 23), fixed-rate accounts receivable
from money lending business (see note 24) and pledged
bank deposits (see note 25). The management
considered that the risk associated within these balances

are insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business such as cash clients,
margin clients (see note 24), and short-term bank
borrowings (see note 28). Bank balances are excluded
from the interest rate sensitivity analysis as they are not

sensitive to the change in market interest rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. It is the Group's policy to keep accounts
receivable from brokerage and financing business and
short-term bank borrowing at floating rate as to minimise

the cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the
variable-rate accounts receivable from brokerage and

financing business and variable-rate bank borrowings.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. R EE (F)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding were outstanding for
the whole year. A 10 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2018: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss before tax would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$129,000 (2018:
HK$90,000) for the year ended 31 December 2019. This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business and variable-rate bank

borrowings.
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E-NF+_A=+—BLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through the
Group's investment in listed equity securities and
convertible bonds which are classified as financial assets
at FVTPL (see note 23) as at 31 December 2019. If the
market price of the listed equity securities is 5% higher/
lower as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 5% higher/
lower), the Group's loss before tax would have
decreased/increased by approximately HK$8,107,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$12,014,000) as a result of the change in fair value of

the listed equity securities.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent our Group's maximum exposure

to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts and receivables from
margin clients with shortfalls in relation to the business of
VC Brokerage, the indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate loss allowance
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit

risk is significantly reduced.

For money lending business of VC Finance Limited ("VC
Finance”) and corporate finance business of VC Capital,
both are, the indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, the Group closely evaluates the borrowers'
credit rating, financial background and repayment abilities
so as to minimise the Group's exposure to credit risk. The
assessment is based on a close monitoring and
evaluation of the collectability of individual account and
on the management’s judgement, including the current
creditworthiness of the borrowers, collateral value and the
past collection history of each individual borrower within
the Group. The Group will take necessary action to follow
up the overdue loans and ensure that adequate loss
allowance are made for individual loans. As at 31
December 2019, the Group recognised a loss allowance
of approximately HK$31,433,000 (2018: HK$40,469,000)
for the loans with ECL.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL for
accounts receivable. The Group determines the ECL on
an individual basis for customer with significant balances
and collectively by using a provision matrix with reference
to past default experience of the accounts receivable,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the accounts
receivable, latest collateral valuation general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The accounts receivable from margin clients and money
lending services are pledged by listed securities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
accounts receivable at the end of the reporting period,
without taking into account the collateral is disclosed in
note 24. The management considers that the credit risk
arising from the accounts receivable is significantly
mitigated by the listed equity securities held as collateral,
with reference to the market value of the listed equity

securities at 31 December 2019.

Management considered deposits and other receivables
to be low credit risk and thus the impairment provision

recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

36. TR R (&)

MHEEBRERZREREE (H)

=EEE (&)
AEEEBERERAT BT HREE
AIESE 2 EIE T At EREFEYE
HEEERZEREHR ~5E2EE
WERFBEZENERRARE I EY
BABREBRIEPRENELERKEE
EEREEER YR EERIEEZ
A& BFm&OHGEE BREER
SUA R ¥R B EIE IR AT R TR O 3
RITMZFEFEHHE -

FEU R E & B P R S UE AR 7% 2 FE UK
BTN EMBEHEERM - NBRE B
R AEZERUREFMARZZEREE
B (I 5T R EA ) R 24 E -
EEERR 2ELTRABHFN_-F
—NFTZA=t+—HzmE " BYEEK
REEZEERBEERFEERRZ
T RN RE 7 1 KR PR K o

BEERR BehEMERERZE
ERRRE - Hib R F AR R E R
BERN T —EARMEEESE -
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AEEEHEIARERTSEEIAZ
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

« internal credit rating

«  external credit rating

+ actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

« actual or expected significant changes in the

operating results of the borrower

+  significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-

party guarantees or credit enhancements

36. TR R (&)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

=EEE (&)
$'§I%?ﬂ%ﬁ§?@&§?ﬁ%%)§ii@2
et - MAHERREREAEER
BEFEBREEN - RFBEER ﬁ
CDREBNE AERE/REHPEE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TR EE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and BEREREREZRE RBEK (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued) 1EEERE (&)

significant increase in credit risk on other financial - BRAHMERERZEERRE
instruments of the borrower HEERE

«  significant changes in the expected performance and . EBERAZEHRRITRELEXR
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the i BREEBANEBRAZARIE
payment status of borrowers in the Group and B RERAREREZ B

changes in the operating results of the borrower

The Group's exposure to credit risk rEEEH 2 EER

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its AEEREEERR Zli'%gaéﬂf?ﬁ
credit committee to develop and maintain the Group's FEEZECHEIREFASEEER
credit risk grading to categorise exposures according to EH-URBERORRBREESEA ﬁﬁ
their degree of risk of default. The credit rating B-FEETRENBBILTREEBREM
information is supplied by independent rating agencies (e fg) - TAMEESMFEREM AR
where available and, if not available, the credit AISUBENMAEREBER HetrE
department uses other publicly available financial HIZXFPMEMEB AR KAEE
information and the Group's own trading records to rate BEERHEBRARBREERSHEHF 2EET
its major customers and other debtors. The Group's o WHKPTEKRZ R P BEELIZER
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are SEFEED o

continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved

counterparties.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued) 1EE R
The Group's current credit risk grading framework

comprises the following categories: -
Category Description

5l it

Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default

Ruf

Doubtful

Default

fi

Write-off

or has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and that are not credit
impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
ERORRIES B VSRR ARG ER R EREEN -
BEEEEREZHBEE (REIER)

For financial assets where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that
are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

BT HERAREERRBEZENBETBEEREL
HBEE(RBE2ER)

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have
occurred (refer to as Stage 3)

E-ESZHUVBEERARKRRERERE T
BOEHBRAR  RAERNGITEREERE(RSE
3[R

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

FREBRBRTEBARABREM GRS Bi AfBEK
Bl FRIE 2 % B SE

36. TR RE (&)
MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

(%)
AEBRITEERARFEERBEAT

Basis for recognising ECL

BABABEEBRZMKE

12-month ECL

t-EAEREEER

Lifetime ECL — not credit

impaired

EEFENBEHREES
B-EBEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit

impaired

BREGEHEREES
B—{EERIE

Amount is written off

% A E
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. RERE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BEREREREZRE RBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) 1EEERE (&)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's TERBIEEERR RS AERE
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum EEZEEHENASEEMESERZAZ
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. ZERE -
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
“E-AFTZAZT-A = s E
External Internal 12-month Gross Net Gross Net
credit credit or lifetime carrying Loss carrying carrying Loss carrying
rating rating ECL amount allowance amount amount allowance amount
e LES
ZRERES

MIGEFE ABEEFR EMGEER  REAE  BRER  REFE  REEE  ERER  RERE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSO0O
TR TEL TER TAr TAT TETL

Rental and utilty deposits N/A Performing ~ 12-month ECL 1,868 - 1,868 1578 - 1578
AelkERs AER Rif +-EAEH
EEEE
Accounts receivable N/A N/A Lifetime ECL 14,568 (450) 14,118 2274 - 2274
EUER TER TER (Simplied
approach)
BRESRE
EEEE
(ELrE)
Accounts receivable N/A Performing ~ 12-month ECL 113,900 - 113,900 112572 - 112572
EREH AER Rif +ZEARE
Accounts receivable N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL 81,552 (4,180) 71372 20332 (3.249) 17,083
EREH NEE ] - ot credit
impaired
BEGEERE
EEEE
-V EES
HE
Accounts receivable N/A Default Lifetime ECL 67,165 (48,875) 18,290 58,805 (42,807) 15,998
EREH ER ) - credit
impaired
BARESRE
EEEE
-EERE
Deposits and other receivables —~ N/A Performing ~ 12-month ECL 15,432 - 15,432 17,288 - 17,288
FEREMENER iyl Rif +-EAEH

FEFR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets at
FVTPL as disclosed in note 23 best represents their
respective maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group

holds no collateral over any of these balances.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2019 and 2018. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
has concentration of credit risk on the accounts
receivable as the aggregate balances with the five largest
clients represent approximately 44% (2018: 47%) of
total accounts receivable. However, the fair values of the
securities collateral held by the Group for these balances
are either in excess to the relevant carrying amounts or
have no overdue amounts as at the end of each
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is closely
monitored. The Group has no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

36. TR R (&)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

=EEE (&)

ff 23T B A R B IR D FEF IR R
EHEGREEZVBEEZRHEREE
REBBEESERYZERERM
o AEBEYERTAXFERTHE
fa] A 4 o

ERiigms R —NEFERZT—N\F
TZA=+—HB AEEZEERAREE
EHFREB - RZE-NF+_A=+—
H A&EEEREER2EHREER
% B KB 2 BESRGEBERER
BEEH4400 (ZF — )\F 1 47%) ° A
- ANEBERZEERFTECEAES
ZAFESRARERESIRSERER
MU maRE Al AAFESER
RAEEZEERRBEBIEYER -
AEBVEAMSEEFEERR -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. R EE (8)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows and short-term bank
borrowings are the sources of funds to finance the
operations of the Group. The Group's banking facilities
are subject to floating interest rate and are renewable
annually. The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources. The Group regularly
reviews the major funding positions to ensure adequate
financial resources are available to meet their respective

financial obligations.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not maintain
any banking facilities. At 31 December 2018, the Group
has available unutilised banking facilities of
HK$60,000,000 as disclosed in note 28.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities with the earliest date on
which the Group are required to settle. The tables include
both principal and interest cash flows. To the extent that
the interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of

the reporting period.

MHEEBRERZREREE (H)

R EZ R
AEHLEMAESRERNMBEEZR
EREREHMRITENR AEBE ZRTT
BMEDNRIHNERGFR  URFES -
AEEZRBE SRR EEBEIRGHE
AIRITRENMDHME R KR - AEEE
Hia ST 28NN UHBERSHEK
BRENDE BB AIERT -

—NFE+-_A=+—8 x£H
WEmAFREMRITRE R N\F
TZRA=1+—8 - #HOK 28K
AEBEUHRAZAERRITME
60,000,000 7T °

nBEER
TRERAKSEFTAEMBEBEZIHE
EFRFIZFAEORBEOHR -
TRBERAEENETHEEZ&KFH
HzMBaEIARARRRERERE -
TREFRASEMNERERE - EFE
BEBMENBERT - RREREEIA
HEHRN EEHARITAE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. RERE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BERERMERZRERBXK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEE 2R (&)
Liquidity table (continued) nEBEeR (&)
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
interest rate  or less than 3 months undiscounted canying
(pa) month  1-3 months toyear  1-5years  cash flows amount
nE¥H e RERRE

Edg  -EAMm -E=@A Z@ERE-f -FERF  REAE  RE4E
%  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Thn TEn TRR TRR TEn TRR

At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
tZA=1-8

Non-derivative financial ligbiliies ~ JEATEE KA E

Accounts payable EREH 16,231 - - - 16,231 16,231
Other payables Hit R B 4,608 1,080 218 - 5,906 5906
Convertible bonds issued (note 30)  BETTRRER (M230) 2 - - 1,538 33,360 34,608 29,005
Lease liabiies HEER 5375 586 1,174 5,281 4,483 11524 11,050

21,425 2,254 7037 37,843 68,559 62,192
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

36. TR RE (&)
MHEEBRERZREREE (H)

REBE LR (E)

Liquidity table (continued) TEBEES XK (E)
Weighted
average Total Total
interest rate 3 months undiscounted carrying
(pa) Tmonth 13 months to year 1-5years  cash flows amount
mEws BEF RERASE
EME -@EANR  -E=@R ZERE-F —£2RF  RELE  FALE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
tZAZt-8
Non-derivative financial labilities T4 E A B G
Accounts payable [EREH 24390 - - - 24390 24390
Other payebles Hit R B 5475 1,080 282 - 6,837 6,837
Short-term bank borrowings BHENER 509 40,011 - - - 40011 40,000
Convertible bonds issued (note 30)  BE{TTARER (H430) 2 - - 1,178 33720 34,898 26116
69,876 1,080 1460 33,120 106,136 97,343
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of

each reporting period for recurring and non-recurring

measurement, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the

degree to which the fair value is observable in

accordance to the Group's accounting policy. The

directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

36.

TREE (&)
RESUBRRKRER 2 DX FER

=
TREJINEREHRAFEAEZS
MEBRAAKSEUENEREEAEZS
o DERREASREEHABRZAF
BEZABERREEME D AZIEIL - K
RAIEZRB/NERE M H BRI K
RIERZMBEERMBREIREE
EHNFEESE -

31 December 2019
—E-NFT=A=t—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B 28R B3 L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FERT TET
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEIIERE
BERREE2
MEEE
Convertible bonds AR AE S - - 297,087 297,087
Listed equity securities (held- 1 J& 7K &% (351
for-trading) BEH) 162,138 - - 162,138
Financial assets at FVTOClI A FEIKRRE
He 2 H KA XK
BRECZHBEE
Unlisted equity securities IE TR AR E S - - 47,054 47,054
Total et 162,138 - 344,141 506,279
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. M EE (&)
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEMBMRRRERAZARE
consolidated statement of financial position £ (&)

(continued)

31 December 2018
—E2-NF+ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B S EIR e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TAET

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEINERR

EERRREY
BBEE
Convertible bonds A A % (E 5 - - 304,081 304,081
Listed equity securities (held- IR E % (351
for-trading) &) 240,282 - - 240,282

Financial assets at FVTOCI RAFEIERERE
Htt2EBA K
BRECUBEE
Unlisted equity securities FELETIRAEH - 207,084 - 207,084

Total st 240,282 207,084 304,081 751,447
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TREEH (4])
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEHMBMRRERERZARER
consolidated statement of financial position £ (&)
(continued)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities HAE E M EEL N FEGEZ I
that are measured at fair value on a recurring BERHMBERIEZ 2\ FE
basis
The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair ZEeMEBRRECEUHAE L ATFEFE
value measurements of each financial instrument on a FT A 2 (R E T R A BRI 0 T

recurring basis are set out below:

Relationship of key
inputs and significant
Fair value Fair values as at Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs to
Financial instruments hierarchy 31 December and key inputs unobservable inputs  fair value
IERABBREATTER
tHES ATEER RT-B=t-B2AVE  HERWHRIZEGAME EXTUEREAME BAMBEATEZRE
2019 2018
B0 ZE)E
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000
THR TEr TER TEn
Financial assets at FYTPL
RATEIIRRERER
REZHKEE
Convertible bonds Level 3 297,087 304,081 Binomial model: by Volatilty of 42.750% The higher the volatilty, the
reference to the risk free ~ (2018: 84%) higher of the fair value of
fate of 2.16% (2018: the convertible bonds
1.66%) and effective
interest rate of 15%
(2018 12%)
ThkES 23 AR 1R 842.75% REdS TRREFZAT
2ZEERNELI6%  (ZT-)\F:84m)  EHE

(Z5-\F: 1.66%)
REBF|%150%
(ZZ-NE:1m)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

Fair value
Financial instruments hierarchy
tREE ATEER

Listed equity securities Level 1

EiBAES Z18

Financial assets at FVTOCI

RAVEGIRRERM2E
WAREEZBHER
Unlisted equity securities ~ 2019: Level 3
2018: Level 2
FrmkAES ZE-NE:
£3%
“E)\EF:
224

Fair values as at
31 December

RT-A=t-RAZAYE

2019 2018
ZE-NE  ZE-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TETL
162,138 240,282
47,054 207,084

36. TR RE (&)
REEUBRRRER 2D FER
£ (&)

BEE R EU L FEGTEZHF
BERHBEREZ X FE(E)

Relationship of key
inputs and significant
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs to
and key inputs unobservable inputs  fair value
IZRAMBREXATIEE
fHERHRIZRARE EXTTRRRAHE RAUBEATEZRE
HK$'000 HK§'000
Téx TiEn
Quoted bid prices in an N/A N/A
active market
ERMARREAE ER TER

2019: Market approach ~ 2019: Marketability 2019: the higher the

2018: Recent transaction discount of 15.8% marketability discount ratio,
price 2018: N/A the lower the fair value of
the unlisted equity securities
2018: N/A
“E-NE R ZFNE: “E-RETERBRSA
—2\F: ikt 13 #5 FLTRAER LA
L8R 5ER #r1115.8% FHEAE

S35 TER C3-NE AR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

36. TR RE (&)
RESUBRRKRER 2 DX FER

& (&)

BREEEEEUNEIRATFEAEZH

financial assets on recurring basis are as follows: FEEEHE
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
FVTPL FVTOCI
RATLHE BEATE
SR & SRR IEH
EEREK [T PN
BEEZ REEZ
MEEE MKEE
Unlisted
Convertible equity
bonds securities Total
¥LEH
AR E S AR FEHF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
(note)
(B 5E)
As 1 January 2018, 31 RZZE—NF
December 2018 and —H—B8-
1 January 2019 —E-N\F
+=-—A=+—8H
RZ_ZE—-h%F
—H—H 304,081 - 304,081
Purchases BE 13,167 - 13,167
Fair value loss through FHEERER
profit or loss ZANTEEE (20,161) - (20,161)
Transfer from level 2 RE2REEEFEIR
into level 3 — 47,054 47,054
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF
+=-—A=+—8 297,087 47,054 344,141
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets on recurring basis are as follows:

(continued)

Note:The fair value of financial assets measured at FVTOCI of
approximately HK$207,084,000 as at 31 December 2018
was determined with reference to the recent transaction
price and therefore classified as Level 2 investments for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the current year, the fair value of the investment is
determined based on significant unobservable inputs and
involved significant judgement made by the management
and valuation from independent professional valuers. Thus,
the instruments were transferred from Level 2 to Level 3

category.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include

financial assets and financial liabilities that:

« are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position; or

« are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position.

36. TR R (&)

REEUBRRRER 2D FER
£ (&)

Wi RZF—-NF+ZA=+—H &R
FEIEREAEMEERKARER 2
7% & & 2~ V1B £9207,084,000/8
T2ZENHARGBREE - WHEIL
RBE-_Z-N\F+A=+—RH1t
FEDBRE2RITE -

RARFEE REZATEDIREBEEKX
THBRGABBEE XYHEHE
BREMEZERHE MIBY EXMAE
Bz fdfE - Bt ZERiEhE2R
BREEIMER -

MBEEERMBAEESH
TR ZHBEEHBHEBRIATER
ZHBEEMMBAE

%

RALR iR A BRI RN

Sg’

- RRERBEBBIRIL A BT
ZF R AR L B K R AR 15 R P AR
R TiwmHEEERAEEEEMB
RS AR 8H o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and HKSCC and brokers, the Group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the money
obligation receivable and payable with HKSCC and
brokers on the same settlement date and the Group

intends to set off on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the accounts receivable and payable with
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on the same
date and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on delivery
versus payment basis, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the statement of financial position since the right of
set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable

following an event of default.

36. TR R (&)

MHREERMBAGES (H)

REAEEEEBHEEMELED 2R
BRRAEE RS AEEHEATHRER
HMIT 2R SEBEEERELZ
MER—A&ERIMALREERA R
FREEEE B BN RREEE

SESh - AR A R FOR R BT 2R
Ao SEELEFFP 2HAER—E#AE B
IMAAEERBRFRARIRE ZE
Yo Ko e A RR SRR 88 o

BRRE— AR MEE 2 & T AEH
oh o BB EIRE N EEEE 2RI
ENELEPERR  LIHERE—BEE
2R/ ENEEREE KREIMERE
PRRH - REBWERZ B EERAR (2
BRRELEF) UREHRREEEE
MR zEE  —HAITaRPHRR
TARH TR REHCEREELZ
RAERBOEMFERT AIBHIT -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. eMEE (&)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MBEERVEEEES (H)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-hE+=-A=+—H
Gross

amounts of  Net amounts
accounts  of accounts
Gross  payable set receivable
amounts off in the in the Related amounts not
of accounts  consolidated  consolidated et off in the consolidated
receivable  statement of statement  statement of financial position
after financial ~ of financial Financial Collateral
impairment position position instruments received ~ Net amount
&4 &4
Ak HHBRR HHBRR PERGRUERRR
Y mrE#Ez  RAZEK hEHZRBRR
BRAE RARRAR BRRE ¢REE  EhEAR ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TER TER

Accounts receivable arsing from ~ ERE£H B
the ordinary course of business of ~ EE/TEEEFR S
dealing in securities transactions MEE 2 BRER 168,344 (33,290) 135,054 (671) (127,467) 6,859
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36. TR RE (&)
MHREERMBAGES (H)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

As at 31 December 2019 (continued)

Gross
amounts of
accounts

payable

B
BHAR
HK$'000

TEn

Accounts payable arising fom the ~ EBE£KER
ordinary course of business of RETEEESRS
dealing in securities transactions A4S 2 EHER 49,521

Gross
amounts of
accounts
receviable set
off in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position
Ri&
HBRR
RAEHZ
EUERES
HK$'000
TR

(33.290)

RZZE-AF+ZA=+—H (&)

Net amounts
of accounts
payable

in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
R&&
HBRR
RAZER
BAER
HK$'000
TR

16,231

Related amounts not

set off in the consolidated

statement of financial position

Financial Collateral
instruments pledged
PERGRHBRRE
hEEZRBE
BERY
tHES gl
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
(671) -

Net amount

FE
HK$ 000
TEL

15,560
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018

Accounts receivable arising from the
ordinary course of business of

dealing in securties transactions

Gross
amounts of
accounts
receivable
after

impairment

Ak
B
et
HK$'000
TR

EAREBERT

MEEERER 159,255

Gross
amounts of
accounts
payable set
off in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
R4
BBMR
RAEHL
EREREE
HK$'000
TERL

(17,101)

TREE (&)
MHEERMBAGEY (E)

R-ZZE-NF+ZA=+—H

Net amounts
of accounts
receivable

in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
R
MR
RNZEN
BEE
HK$'000
TEn

142,154

Related amounts not
set off in the consolidated

statement of financial position

Financial (ollateral
instruments received
TERGANBRAR
nE#RENE
SBEE  EWEAR
HK$'000 HK§'000
TER TEn
(266)  (140906)

Net amount

i
HK$ 000
TR

982
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36. TR RE (&)
MHREERMBAGES (H)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018 (continued)

Gross
amounts of
accounts

payable

Ef
ERaE
HK$ 000

TER

Accounts payable arising from the ~ ER #4512
ordinary course of business of RETEEESRS
dealing in securities transactions mELZERER 41,491

Gross
amounts of
accounts
receivable set
off in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position
e
SR
At v
EREFAE
HK$'000
TR

(17,101)

R-ZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H (&)

Net amounts
of accounts
payable

in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
e
SR
RNZER
BT
HK$'000
TR

24390

Related amounts not set off in the

consolidated statement of financial

pasition

Financial Collateral
instruments pledged

TERGRHBRAK

AEHZRBRE

BEAY
SRER H#m
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
(266) (400)

Net amount

FE
HK$ 000
TER

23,724
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to a sales and purchase agreement dated 3
April 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of
Experts Management Limited. ("Experts Management”) at
a cash consideration of approximately HK$2,310,000
from Mr. Lo Ping Hung, Eric (the "Vendor”), an
independent third party of the Group.

The transaction was completed in April 2019.

Experts Management licensed under the CIB and the IA,
is engaged in provision of insurance brokerage in Hong
Kong. The Group has acquired Experts Management so
as to expand to this new market segment. The acquisition
has been accounted for using acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition

was approximately HK$2,016,000.

37. BB B L F
BRERBBHA_ZE-—NFMONA=HAZEE
e - AEBE R £ R E 42,310,000
BTRAAEEZBYE=ZFEMRBTE
(I'E A ]) W BBExperts Management
Limited ([ Experts Management]) Z
100% % A #E 75

ERARSGER-_ZT-—NFMOAZTMK -

ol

Experts Management/s R Bt & R (R & /B
FIRE 2 FHEEE  REBRERRL
METS o A5 B Experts Management
NEREBZ L MISRE - BRAKE
RUBENR BABENEECHES
##) /32,016,000 7T °

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised RUBBEBHAMUBZEER

at the date of acquisition are as follows: FrERzEaREMT HK$'000
FET

Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE S 294

283
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BE—
37.

BNFT_A=T—BHLHFE
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

37. WEEKT B A 7 (48)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEmMEEZEE ! HK$'000
FET
Consideration RE 2,310
Less: net assets acquired W P B R E (294)
Goodwill arising on acquisition EW RS EE 2 mE 2,016
Net cash outflow on acquisition of I B Experts Management
Experts Management FEEXEZERERE HK$'000
FET
Net cash consideration paid ENfReREFRE 2,310
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances B FrEsRe R EEEE EH
acquired (294)
2,016

The consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected
synergies, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Experts Management. The goodwill arising
on the acquisition is not expected to be deductible for
tax purposes.

No acquisition-related costs had been excluded from the
consideration transferred.

Included in the loss for the year is approximately
HK$484,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Experts Management. No revenue for the
year was generated from Experts Management for the
year.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
total revenue of the Group for the year would have been
the same, and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$93,392,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

HEHMXNZREERBERPHBR
M Z Mg *XW%?’“‘E&EEXPH‘(S
Managementff A Z 85 8 77 - Iﬂﬁlﬁgﬁﬁ
EEZHBREBTATENRAS

PrEmA B EB R B REERAE

F JZ & 8 B 4)484,000% 7T TY B A R
Experts ManagementZE SN 8528 7 75 o
Experts Managementid & A I 4 = 4 (T
fa] i 2% o

REFWEE R —nF— H—EI?—E
B Z?S%lzimﬁ@uﬁz 5 AN

i F /E &5 18 Rl 5 4 7,%93,392,000/.375 °
EBRBEEREHGFER YT —ERE
BREWEBEEN -_T—NF—A—HB%
EX51$¢IH [ﬁ%%ff U R A
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

3. BB AR
R AEEYEBK S ETUTRS

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET
Brokerage commission income earned  [A) 7k &= (B % ?%%‘25 Z
from certain directors of the Group or %%&E BABZ
close family members of or entities %EWB#T Wz B 6
controlled by these directors and key FRER 2 &2 A& A

management 88 112

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other
members of key management personnel during the year

is as follows:

TEEE AB Z RN
FARRREZTREMEREEZE 2 M
Eop I N

2019 2018

ZE-NF —ZT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Short term benefits 2 B E A 7,764 17,458
Share-based payments VAR 17 /5 B 1P K - 4,007
Post employment benefits BERR 12 1B A 100 127
Other long term benefits H R EBEHN 30 154
7,894 21,746

The remuneration is determined by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.

e ARRFHME B EEEDIER
ALTRBRTIGBLERETE

285
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39. A Az MBI &

COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B et FTER FET
Non-current assets ERBEE _
Investments in subsidiaries RITB AR & ) 2,668 2,668
Financial assets at FVTPL BN AR R B
B 2 A EE - 304,081
Amounts due from a subsidiary BT B A B ZA (i) 259,000 469,200
261,668 775,949
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE R R
other receivables H b rE U BR 2Kk y 10,106 3,221
Financial assets at FVTPL ROV EIE R ERRE
o BRI2 2 I EE 415,949 98,572
Amounts due from subsidiaries &K B A B 318 i) 387,381 408,042
Bank balances RITEEER 2,658 24,848
816,094 534,683
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued liabilities and FEET B E R HA
other payables F& 1S BR 3R 2,154 2,166
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS BT B8 A R 5R08 i) 303,454 242,526
305,608 244,692
Net current assets REBEEFH 510,486 289,991
Total assets less current BEERRBAEE
liabilities 772,154 1,065,940
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds MR ES 29,005 26,116
Deferred tax liabilities RIEIBEAE 659 1,136
29,664 27,252
Net assets BEEFE 742,490 1,038,688
Capital and reserves BEARR A
Share capital P& AR 1,579,813 1,579,813
Reserves [ (837,323) (541,125)
Total equity BB 742,490 1,038,688
The Company's statement of financial position was RKABZHB R REREEeN T~
approved and authorised for issue by the board of TE=Z A -+ NBHERETT W E
directors on 26 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf NEEGRES 8

by:

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter

B’
Director

EF

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy
H=xRMH
Director

EF
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2019, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost of approximately
HK$2,668,000 (2018: HK$2,668,000). No
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: HK$nil).

The amounts due from a subsidiary of approximately
HK$473,000,000 (2018: HK$469,200,000) are
unsecured and interest-free. The directors of the
Company do not expect repayments from a
subsidiary within next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. An impairment loss of
approximately HK$214,000,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$Ni).

The amounts due from subsidiaries included loan
and interest of approximately HK$129,806,000
(2018: HK$79,326,000), in which a loan of
approximately HK$18,208,000 (2018:
HK$18,208,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong prime rate plus 1.25% (2018: 1.25%)
and repayable on demand and a loan of
approximately HK$111,598,000 is unsecured,
interest-bearing at Hong Kong prime rate plus
5.75% (2018: plus 5.75%) per annum and
repayable within one year as at the end of the
reporting date. The remaining amounts due from
subsidiaries of approximately HK$296,475,000
(2018: HK$328,716,000) are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. An impairment loss
of approximately HK$38,900,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HKENI).

The amounts due to subsidiaries included loan and
interest of approximately HK$300,033,000 (2018
HK$239,172,000) are unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong prime rate plus 7% (2018: prime rate plus
7%) per annum and repayable on demand. The
remaining amounts due to subsidiaries of
approximately HK$3,421,000 (2018: HK$3,354,000)
are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

39. AR Az H BRI E (F])

0]

(i)

(iii)

R-ZE—-—h&E+-_A=+—8" »%
M B~ A 2 % & % 492,668,000
7T (ZZF— N\ : 2,668,000/ L)
ZHRAGIER -BE-E—NF+=
A=+ —HIEFEMBRERBER
B(ZE—N\F:TFT) °

4)473,000,0008 T (=& — N\ F :
469,200,000/ JT) < FE U Bﬁ% N
AIRIEREERRAFE c AR
EEVTBHWEER TﬁAi&%/ﬁﬂﬁi
B+ HAZAER HE_Z
—NFF+_A=+—BLFEEHE
FOREE1E49214,000,0008 7T (=
E-N\F ETET) -

47129,806,0008 70 (=& — N\4F :
79,326,000/ 7T) < & W BT B A A
RE(BEEREME) P &
18,208,000 ¢ (=& — N\ F :
18,208,000 L) < E R A &K
T EBETHREERNE NI 25E
TE-NF125E)HENEAER
EREEE BH111,598,000
BT ERABERE RELHE
BRMEMSTSE (ZFE—NF M
575[E) < F R EEFHE - ARBE
HAR®E -—FREE - HEHBL
296,475,000 7L (=T — )\ ¢
328716000;‘%%)2F‘H&ZWE“

REEERE THERARE
Iﬁﬂaﬁ HE-_Z—-hF+=A
T+ HLFEECERBEREED
38,900,000 L (Z &2 —N\F : T
BIT) °

#3300,033,000 T (ZZF— N\ :
239,172,000/ 7t) 2 FET K B &
ARB(EREEREFE) BEIK
T RBTRERNEIN7E(ZE
—N\F REEANENTE) 2FF)
KB RBAREKEERER - EH#4
3,421,000 L (ZF — N\ F
3,354,000 7T ) < FET T /8 A Bk
HAEERR T ERERERE

i -
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

39. AR A 2 M BRI F (F)

Pursuant to a scheme of capital reorganisation, which
became effective on 28 May 2003, the High Court of Hong
Kong had approved the reduction of the capital of the
Company and the cancellation of the Company's share
premium account. The credit arising from the reduction of
the share capital account and cancellation of the share
premium account, after eliminated against the accumulated
losses, in the aggregate amount of HK$123,758,200 was
transferred to a capital reserve account of the Company.
Such capital reserve account will not be treated as realised
profits, and shall be treated as an undistributable reserve
of the Company until and unless the creditors of the
Company as at the date of the sanction are fully settled. In
view of the fact that the Company had already fully settled
the relevant debts due to the creditors, the Company is of
the view that the reserve is distributable to the Company’s
shareholders.

(iv) Movement in the Company's capital and reserves (iv) RRABIERRHEEE
Convertible Share
Share Capital bonds  Accumulated option
capital reserve reserve losses reserve Total
TERES
e us-1 fi% 2R BREGR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TR TER Téx T THR
(note)
()
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n5-F-A 1,579,813 123,758 17,536 (734,050) 51,631 1,038,688
Loss and total comprehensive FEEERZE
expense for the year ARiEE - - - (296,198) - (296,198)
Reversal of share option upon REREXNT
Iapse of share options BORRE - - - 24257 (24,257) -
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE
T-A=1-H 1,579,813 123,758 17,536 (1,005,991) 21374 742,490
Note: Hfet -

RER-_ZZ=FREA -+ N\BEX
ZRABAANE  FESFERIE
BB AR 2 A B AR KRR 85 AR & R) Z B fp
i 1B B o Bl Rk A AN Bk Ko E 85 B0 i B
RMELAZERBEFEREHR
¥ /1237582008 T EBRAARR
BZEARER ZEARBERTS
WEBSEEREN  MBERSART
ZAADIRER BEEREKIFART
RZBECERBZENRCEBENS
F - ERARREBBE & REE
AZERER  WARBRAE WA
BAIDIRTFARBRRE -
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. AR 2B BMRREK (&)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(iv) Movement in the Company's capital and reserves (v) ARAIBEARAREHEES (F)

(continued)

Convertible Share

Share Capital bonds ~ Accumulated option

capital reserve reserve losses reserve Total
TaRES

Bx  RAERE B RIER  ERRGE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000
TR TER TER TET TEL TET

At T January 2018 RZE-N\5-A-H 849,937 123,758

(280,632) 20,406 713,469

Loss and total comprehensive FEEERZERXER

expense for the year - - - (453,418) - (453,418)
Recognition of equity-settled = v 3P

share option expenses ARER - - - - 31322 31322
Issue of shares upon exercise RiTREREME TR

of share options 431 - - - (97) 334
Recognition of equity component BRI ARES 2 EEZTH

of convertible bonds - - 310,819 - - 310819
Deferred tax liabilties on A aRES B

recognition of equity BH7EEREER

component of convertible

bonds - - (24,593) - - (24,593)
Issue of shares upon conversion  EW BREH AR

of convertible bonds fi&{7ik{ 656,821 - (291,808) - - 365,013
Release of deferred tax liabilites ~ BEIARREFAR 2

on conversion of convertible BEREAR

bonds - - 23,118 - - 23118
Issue of shares by top-up NABEHAARE

placement and subscription REMBIRG 73811 - - - - 73811
Transaction costs attributable to NEERIAALE

issue of shares by top-up RREMEIRA

placement and subscription RERE (1,187) - - - - (1,187)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF

tZR=+-H 1579,813 123,758 17,536 (734,050) 51,631 1,038,688
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 0. KRR FEMB A RHES
THE COMPANY
Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end NEREHER KEBZETENBER A
of each reporting period are set out below: FHEHNOT

Paid up issued

registered Proportion of ~ Principal
Name of Placeof  Class of ordinary Proportion of ownership interest voting power held ~ activities and
subsidiary incorporation shares held ~share capital held by the Company by the Company ~place of operation
ifft HRERT LN
KEARAH Rus¥  FERORN EERX AAARERRRRELH SRLA IERHRAERE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
E& B tZR=1-8

019 2018 2019 2018 2009 2008
SE-AF ZF/F ZR-RE ZE)F ZR-nE ZE)R

% % % % % %
VC Fingndial Group BV Ordinary share ~ US§1 100%  100% N/A N/A 100%  100% Investment holding
Limited ZERAES TRk B30 TER  TEE in Hong Kong
ERCRERERAT REERELRR
VC Brokerage Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$400,000,000 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of brokerage
ERE% i ERR 4000000007 FER  TEE and securiies margn
financing semvices in
Hong Kong
RERRUALR
BERECHERS
VC Futures Limited Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares ~ HK$30,000,000 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of futures
ERBSERLA i LER 30,000,000 7T TER  TER and options contracts
dealing senvices in
Hong Kong
REERUAER

HECHRERE
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 40. KRR EEM B A AFE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Paid up issued

registered Proportion of ~Principal
Name of Placeof  Class of ordinary Propartion of ownership interest voting power held  activities and
subsidiary incorporation shares held ~share capital held by the Company by the Company ~place of operation
if HEBERS KLAAfE
KEARAR RIBY  FEROEH EERK ARAFRERRER LY RERLA TERBRAERE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
BR B3 +ZAZ+-H

2019 2018 2019 2008 2019 2018
ZE-0E ZE3-\F ZB-AE ZF-)\F ZE-AE CE-)IE

% % % % % %
VC Capital Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$68,000,000 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of corporate
ERRE (3 B 68,000,000 TER @R finance and advisory
senvices in Hong Kong
REERULZBER
BRRS
VC Asset Management ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$36,000,000 N/A NA  100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of asset
Limited 5% EER 36,000,000 7 TER  TER management senvices
ERBEERERLT to clients in Hong
Kong
REBMEPRE
EEEERE
VC Finance Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$1,000,000 N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%  Money lending in
ER U Bk ERR 1,000,000 TR THRE Hong Kong
VC Corporate Senvices Hong Kong ~ Ordinary sheres ~ HK$3,500,100 N/A A 100% 100% 100% 100% - Corporate Services
Limited EE EER 3,500,100/ 7 TER  TER in Hong Kong

ERNERHARLT RERREDAME
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 40. KRR EEM B L AFE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Paid up issued

registered Proportion o~ Principal
Name of Placeof  Class of ordinary Proportion of ownership interest voting power held  activities and
subsidiary incorporation shares held ~share capital held by the Company by the Company ~place of operation
iff HREEA KLAAfE
KEARAR RIBY  FEROEH EERX ANARERERER LA SRLH TERBRAENE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
ER 53 tZAZt-H

019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE CE-0\F CE-RE CE-)\F ZE-AE CE)\F

% % % % % %
VC Senvices Limited Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$10,000 100%  100% N/A /A 100%  100% Provision of
EERBERAT i ERR 100007 TER  TERE management senvices
fo group companies
in Hong Kong
REAMERAT
REERRH
VC Research Limited Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares ~ HK$500,000 N/A NA  100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of research
ERRERRAT & ERR 5000007 TER  THERE senices in
Hong Kong
RERRUAERE
Easy Task Holdings BV Ordinary shares ~ US§1 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Investment holdingin
Limited AERRES L@k 1% TER  TER Hong Kong
RERRERR
Century Race Investments BV Ordinary shares ~ US§1 N/A NA - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding in
Limited AERAES TRk B3 TR TERE Hong Kang
REERERR
Experts Management Hong Kang  Ordinary shares ~ HK$890,000 N/A NA - 100% N/A - 100% N/A" Insurance broker in
B ERR 890,000/ T TER  TER TR FEE  Hong Kong

RERUSRBAL
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

41.

THE COMPANY (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries are either inactive or
investment holding companies. A summary of these

subsidiaries are set out as follows:

40. AR Rz EEMBAAFE (&)

ERINBARREERBRIEFELRE
BEREREEZAKENBAR - AR
RAEERR JHEMHMBARZHRE
BLREBNRITEK

RBERAR - AREAEME AL E
FUFREEZHEAR - ZFEH B LA
ERRMoEEEXXNB/RERZER
Al ZEMBRBAZBMEHIIMT

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FTEXH TERKEHE MEDBEE
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
Investment holding Hong Kong 9 6
REEK B
Investment holding BVI 12 12
RE R REBRIAES
21 18
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 4. TEZHRERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a new lease arrangement in respect of
property. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$3,304,000 and HK$3,188,000 were
recognised at the commencement date of the lease

respectively.

HE-_T-AF+_A=+—8BL1tF
B AEBEFTUHOMERELYE - R
HERBBHEREREEEREESR
& 9 Bl £93,304,000/% 7T % 3,188,000/

JC ©
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42.

BNFT_A=T—BHLHFE
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Major Transaction in relation to Disposal of the
Relevant Convertible Bonds by Exercising the Put
Option

On 18 October 2017, it was announced that the
Company, PAL and the Warrantors entered into the Sale
and Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase, and PAL agreed to sell, the China
Fortune Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of
HK$153,585,000 convertible into 2,559,750,000
conversion Shares at China Fortune at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.06 per conversion Share
(subject to adjustments) for an aggregate consideration
of HK$400,000,000. Also, pursuant to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, PAL granted to the Company the
Put Option to require PAL to purchase from the Company
the Relevant Convertible Bonds, to the extent of
HK$76,792,500 (being 50% of the principal amount of
the China Fortune Convertible Bonds), at the Put Option
Price, which approximates the cost of acquisition of the
Relevant Convertible Bonds by the Company under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement, at any time during the Put

Option Period on the condition set out in the Circular.

On 24 January 2020, the Board announces that the
Agreement was entered into between the Company and
PAL, pursuant to which the Company shall sell and
transfer, as legal and beneficial owner, the Relevant
Convertible Bonds to PAL and PAL shall purchase the
Relevant Convertible Bonds free from all encumbrances
and third party rights of any kind and together with all
rights, including all rights to receive any and all
redemption money and interest as well as other
payments made or to be made by China Fortune under
and pursuant to the China Fortune Convertible Bonds

Instrument.

42. BEWREE

FRTERGHEAEERE TR
REHFZETERS

RZZE—tF+A+NBEM AR
Al - PALERIER AT B E Wk - UL -
AAFREREE  MPALAIR & H & XK
$ %8 45153,585,000/% 7T 2 # B & 98 7]
BRES  HARVLRKREPEFA
ZERIR B I1H0.0678 T (Al FHE) %
#/2,559,750,000% # g B 19 - BT %
M 2 # R {8 /400,000,000 7T ° It
Hh IRIBEBEWE  PALAA R AR
RoLEARE - AIIRIRZ B AT E 2 RGN
SRk ER #E HA PR P B A 2 SRPALIR 3R i
RE(EARAREBEEHZWHEEH
AMRESFZKAEE) ARRAEE
TR TR AR & % - bA76,792,5007%8 JT
(BB Z s Al R EH A& 5 250%)
R -

W_ZE_TFE-—A-+HH EFEF
i AN A B BAPALRT S 3% Wk v BR UL
AR (ERZEZERERBEAA) AL
B REEBEIRRES TPAL - MPAL
ABEMRBARRRES (W& ERE
REEREMUEEZE=7#F)ER
— )RR (B 1 UCEE (AT & BT B B B K
HEFE  AEHEERNHEERA
BIRE 7 XIRIE T KRR I 1 H sag 1B
2 H AR — R o
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E-NF+_A=+—BLFE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

The Disposal constitutes a major transaction of the
Company and is therefore subject to the notification,
announcement, circular and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Company will convene the extraordinary general meeting
(the "EGM") for the Shareholders to consider, and if
appropriate, approve the Disposal. On 19 March 2020,
the EGM was convened and shareholders’ approval were

obtained thereat.

Disposal of the Group’s entire holding of 30%
interest in Telebox Technology Holdings Limited
On 20 March 2020, Initial Honour Limited, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Chen Yu Zhen, an
independent third party, to dispose the Initial Honour's
entire holding of 30% interest in Telebox Technology
Holdings Limited, at a cash consideration of
HK$5,000,000. HK$1,000,000 was received as at the
date of the report.

The novel Coronavirus

The widespread of the novel Coronavirus all over the
world since the beginning of 2020 poses challenges to
nearly all the industries in the society. The Group has
been closely monitoring the impact of the development
on the Group's business and taken all possible effective
measures to limit and keep the impact in control. Based
on the information currently available, the management
does not foresee material adverse impacts on the
financial position of the Group. Nonetheless, the degree
of impact on the financial position may be different when

more information is available.

42. FEHREE (&)

BEETHRNETNE  HEFBERBEK
ZIK AI—EFrEXRS BEmMAETRA
D BEHRRRAERTE - AQ
ﬁﬂ%@%ﬁﬂﬁ%%%‘ﬁ(@(FH&%%%UK
FUHREZERIT BB ELESE
B - RZZEZEF=ATNA KRRE
AIASKERH S LEMBREIE -

& A< &£ @ ATelebox Technology

Holdings Limited Z 2 Z830%% #&

RZZEZZTF=A=-+H AREIZMH
% 2 & B 2 &Initial Honour Limited£2
BYE=HRBEERET L —HEEW
# LA &initial HonourTelebox
Technology Holdings Limited.z 2 #30%
P 4g - B8 Moz 32 {8 /35,000,000
BT BEANRE HHIE YEN,000,000

ABIL °

FRERES
HAERREE S _TFUMRGBE
DIREM - WG BT RBITEBERK
B o AEE-—EHERYIREBEHAEER
XB oo WEHR—YRI{TABE
B PARR I AR FF s BRI 1% - ARIE B Al
Frs&ER EREEFAER 2B Bk
RABGEXERNTNZE - AT - BB

EZEHRNHR HHBRACZERE
HGRE o
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A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated

assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial

years is set out below.

AEEBEREMKFRZFREFEENURE
BEERAEREHIMT -

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1-BLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-1E —B-N\% —E-t% —E-RE “E-1f
Consolidated results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
CEES | TER TER TER THER TER
Revenue g 49,210 50,474 53,685 56,283 79,795
Loss before tax BREAEE (93,960) (485,975) (66,778) (56,735) (12,543)
Income tax credit (expense) MERER (Ax) 591 (341) (698) 19 (32)
Loss for the year FEBR (93,369) (486,316) (67,476) (56,716) (12,575)
Other comprehensive expense for FEAMZEMY
the year (160,030) - - - -
Total comprehensive expense for KRRRBARLEE (253,399) (486,316) (67,476) (56,716) (12,575)
the year attributable to owners 2ARTAE
of the Company
Loss per share (HK cents) gRESGBL)
Basic -9 7.59) (49.36) (9.48) (9.39) (2.43)
Diluted g (7.59) (49.36) (9.48) (9.39) (2.43)
As at 31 December
Wt=A=t-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E2-1E —Z-N\E “E-tF 3 —Z-nf
Consolidated assets and liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREERER TEr ThAT TiEn ThET T
Total assets BEE 849,105 1,138,480 846,132 785,840 734,486
Total liabilities EafE (63,242) (99,218) (93,947) (85,990) (94,027)
Total equity miER 785,863 1,039,262 752,185 699,850 640,459
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